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2013 Snapshot

resilient performance in what was yet another challenging year for the building materials sector

Sales billion
EBITDA billion

2013 2013

2012 2012

2011 2011

16 17 18 19 12 14 16

Earn nge before otereet Tax Deprcoiat 00 ArnoriVaboo

Operating Profit billion Return on Net Assets

2013 2013

2012 2012

2011 2011

07 OA 06 0.8 0% 2% 4/o 6/ 8%

Pre

Operating Cash Flow billion EBITDA/Net Interest Cover times

2013 2013

2012 2012

2011 2011

04 05 0.6 0.T 0.8 4.0 60 80

CO2 Emissions kg/C revenue Zero Accident Locations

2012 2012

2011 2011

0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 80% 85% 90% 95%

Dividend per Share cent Total Shareholder Return COOO

2012 2012

2011 2011

20 40 60 80 20 40 60

Curnuat ye vne of 100 nveetd 1070

/1

n/i

1/
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Strategy Review

1uring the hi six months at 2013 the cne and psolongerl cc cuter

sac chtion schscli delaa ed the start oh the in istricc tiOn season in our

major markets together cc itli ss eak trading Lurope ii id negatis

irnpo on nor cecults As lIce Cdi progressed saw markets hegcncung

Eu stahsliso in uiope Ink the pa up in eec rioucci actic itv in the
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ided positis momentum for oa Amern husniesses

Fo iwcng tirst -hal dci hcnc of 60o ke-toc lik sales cc ci ahead hv 20

in thu sec ond half educing the full-c ear des line ti With thr

translation in pac at the cc eakec US Dollar ncore than oftcet Us

car tiihutions roni acquisitions sales at 18 hillion tar the cear cc ere in

hue cccth 2012 FBITD tar the ear ancoontec to 48 hillion slight l\

ahead of
gusrd iris

Against this hac kdrop oritinued to for us On inrpr Os irig our ost hase

par tic ularl in lorope ding oor sapacita and cnanagin our coats to

ncatr Ii shifting dcsrrarid patterns across our husinesses lncrernerrtcrl

savings of 195 nulhon weie delivered the oar liii rcimola tic srist

sac rugs since the programme heg in icc 200/ nocc arrcount to almost

hillion

Wi crntrnured to generate strocrg
cash tloccs frcim our operations cc inch

topet tier cv rth proc eeds hr am cI is estrrrents rrccl set dcc posal icc olted in

mict deht reniai irrg
in lrrcs cc rth ea end 20 12 Phi scas alt cr sperrc

as qu situ oicc isl capital cxi nd it rice ot appro
oinr at cli .2 hi Ill ocr and

ills clench pal rents of hilliorr

or or loser bk rt the rrurrita ma lease rc ter to arc It uscrress Per br ncis

Rec iccc on pages 18 tic In nrtr rOici ccl ha accr ciii ccc ires tic

Devopment Activity
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rig
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trecigthonecl our ernecit p5 cit loris in in Ii ross di ci arkets in kni inc

lnclii arid liirisc 11 acldii tO iOiI aggrs gates pi
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CRH Vison and Strategy
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Developing Economies
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CRH Business Model
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management strategic planning businmesc des clap nenmt talent

manaccemnent gos ernansce risk in magemnent amid sastainabilitv fins

approac has attracted and retai med cxc cpu inn management in the past

and the Group has been str engthened hj perso mrnel with range of skills

mid lading aperational nnanagen merit hmgl qualified busmimess

prc
dessmonals and ass ncr-c trepreneurs

How we Manage our Finances

One of CRHs gniding principles is stiong tic us cam cash generation

si ii gives it
signifiu inst financial lireposser Inc valuecreating

acquisitions and dis idencl pa out Strict capital discipline is kes

Imarac teristic of the Cr amp alongside good opecational control and

strong hnanc ial
iclnndit\

TIme Ccc up is concnntted to nmamntaining arm

ins estnsent grade credit rating During 201 IH raised 1.3 Pillion in

the ecnoboncl market at rec orcl less coupons

How we Generate Value

CR1 Is approac to business has delis ered incluc try-leading returns in the

past and it is the Gronps intention to restore sose returns and niargins

tin ough the conu in cs Ic

At thc core ol RHs scrc cc ss is the pursuit of ontinrions
irripi Os ement

he Group nist untls lmallengec its husin asses to rIo hetter and

nmanagernent ognises tI at contir croims irnpios ernent requires em cis

on inca sured irc-rtcr in anc Firm ho an ral cciii col pracluc and pn ocess

innovation Tn rigorous approach tc apital ullocatiorm

CR11 onti ours to icms est an ci reins est in its asset to inuprovu the capacity

qcnalitt and etficieimcs ol its operations In aclchtioru icr lragmented

industr CRH has the opportunits to gross acquiring small to mid

si zecl ccrni panics is hi ii
crnipl cnn nt the cxi sti rig netis cirk rear tim in

time it completes larger deals ss here it sees conipelling aloe

This strategic approach and sri stainable business rncidel br value

creation has eiiahlerl CR1-I to delis er superior perforinanc cnmcl
gr

ositim

through pies ions ccles Pollen ing the ccrrrent
portfolmci res iew it is

CR1 ls irstentioni tcr acc elerate the dynacismc allocation and reallocation ol

resources is ithin the Group so that the businesses ss itb the nrcist

pcitential in the next Ic will rec else the mcist investrmrent in thc fcmture

Measuring Performance

CR1-I belies es that rneasurenienit fosters posmtis behas macmr arid

performance In keeping ssith our Inc cis cm riieesurecl performaric ccc rciss

cull our businesses RH ccmtinrrces to refine arid develop apprcipi iate

financial and ncin financial nmeasures to conrmnrnir cite leading prac tice

henchrnarks acrdss the cirganisnition

In the following tmmtd cs on pages 12 tc as past ccl CR1 ls onrsrrritrnerit to

enhanced narrnitis reporting the Board has set ant the Krs Per lorrnanc

Indicators KPIs that are used to rrieasure the Gicnnps perlornianc

against its strategy The KPls are clcusels aligned tci thr strategic prmciritnes

set out on prnge Thet arc quantifiable inmeasnrennments is inch the roimp

has been working tn for mains sears although tin is is tie first tune Ibes

has heeni included un tins fcinm iii tIne Annual Rcport It is RI-I

ismtentncnn tm reproduccc this tabhc icc suhsequemmt repcirts to enairle

insestors to build
cnp longec-ternn len of hess Gruicnp strategs is ireinig

srncc csstrnll implemented
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Sustarnabihty and Governance
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Business Performance Review
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CRH OperatonaI Snapshot aHa cxp nur and end based on 2013 HO LA

Sector Exposure Sector Exposure

5Q%

Sector Exposure

End use Enduse

65%

35%

Ar eeJ du ton Voumc3

coricreS Iii 00 1110

11

No oo Do rn or or or rr on or to qn Do it dis od in No tie Conoohdat in fbi Stotonis to

Ni it co to

tOr her

Sak

IBUDA

Nrt Asset

Geography

2266 13s

27131 iSo

29 200/

dhon So of Croup

55
/0 IOUP

Sae 2376 13%

EBTDA 119 0%

Net Astocto 236 10%

Products

Saes

EBTDA

Net Assets

Acbvbes

3936

186

1675

179/

30%

Lnduse



Sales 4721 26%

EBITDA 557 38%

Net Assets 4738 38%

Sector Exposure

Reside.rWN

No svjr3

Nfr1wtructure 65.q4

Enduse-.---
New 35O4

RM 65V

Sector Exposure

Residentai 45

Non-resdentN 45 O4

nfrastructure 0/

Enduse

.........
New 60%

RMI 40%

Sector Exposure

ResiuNri EicJ

Enduse

5co

cIiVV

iii55i .5.5

Annualised Production Voiumes

Aggregates 1226m tonnes 1245w tonnos

Asphalt 3L4rn tonnes 3G4m tonnes

Resdymixed conerete 5.7w mt 18rn rnR

Annualised Production Volumes

Concrete masonry patio produsts

pacers and root tiles 1Rm tonnes

Pre-packaged cement mixes 26m tonries

Clry brickS payers arid tiles O.9m tonnes

Prepsckaged lawn garden produrts 3dm tonnes

Precast concrete products Sm tonnes

Pipe and prSastressed concrete 14w tonnes

Building envelope pa ducts 1tn square metres

Penning products 4m lineal metres

million of Group million 55 of Group

Geography

%otCroup

Sales 3068 17%

EBITDA 246 17%

Net Assets 1704 14%

Products Activifles

Sales 1664 9%

EBITDA 89 6%

Net Assets 598 5%

South America 5O/
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ng 201 an

/0 488 65 147 141 lb

BOAt 1/c 114%

10/ 53 26

tMTDA rid 0/ trig ro dud profi on di Re tru turin mount to mi/lion 01 14 million

Imp am nt Ii of mi/li in 01 nil

the conunentarv below exci odes the adverse nipact nnpiurment

charges on opelating pro/it

Adverse weather conditions winch had resulted in 25% Incline lO

i3rsthal US/i E1IITDA continuer to impact operations in air md in the

early weeks of August Irading conditions proved much more favourahle

thereafter through to Novem her and seconchha if US/i EBITDA was ahead

of the corresponding period in 2012 Positive firsthalf trends in pricing

continued into the second half Though overall like-forlike sales revenue

was 3% lower than last year contrihutions from acquisitions resulted in

overall US/i LRITLlA lor the veer heing 4% ahead of 2012

total of It acquisitions were cruapleterl in 201 at cost ot 77 in ill ion

adding 457 nul ion toruses of reserves 13 opera/lug quarries strategic

reserves Incatiens asphalt plants and rearlvmixed concrete plants

with annual production of 2.1 nsillimn tonnes of aggregatils 0.4 million

tonries of asphalt arid 0.1 million uhic metres el readvrnixed concrete

Energy and related costs The price of bitumen key component of

asphalt mix declined by 4% in 2013 following 7% increase in 2012

Prices for rliesel and gasoline important inputs to aggregates rearlvniixed

concrete and poving operations decreased by 2% arid 30/ respectively

The price of energy used at our asphalt plants consisting of fuel oil

recycled oil electricity 011 natvrral gas fell by 1% Recyclerl asphalt anrl

shiii4l nnntr br appioxim or Ii 21 oI to il asph ilt qua mu u/s

in 2013 Wider use of warmmix asphalt continues to deliver cost and

customer hone/Its With the positive effects of lower bitumen costs mmmi

further increased use of recycled asphalt unit costs reduced by 2%

Aggregates LikeTordike volumes were slightly ahead of 2112 while total

volumes including acquisitions increased 7% Average prices increased

by 3% on likefor4ike basis anrl 2% overall compared with 2112 Price

increases together with efhcient cost control resulted in on improverl

margin
for this business

Asphalt impacwd by pomr weather and liiter start to paving projects

like/ordilke volumes were down 7% with total volumes including

acquisitions down 3% While the average like-forlike sales
fir/ce

fell 1%

and overall average price fell wi/Is the bench of the 4% reduction in

bitumen costs margin per nut was maintained

Readymixed Concrete Like-for-like voh.nnes decreased 2% while total

volumes including acquisitions were up 2% compared with 201 With

average prices 4% higher on likefor/ike ham/s and up 5% overall

nuargins improved

Paving and Construction Services The poor first-half weather also con

tributed to later start on paving projects resulting irs 5% lower sales

revenue in total arid reduction of 6% on like-for-like basis Pricing

rensainenl under pressnire in competitive birlding environment however

cf/Ic/cues imnprr.vements enabled an mmprrnernuen/ in overall margin

Regional Performance

East 65% of EBITDA

lhe East region comprises opera//ens in 22 states the nest lmportant of

which iire Ohio New York Florida Michigan New jersey Pennsylvania

and West \irgi nia The adverse weather conrlitioas in the first hmiif Iran

the greatest impact on the MinI-Atlantic nlivision which reporterl lower

results than ri 2ttl hs the Northeast rlivi sian 2013 results henefitenl

born the inclusion rd incquisi/ions completed at the end of 201 and

operating results improverl The Central division profits syere broanily

consistent wi/li 201 with lower so/nInes offset by improved prices The

residential market in Finn da continued its upvvarnl trenni contritiatimsg to

strong volumes better prIces aerl margin growti and positively

impacting performance in the Southeast rI/vision Overall operating

profit fnir the East region was higher than 2112 Wi Ii volumes 6% 4% mint

9% aheail nil 2012 for aggregates aspliai/ mmnl reidvmixed concrete

respectively

West 35% of EBITDA

lhe West region also has operations in 22 states the most important of

which mire Utah lexas Washing/on Missonni Iowa Kansas arid

Mississippi Poor wei-ither conditions that persisted tlsrough tn mini-

August affecterl results in be/h the Central West and Mountain West

nhivisions with reduction in large infrastructure con/macts iii Utah

furtber contributing to the lower on/comae in Mountain West compareni

with 2012 More positively the Northwest division saw substantiid

innprovemnent over 201 ls record lows With overall nlecfines in asphalt

and readynnixed concrete vnilumes rif 14% and 311 respectively only

partly offset by increases in aggregates volumes of 4% operating profit

was lower than in 2012

Outlook

We expect that GOP growth in 2tt14 will be similar to 2013 ann /hiat

resirlential construction will continue to advance With the increase in

hoissino non-residential construction shea 14 also see an improvement

While Federal fumsding for infrastructure is expected to be hi line with

2013 state fIscal conrh/ions continue to improve with more states

introducing adrhitional infrastructure funning mnuasnnes The increase in

the Transportation Infrastructure Finance ann innovation Act TIFIA

lunnling should also give states greater opportunities annl optinins to

benefit from pniva/e sector inivolvemnemit in highway projects we expect

tine impact ni/ these investments to be mere medium to long-term

Overall we expect 2014 like-forlike volumes for aggregates anrl asphalt

to be broarily similar tn 2013 with readvmixenl concrete yolumnes

expannhing sligimtis
rhue to an inproving resinlential markrrt ilirgetenl

pride increases in till prorluc/ lines nomnbinenl wi/h efficiency

improvements and s/aliilits in tise energy markets are expected to ieanl ni

anmother \ear of mnargin expansion in 2014
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Cay Products 5% of EBTDA

Penn rosicfontid uwlrkets in the UK expeieuucod signihcant grolntfi
due to

the gclverulisneu1ts 11llp III Buy scheme md induustrn hrick vu fumes

finished 9K ahoad of 2012 Se poco iocroases nnoro also aeluieved

nod despite higher natural gas costs operati 114 piolit lviii ahead oi 21112

di ur chi hcusiriosses io tfie Netherionrfs wind l-Pdaiud wuIre iruipactiill
liv

weaker rosidcnut lail deounncf inn very compotlti markets with volinuies

arId prices uaider pressure We decided to close part of our clay hcusiuiess

liii
the Ned erlaiicls coritrihntiog to tiic overall increase in restrcictciriulg

cfiargIns cilrunpared nnitlm 211 Operating resiufis Icr ocur day ho siniess

oneriu nvere furlladfv hi hoe nni tIn 211

Lightside Buiding Products 45% of EBTDA

Witlu greater exposure
to Clue repairs sector activity iui clur liglitside

prOdilcls husiness was less impacted thou in our ctlncrllte huisinoss

%V hue tracl log levels in the secoind halt ill tIle year onere hroadly ill line

nv itlu 2012 weaker tradiung
in key uwirkets ie the tIrst hal led to

reducti on inn onemalI operatiuug profit With Ionver cilostrdict 1111 activity III

IL
nriaior

onarkets clperat uig proht err tinns Cruet/on Aecessolies was

hehioct 2012 due to fower VIII ones and continiwog unuargiul pres5ure The

Ocutdoor Secnirjlv nrid Flleirlp husirasses idso experiounced fihcu1t

markets aid volumes were hinhiinnl 20 12 howevor due to cist recfciction

rrueosuires operating puot It incus ahead of la5t year Ocir Sit iuitens Cr /hrrl/nps

hcsiuiess which is coocoumtuatell in Germuiarmv anmcl the Netherlands

hiwefiteci troujr stahle demand aind the cwuitrihut ion from 2112 aclfcnsitions

iund opi-lratlng profit was aheacf ot pnior year

Outlook

Maoageruieot expect that iesofts mi 2114 omiii shuomi loiprclveioent

prilruarllv
clriveui ho cwutlnuecf strong puivate houniung demand in the UK

anif reconeu\ imu our Gernian Lauofscapuimg 0011 Jarush Stucictnual

Goricmete husinesses Markets icr the Notherlaunds are expected to dccl ore

iIgiiw ispecudIv in nuewhcu Id coinstrcict iou and hirther natoruahsotouo

prograralodis are heilng irnpleioerited to lielfo counteract tine oegative

inpact 011 results imanice is expected to rernalul cfuuileogfuig in 2014 Flue

ocitf ocmk for Cocist.ructiotu Accesmorles and for Shutters it Awnings is noIre

faxowahle Iverail safes for Ecnrope Prcictucts are aotlcnfeted to ciclrease

slightly in 2014 and coodmined onitfi couuimaercial aunil operatidluual

excellence progranumues and the rooact of puevi 010 restruuctduriuig amid

cdlii savings 1dflltIlViiiO s.fuouid contruhute to an iwfireve.werlt in

Imperat mug IuOfit

111

100 47

It

04 tucYppeat1n pro ft Cmi prOfnt ran po Re trtun urun amount to million 01 milionf

en ion ftp in moon mi/fr 201 nil frrp irrnent so 414 mi/ti nw in on 01 mit/roe
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BIT ott op tin it to roOt is di po stat ii ing mount to 11 mill 01 million

Imp am nt oh 01 71 million in urr 201 millionl

The commentary below excludes the adverSe unpact ol impairment

charges on operating profit

recovery in residential ceustruction in the United States and an

ongomg ck-np ovendl ecorionuc activity heiped Americas Products

improve its results in 2013 ike-for-I ike sales weat 11% ahead of last ear

The impact of input cost pressures was more then offset by continued

tight
fucus on operational efficiency and targetee pricing improvements

As result with the bench of organic growth modest pricing henehts

cost reduction initiatives and contributions from acquisitloris the

segmeutaclueved significant increase in operal ing profit mud margin

Frmr acqui itions were completed in 2t31 at total spend ol 323 nailliun

Of particular uote was the
accluisi

lion by our Arctu tectural Prod nets

Group Al-C ot hiirdscape nil masonry operations both in Western

Canada seven hcihties ann the Carolinas plants extending our

toritpnnts of co at prorluct categories in to uew markets The Canadian

acquisition estaelishes APC as the only ernst-to-coast mann lecturer ol

masonry and hardscape pronl nets

Architectura Products 50% of EBITDA

APC is leading supplier of mosonry and hardscape products packaged

lawn and garden products clay brick and fencing solutions in addition

to contractor-hasenl new constructi on the OIY aurl prolessiunal CMI

segments are significant curl-users After slow start the business

henehlterl fioni improving new residential constvoctiru increasing RMI

spend and kivroirahle weather in thes econd ha if el the year However

overall growth was dampened somewhat by weak recovery in the non

resrlential segment Ci-nerallv activity was morn robust in the West ann

South while remaining more chal lengerl in the Northeast Midwest and

Eastern Canada lhe improving housing market together wit ii product

innovation any crimmercial initial ives drove gains across most

businesses while further cost reduction mean res ann selecterl price

im provianelrts offset the impact of higher input costs Overall APC

recorded higher operating profit for the year reliecting 3% increase in

like-for-like salns margin at provemen anrl solid contribution hem

recent acquisitions

Precast 25% of EBITDA

The Precast groi mann factures broad range ef valee-adiled concrete

anrl polvmimr-hased predicts priniarily for utility infrastructure

applications he business saw an improved market environment in

2013 and registererl solinl
gioris as growth initistives continued tn rleliver

Improven outs vjere seen in most regions with particnhmr progress in the

Great Plains nothern California and Mini-Atlantic regions

Ceiunnercial anc infrastructure markets remained generally sutdned hut

residential niemand 15 well as energy anmni envirennient-related markets

continuenl to show positive trends

In onir traditional utility and structural precast pronlucts businesses

vnlunnes increased 5% over 201 and Ii igher input costs were recovered

through pric increases- Overall like-for-like sales increased by ti% ann

operating profit advamiced significantly

BuHdingEnvelope 20% of EBTDA

Tfie nildinghnveloje group is North Americas leading supplier at

architectural glass and aluminium glazing systems to close the building

envelope New non-residential building activity key market segment

for this business nvas largely flat in 201 resnl tOg in chailengh market

conditions Despite thus backdrop mmgrong initiatives to gain nnarket

share armd nhftimrintiitn the business through innov-ative product and

technology utferings nirove solid lop-line growth Organic sales rose

14% ontpacing the overall market The Architectural Class and

Storefront division benefiienl from inn improved pricmg environmuen

resilient non-residential RMi activity amnl generally mere favourable

product mi
mix Onu Engineered Glazing Sstei-as ml ivision enjevenl

increaseni activity as major project work progresseni With
ightt

focus en

cost control product qnmahitv
mmml improved procnsses time lmsiness

nieliverenl operiiting profit improvement

South America 5% of EBITDA

Results for err operations in Argentina inuproved compared with 21112

production and sales mix changes contnitmtenl to an increase in volumnes

prices and marginal contrilmtion in the floor and wall td esegments

Results from damn businesses in Cli il nvere down on 21112 with moniest

ttiar ml specialiseni construction pronlucts offset by lower prices mi oar

glass fironi
mints due to increaseni competition Overall sales emS operating

lroht fnir nmr South American operations were higher than in 2tt 12

Ouflook

WitIm the hacknlrup of
immmpnev 0mg resinlential activity aninl some positive

nnlicators fmin non-residential construct iomi demnamimi we expect further

organic sales growth in 2114 Combimmed with the impact of 2tt12 ann

2113
iccq

misitions ann the benefits of internal cost ann process immuti au w-s

we expect to recurS improveni operating margin amol protit mm 2114
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Americas Distribution
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Board of Directors

Nicky Hartery

IThairinnn

Appointed to the Board Jane 2004

Nationality Irish

Age 02

Committee membership Acquisitions

Coninnttee Finance Gnnindhee

Nonunation anc Corporate Governance

.onurr000e Reninneration Cornnnttee

Skills and expernince NicE was Vice President of unuofacturi
lug

and Bosiness Operations for Dell Inc.s Enrope.Niddle East and Abica

EMEA operations froni 2000 to 2000 Prior to joining Dell he was

Executive Vice President at Eastman Kodak rid prevooslv held the

p051 on of President and Chief Execoti Officer at Verhathn Corporation

based in the Urnterl States Quail/lent /ons GAS2 F/El Mi/A

External appointments Chief Executive if Prodigi urn consulting

cornpany which provides business advisory services uonrnxecntive

director of Musgrave Group plc privatelyowned international bind

retailer and ol Eircoin Lindted telacornniuuicatioris services provider

in Ireland

Athert Manitod

Clue Execu I/vs

Appointed to the Board Jurnarv 20t0

Nationality irish

Age 51

Committee membership Acquisitions

Corninittee Finance Conunittee

Skills and experience Albert joined CEO in lOft Prior to ins he was

Chiel Operating Ofhce.r with prisite equity grroip tie was appointed

Chief Operating Ofticer and to the CR11 Board in January 2009 arid as

Group Chief Executive with efburt frrun January 2014 Prior to ins

appointnient to the GRH Board Albert held variety of senior positions

including Finance Llirector and subsequently Managing Director of the

Europe Materials Division and Group Developirient Director rf CR11 lie

has extensive experlence of the ho idi ugs niaterals industry and CR1-is

international expansion Quolilicntiuns ECI24MBA MRS

Maeve Carton

/inanice L/recti

Appointed to the Board Mae 2010

Nationality Irish

Age 55

Conmittee membership Arquisitirins

onnuittee Finance Conunittee

Skills and experience Since joining CR11 in lOtttt Maeve has held

nurnher of roles in the Group Flnioce area and was appainted Group

Controller in 2002 Plead of Group Fuiarire in January 2009 niunl to

the position of Finance Director in Mae 201 She has hroadwauging

experience of CRHs reporting control budgetary ad capital expenditure

processesancl has been extensively involved in ti/El--Is i-nail nation ii

acquisitions Prior to joining CR1-i she wurked for nrnuber of years

as chartered arcountant in an international ucouataricy
1iractinfu

Qnoli/icotions fm/A FGA

External appointments Direct or of The British Irish Chirn her of

Cornrnerce business ann eniplovers onganisation

Mark Towe

Inn nm 1//ui 0/du out/f br

Appointed to the Board July 2008

Nationality Uusitenl States

Age 64

Committee membership Not Applicable

Skills and experience Mark joined CR1 in 997 In 2000 he was

appnunted President nil Oldcastle Materials Inc and hec.anie the Chief

Executive Oflicer of tins Division in 200t3 Lie was appointed to ins

current position of Chief Executive OffIcer of Oldcastle hic the holding

company fnir CRHs operatluns in he Americas in July 2018 With inure

han 40 years of experience in the building rnaterials industry he has

overall responsihihtv hum the Gmaups operations in the Anierinas

Booed of b/rectoes- conaaued ovenlincij
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Don McGoiiern

esei lll Iiiw Ioz

Appointed to the Board Juls 211.3

Nationalitt ted slalis

Agi 1u2

Committee membership At di anna lien

iuoririol eplu

Heather Ann McSharry
son iintn Tjie 31

Appointed to th Board lruia 2112

Nationality ii SO

Age 32

Conimittee men hership iiii nil let

Dan OiConnor
sea isic it/is Iii tar

Appointed to the Board June 2000

Nationality dish

Age

orornittee mimbership Aidil oinni lIne

ifliTili 11 Xpil Noini Ia ion ind

Corpou ale Gas er san oinnnl lee

Reiiuunierilioii iinii illee

Henk Rotfinghuis

511 SiC iitii 111w Iou

Appointed to th Board 12 hiunari 201

Nationality Inli Ii

Age ill

oinmittee nannoership No ap plicalul

Skills and experieiu lion is \ic Cli ii nian Aihi sirini il
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Psi Glohiil Iloini Qooiitir titian G\ 2113

Skills and experience llealhi Ann is lonuer \lanagn Direc In

Ireland of Re kill Heuc ki si and Hools Ii lthcai iid is as prey bush

non exe ntis direr br Elm ol Ireland ph

Qnnlijcnlions BCoiunn i/IRS

External appointments Non exi cull se di eiloi ol reeuc ore Ca mipIm
nil Jaza liarmai entimals jili Cli ni luau lltm Hi ik al elaud Pension

Innd IrLisl ens Hoard dO ed ni 11 lrgouoni ii Solu ion In Ui ni ona

IDA Ire Ii nd and in lush lube oh Di mu lois

Skills and experience au loruuei Piesidenl and Cluel 1Aem ul lie
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Corporate Governance Report continued

What criteria are used to determine

the independence of nonexecutive

Directors
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regulations Ernst Young Ireland

and iv where applicable reles an

reports by regulatory bodies on the

performance of Ernst Young

Management also undertakes periodic

reviews of ti effectiveness of the

external auditors the last such review

was conductid in 2009

Ii Ho iii

Ernst Youi have been the Groups

auditors sinc 1988 In last years Audit

Joinrnittee Report Jan Maarleu de

Jung outlined new lequirements of the

Code regarding audit tendering and the

transitional arrangements put forward

by the Finan Ia Reporting Council in

temnis of the iming of any audit tender

in summary implementing the Code

provisions and following the transitional

arrangements would mean that the

Company would need to put the CR11

audit out to tender by the end of the

2015 uidit the interests of fairness

and coinpeti ion we believe it would

not be approariate to exclude Ernst

Young from any tender process Since

the publicati in of last ears Annual

Repoit provisional agreement has been

reached on draft EU regulations the

Regulations the reform of the

audit sector ftc Regulations whicili

are expected to be finalised during the

fIrst half of 14 include reqmrement

for iuandatoiy auditor totat ion In other

words the Regulations in their cuirent

form would pies out Einst Young

hum particr at ing in an audit tender

process If in pleinented the Regulations

vuuld also lecLively uverridu

the requiremants of the Code Ihe

Ceinmi ttee is therefore concluded

that decisi on the timeframne for

putting the idit to tender should

be deferred until the Regulations are

finalised

There are no contiactual obligations

which act to restrict the Committees

choice of external auditor The

Couunittee has considered the risk of

with dran al by Ei nst Young from

the niarket and the potential impact

on the Group were that eventualitl to

material se

H/i

ii an lii

at

Under Irish ompauy law the

incumbent auditor is automatically

re appointed at companys annual

general meeting unless he has indicated

his unwillingness to continue in office

or resolution is passed appointing

someone else or expressl\ providing

that he shall not be rmappointed in

this lespect irish company law differs

from the requirements that apply in

other jurisdictions for example in

the UK where auditors mu net be rm

appointed annually by shareholders

Notwithstanding the provisions of

Irish companY law the Cormnnittee

recommender to the Board that

shareholders should be provided with

an opportunity to have sai on the

continuance in office of Ernst Young

According1 in addition to the usual

resolution to euthorisu the Directums

Ic set tIme remuneration of the auditors

required under irish ompany law the

agenda for the 2014 Annual General

Meeting will contain nombincling vote

on the continuance of Ernst Young in

office as mniditors

Further details in relation to the external

auditors including information on how

auditum objectivity arid independence

maintained are included on page 50

Ernst Bärtschi

And it Connui ttee Chairman

February 2014
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Formal Announcements including the release of the annual and interim results and the

issuance of interim management statements These announcements are typically accompanied

by presontat ions and webcasts or conference calls

Investor Roadshows typically held following the release of formal announcements provIde

an opportunity for the management team to meet existing and/or potenttal investors in

concentrated set of meetings

industry Conferences attendance at key sector and investor conferences affords members of

the senior management team the opportunity to engage with key investors and analysts

Investor Briefings every 1824 months the Company holds capital market days which include

presentations on various aspects of CRHs operations and strategy and provide an opportunity

for investors and analysts to meet with CRHs wider management team

Media Briefings each year the Company provides media briefings on nurrierous issues
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Directors Remuneration Report continued

in cash The ercentage of Mark Towes
bonus in cxci ss of target will be deterred

for three
years

As can be sce from the koy financial

figures on page 201 turned out to be

much more challenging year than

anticipated in oui European operations

However tber was strong discipline in

relation to csnh management which

resulted in net debt remaining broadly in

line with 201 despite total spend of

billion on acquisitions investments

and capital expenditure This resulted in

payout under the cash flow component

The award made to Mark lbwe reflected

the improvements in the Ierformance of

the Groups operations in the United

States which saw likcnfordike sales up

5% in the second half of tbe year and

unproved EEl lDA margins in all three

Americas segments Materials Prod uc Is

and Distributi in

Then was also payout for ear Ii Director

under the personal component of the

lan reflecti achievements in range

of areas relevant to the individu Is

Further detail in relation to the annual

bonus plan fom 2013 are set out 0cm pages

66 to 68

ii

In respect of time award made in 201

under the 200 lh rformance Share Plan

which was subject to relative TR1t

performance the three year period to

31 December 201 the Remuneration

loin in jIbe de ermined in Eebruarl 2014

that 49% of the award had vested Ihe

Companys TSR uformanc over the

period was he ween median and upper

qua tile when assessed against both the

llurofirst 311 Index and the Imilding

materials sector as set out in table 15 on

Page 60

rue grant of options in 201 under the

2010 Scheme did not nmeet the three ear

Earnings Per Share EPS perforniance

eric na and acordmgly the opt ons will

lapse in \pril 2014

Iv ii Ii
Ii mum ii

lbe payout level under Myles Lees five

yena Chief Exi cutive LonyTernx

Incentive Plan the 2009 iliO LlIP
was c778t27 which represents

137o of the potential opportunity of

23 million under the 200tt GEl ITFP

This payout ieflec ts above median lSR

performnanc against our peers
and

strong progress against strategic

objectives in particular cost reduction

cash generation mnd portfolio

dcx elopmnent Details of the components

ol the 2009 CEO LTIP and the payout

lox el are set out on pages 69 to 71

ii

As ii ad icamcd in tIme 2013 November

Interi in Management Statement the

IMS detailed assessment of the

Groups portfolio was commenced in the

latter part of 2013 to identify and focus on

the businesses which offer the most

attractix futLire returns for our

shareholders lhe purpose of the review

was to look at how CR11 can drive returns

and growth in the coming years
The JMS

advised that the review was likely to result

in the decision to nmake disposals of

noincore businesses which together with

the impact ol the continuing difficult

environment in Europe could gix rise to

nonwash impairment charge in our 2013

Consolidated Financial Statements

Having taken into account these

disclosures in the IMS and following

discussion with the Groups external

advisors the Committee determined that it

was measonable to conclude that the

longterm incentmx es xx ith ISR

perfomrnaamce pen
oil ermdi

rig
in December

2013 should vest

IT Sri

As part of the remuneration review the

Rein unei tie Goinmittee scm consici ered

CRHs executive Direct or salary levels

Ihe Committee concluded that tIme salary

for Macye Carton inance Director is

currently positioned below the mar ket

level given her experience axial abrlmtr in

the role and therefore an increase to

f675000 to reflect her experience and

peiIormanc was appropriate with the

increase to be implemented ox en tivo

years sublect to continued individual

amid business pertormanr

Ihe salary for the new Chief Executive

Albert Manifold has been set at

1200100 The Committee believed it

is as appropriate for Albert to be

appointed on broadly the same salary as

the outgoing Chief Executive rather than

phasing the salary in ovem number cml

years given that the fumier Chief

Lceeutmx had receix ccl in mon salary

increases since 2009 mud that therc as mao

cumrent intention ci appoint

meplacenmmeut as Chief Operating Officer

believe that the Rerim uneia lion

Committee has implemented the iroimps

existing pohicic in 2013 in an

mmppropm late manner and has revised the

rem ummeration structures for the Group
for 2114 unix aids in progressive way
using clear principles and introducing

neix best practice measures

Our shareholders and them organi sations

involved in thi nemmimmmmerationi

ccmnsu lt atmcmmm process invested

comisiderable amount oft line amid

resources iii reviewing the lioPosals

pu icling feedback to irs 0mm behalf of the

Reimmmmneration lommmimmittee would like to

thank them fom their valrmmble

contrilut iou

Overall in tinalisang the revised

remnuneraticmmm stiuc tunes amid policies

bcl ieve we have responded in fur and

balanced way to the feedback we received

and wcmulcl
encourage all shareholders to

vcmte in fmmvour cf each of thmc three

memnunenmti on riml ated resoluticmns to be

put the 2014 Amimmuab Gemmeral Meetimig

Dan YConmier

Reammu mica ation Comnn am ttee Chairman

Iebmummry 2114

EBITDA is defined as earnings before interest

taxes depreciation emortisrition asset impairment

charges profit on disposa/s and the Group share

of equity accountd investments result after tax
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Directors Pemuneration Report coitinued

Annual 80% of award based on financial performance No changes proposed The Committee considered that metncs for

Bonus profit EPS growth cash flow returr on net the annual bonus plan remo appropriate

assets
The Remuneration Committee has committed

robust and challenging
to increase the level of disclosure in relation to

20% based on individual personal safety and bonus payments in the Directors Remuneration Table 12 on page 68 summarises the bonuses

strategic goals Report paid between 2009 and 2013

Two thirds of maximum bonus awarded for 50% of maximum bonus awarded for delivering The payout level for
target performance is

delivering target performance target performance being reduced to bettor reflect typkal market

norms

Maximum award size of Maximum award size of 150% of salary for all The total remuneration opportunity is being

executive Directors rebalanced to bettor reflect typical market
Irish based Directors 120% of salars

practice and to provide an increased

US based Director 135% of
salary

incentive for significantly outperto mirig kcy

annual
targets

Any bonus award greater than target performance 25% of all bonus awards deferred for three this provide simpler and more coneistent

deferred for three years years approach to bonus deferral

he Remuneration Committee will look at

increasing the level of deferral over time

No malus provisions Malus provisions for deferred share awards to Best practice provision

provide the
ability to scale back awards prior to

vesting in the event of material

misstatement serious reputatiorial damage or

the Company suffering serious losses

Performance Vesting based on relative TSR perfor siance Vesting based SR incentivises management to outperform

Share Plan against sector peer group 50% of award and key peers

the Eurofirst 300 croesmector index 50% of
75% on TSR performance against

aw rd 2006 PerfOrmance Share P/rrff

sector peers and Cumulative cash flow supports dividend

delivery arid business development activity25% on cumulative cash flow target

2014 Pemlorrrrance Share Plan

3year perform wce period 3yeor performance period The year post vesting holding period was

introduced to increase shareholder alignment
No post yes ing holding period Vosted awards will be required to be held for

further years postvesting

Annual award size of up to 150% of salary with Annual award size of Award levels reflect the tact that no further

awards also being granted under the Share awards will be granted under the Share

Option Plan up to 150% of salary at the CEO
CEO 250% of salary

Option Plan and the CEO LTIP

LTIP see below Other executive Directors 200% of salary and

Awards in exceptional circumstances will be

limited to 350% of base salary

No formal rules for operation of malus provisions Males provisions for unvested snare awards Rest practice provision

see above annual bonus section for

circumstances in which it may operate

Share Option Vesting hacod no performance again EPS Nn further awards he Committee decided to discontinue tt

Scheme growth targets use of the Share Option Scheme to simplify
Award opportunity incorporated into the 2014

the reward structure

Performance Share Plan

3-year performance period

Annaal award size 01150% of salary

CEO yEar cash tIP No further awards The Committee decided to discontinue If me

Long-Term use of the CEO LI IP to simpi fy the reward

incentive Plan
Awards based on relative TSR EPS growth and Award opportunity incorporated into the 2014

structure

strategic development of the Group Performance Share Plan

Maximum award of 40% of cumulative salary

over the period
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keov Bid Dir iv 00 gui Ii 00 th rul tin to ppointm nt

4nd p1 nt of Dir or umm ri he ion rd of ctor in thi port

94 id in the following tion of the or ov rn no port mbor hip of

oard ge 42 Dir tor tir nt nd tion pag nd Memor ndum nd

Acid istion on pag Tb hi utiv will nt into rvi nt th

in ip IC rrr of which umm ri on 87 th ir Remun ration port nd

ci to in rp in is ci of ci ir or port Tb mp ny

mor ndum and Mi of Or tion whi ii hi on lb RH it sr iso

dtob tin orpor in hi rtofth Dir tor port Tb t3rouph ci mb nking

iii nd bond in whi quir ym nt in th vent thot ch ng

in control ur with hr Comp ny In ciditi Comp ny option

rIo nc ntain ng rol pr vi ion whi all for

th ti no th abilitvof reop ion ndlhev ingot rd irith

cv th ch of cont ol or with ct to th Comp ny

Fo purp of tutory In um nt 77/ 007 Tr par Dir ctiv 004/109/

guI ion 007 inabilityR ci lubli hecionth CRHw it oh

in orpor ci tht ci of Dir tor port to eth with th following ti of thi

nnu rep ci Ch irrn sn Introdu Ii on th gy view ion on

th mi rform vi on to 35 th ci ii rning din ry

har in th old ci in nt do ii Id nv live fin nd

in trum in not th ci ii th of Tr ury in no nd ci ii of

mploy in not

which is the Groups reporting currency

together with declines in the euro caine of the

Gro ups riot irivesimen Is which are

denominated in wide basket cd currencies

other than the euro

iuipriiroien review of CR11

portloim bus.inesses .is currei sly orutoing

and sri orderly disposal process is un.d.e.rwtr

for 45 business units which rho not meet the

Gronps future returns objectives this has given

rise to goorhwi Ii mipinrrnent charge of f17t

uii1hcu in the 2013 financial year ho the
light

of current conditions and outlook the Group

does riot anticipate further mpalrmtuit to ansi

as the portfolii riiview continues

Significant unidenperlorruance in any of GRHs

naior rasheneratmg units or the rlivestnierit

of businesses in the future itias give rise to

fortiier material write-clown of goodwill which

would have sri additional suhstant hil inipact cu

the Groups income ann enhoitv

Inspections be Public Cojnponv Accounting

Oceisiglit Bnord PGAOB Our auditors like

other rnrhepeudent registered rihlic accounting

firms operating in Ireland and nuniher of

other European countries are tint currently

pernutlerl to he subjeit to inspection by the

PGAOFJ mod its surhi mnvestors are deprived of

the henefits rif PGAOLI inspections

As deirionistraterh by GRE-Is recornh the Groups

inanagenient team list substantral cowl long

orper -mci ha riealinig wit.h t.he unpact of these

risks The mi echanisnis through whirh the

principal risks ant uncertainties anc managed

are addressed in the Risk Management ann

Internal Control secti in of the Corporate

Governance Report

Disclosures relating to tln Groups greenhouse

gas emniss ns arm contained in the Measuring

Performance arid the Sustainabilitv

Governance sect ions mi pages to

attributahile prinnari iv to asset valuations

changes hi liond virlds ann longevity hIi

anld.itioni to future service contributiunis

signiticant cash contrihutcons mac he
renp

nrcid

to reisiediate dejicits applicable to past nis

lnisuro net couni iiporflrs is its worlnhwimhe

insurance prcigraninie the Group carries

appropriate levels rif insurance for typical

businiess risks inclunlirig produit liability with

various li-aiding
insurance companies However

iu the event of the failure of one dir Entire nif its

insoranie counterpartles the Group could be

impacterl 1w losses where recovery frnun smch

cosinterparties is unit possible

loreign cnilrelicy
tionslotioni CR1 ls act lvi ties

are conducterh primarily in the lnnal currency

of the country of operatimni resulting in hosv

levels of foreign cnrreucv transactional risk

hhsr prncpah frireign exchiangi- risks to wh ichi

the Consohidaterh 1iuaniial Statements art

exposed per lain to adverse isiovements iiii

reported resmdts when translated into euro

Resolutinin tnt be
pnnfifoisenh at lhi 2114 Annual

General Meeting deals with the 2113 Directors

Remoneiation Report excluding the

Remuneration Puhicv as set out mi pagor 51 to

711 which tlie Iltoarmh has agginri checicherh to

hirmsselmit to sharebolnlers for liii
Inirhloses

ot

nomi-binching advisory vote hfns is in firm svithi

international best pmlinticcr

Resolritinini to be proposed at the 2014 Annual

General Meeting cleaR withi Il-icc Rennmioiation
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statements for each financial year which give

true aod fair view of the assets liabilities

fioaocial positioo of the Parent Company and

of the Group aod of the profit or loss of the

Group taken as whole for that period

Consolidated Fioaocial Statements

In preparing the Conaolidated Financial

Statements the Directors are required to

select suitable accounting policies and then

apply them consistently

make judgements and estimates that are

reasonable and prudent

comply with applicable International

Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by

the European Union subject to any material

departures disclosed and explained in the

financial statements and

prepare the financial statements on the going

concern basis unless it is inappropriate to

presume that the Group will continue in

business

The Directors are required by the

Transparency Directive 2004/109/EC

Regulations 2007 and the Transparency Rules

of the Central Bank of Ireland to include

management report containing fair review of

the development and performance of the

business and the position of the Parent

Company and of the Group taken as whole

and description of the principal risks and

uncertainties facing the Group

The Directors confirm that to the best of their

knowledge they have complied with the above

requirements in preparing the 2013 Annual

Report and Consolidated Financial

Statements The considerations set nut above

for the Group are also required to be

addressed by the Directors in preparing the

financial statements of the Parent Company

which are set nut on pages 145 to 149 in

respect of which the applicable accounting

standards are those which are generally

accepted in the Republic of Ireland

The Directors have elected to prepare the

Parent Companys Financial Statements in

accordance with Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice in Ireland Irish GAAP
comprising the financial reporting standards

issued by the Accounting Standards Board and

published by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants in Ireland together with the

Companies Acts 1963 to 2013

The Directors are responsible for keeping

proper books of account which disclose with

reasonable accuracy at any time the financial

position of the Parent Company and which

enable them to ensure that the Consolidated

Financial Statements are prepared in

accordance with applicable International

Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by

the European Union and comply with the

provisions of the Companies Acts 1963 to 2013

and Article of the lAS Regulation

The Directors have appointed appropriate

accounting personnel including

professionally qualified Finance Director

in order to ensure that those requirements are

met The books and accounting records of the

Company are maintained at the principal

executive offices located at Belgard Castle

Clnndalkin Dublin 22

The Directors are also responsible for

safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence

for taking reasonable steps for the prevention

and detection of fraud and other irregularitiea

Each of the Directors whose names are listed

on pages 37 to 39 confirms that they consider

that the Annual Report and Financial

Statements taken as whole is fair balanced

and understandable and provides the

information necessary for shareholders to

assess the Companys performance business

model and strategy

On behalf of the Board

Hartery Manifold

Directors

24 February 2014
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Independent Auditors Report

to the members of CRH plc

We have audited the financial statements nf CRH plc fnr the year ended

31 December 2013 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement

the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income the Consolidated

and Company Balance Sheets the Consolidated Statement of Changes in

Equity the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows the Accounting

Policies the related notes to 33 Group and the related notes to 12

Company The financial reporting framework that has been applied in

the preparation of the Group Financial Statements is Irish law and

International Financial Reporting Standards IFRS5 as adopted by the

European Union The financial reporting framework that has been applied

in the preparation of the Company Financial Statements is Irish law and

accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council and

promulgated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland

This Report is made solely to the Companys members as body in

accordance with section 193 of the Companies Act 1990 Our audit work

has been undertaken so that we might state to the Companys members

those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors report and for

no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept

or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the

Companys members as body for our audit work for this Report or for

the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities Statement set

out on pages 94 and 95 the Directors are responsible for the preparation of

the financial statements giving true and fair view Our responsibility is to

audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance

with Irish law and International Standards on Auditing UK and Ireland

Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Boards

Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the

financial statements are free from material misstatement whether caused

by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting

policies are appropriate to the Group and the Companys circumstances

and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors

and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition we

read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report

to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements

and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect

based on or materially inconsistent with the knowledge acquired by us in

the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent

material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for

our Report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion

the Group fimmcial statements give true and fair view in accordance

with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union of the state of the Groups

affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of its loss for the year then ended

the Company Balance Sheet gives true and fair view in accordance

with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland oI the state of

the Companys affairs as at 31 December 2013 and

the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance

with the requirements of the Companies Acts 1963 to 2013 and as

regards the Group financial statements Article of the lAS Regulation

Our assessment of risks of material misstatement

We identified the following risks that have had the greatest effect on the

overall audit strategy the allocation of resources in the audit and directing

the efforts of the engagement team

the assessment of the carrying value of goodwill

the assessment of the carrying value of property plant and equipment

and financial assets

the accounting and disclosure implications arising from the portfolio

review

revenue recognition for construction contracts principally the timing of

revenue recognition and the calculations under the percentage-of-

completion method

the accounting for acquisitions and disposals

Our application of materiality

We determined materiality for the Group to he 25 million which is

approximately s% of adusted pre-tax profit as estimated during the year

We used adusted pre-tax profit
which excludes the impairment of

goodwill and the non-recurring impairment of property plant and

equipment and financial assets arising from the portfolio review This

provided basis for determining the nature timing and extent of risk

assessment procedures identifying and assessing the risk of material

misstatement and determining the nature timing and extent of further

audit procedures

On the basis of our risk assessments together with our assessment of the

Groups overall control environment our judgement was that overall

performance materiality i.e our tolerance for misstatement in an

individual account or balance for the group should be 50% of planning

materiality namely 12.5 million Our objective in adopting this approach

was to ensure that total uncorrected and undetected audit differences in

all accounts did not exceed our planning materiality level

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the

Committee all audit differences in excess of 1.25 million as well as

differences below that threshold that in our view warranted reporting on

qualitative grounds

An overview of the scope of our audit

The overall scope of our audit has been assessed in line with the

principles as described above in scope of the audit of the financial

statements In determining which components in the Group to perform

audit procedures at we utilised size and risk criteria in accordance with

International Standards on Auditing UK and Ireland Following this

assessment of the risk of material misstatement to the Group financial

statements we selected 77 components which represent the principal

business units within the Groups six business segments 33 of these

components were subject to full audit whilst another 44 were subject to

partial audit where the extent of the audit work was based on our

assessment of the risks of material misstatement and of the materiality of

the account balances at those components They were also selected to

provide an appropriate basis for undertaking audit work to address the

risks of material misstatement identified above For the remaining

components we performed other procedures to confirm there were no

significant risks of material misstatement in the Group financial

statements

The audit work at the 77 components was executed at levels of materiality

applicable to each individual entity which were lower than Group

materiality
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The Group aodit team issued detailed instructions to each component

auditor io scope for the Group audit with specific audit requirements and

confirmation requests across key areas The Group audit team performed

site visits at key locations across the Group including attendance at

divisional planning and closing meetings and the component auditors

discussion of the risks of fraud and error

Our response to the risks identified above was as follows

the assessment of the carrying value of goodwill

We considered the determination of the Groups Cash Generating Units

CCGUs In conjunction with our valuation specialists we audited the

models and assumptions used by management in performing their

goodwill impairment testing which have been described in note 15 to

the Group financial statements We challenged managements sensitivity

analyses and performed our own sensitivity calculations

We considered the adequacy of managements disclosures in respect of

impairment testing and whether the disclosures about the sensitivity of

the outcome of the impairment assessment to changes in key

assumptions appropriately communicated the underlying sensitivities

the assessment of the carrying value of property plant and equipment

and financial assets

We challenged the models and assumptions usod by management in

performing their impairment testing of property plant and equipment

and financial assets specifically the reasonableness of the cash flow

projections and discount rates used

the accounting and disclosure implications arising from the portfolio

review

We challenged the identification by management of the 45 business

units determined for disposal as part of the portfolio review As the

decision to dispose of these units is triggering event for an impairment

review we audited the business unit valuation models prepared by

management and in particular challenged the assumptions used in

calculating the fair value less cost of disposal In addition we

considered the adequacy of the disclosures related to the resulting asset

impairment including the sensitivily disclosures

revenue recognition far construction contracts principally the timing

of revenue recognition and the calculation under the percentage-of-

campletion method

We identified and tested the processes over construction contracts

revenue recognition and challenged the reasonableness of the

assumptions made by management in the estinoates of costs to

complete and overall stage of completion In addition we examined

contracts and tested revenue recognised in the period ensuring

compliance with lAS 11

the accounting for acquisitions and disposals

Our procedures focused on the reasonableness of purchase price

allocation adjustments the accounting treatment of deferred

consideration the identification and valuation of acquired intangible

assets and the determination of the profit or loss on disposals

Matters on which we are required to report by the Companies Acts

1963to2013

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we

consider necessary for the purposes of our audit

In our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Company

The Company Balance Sheet is in agreement with the books of account

In our opinion the information given in the Directors Report is consistent

with the financial statements and the description in the Corporate

Governance Report of the main features of the internal control and risk

management systems in relation to the process for preparing the Group

Financial Statements is consistent with the Group Financial Statements

The net assets of the Company as stated in the Company Balance Sheet

are more than half of the amount of its called-up share capital and in

our opinion on that basis there did not exist at 31 December 2013

financial situation which under Section 40 of the Companies

Amendment Act 1983 would require the convening of an

extraordinary general meeting of the Company

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the ISAs UK and Ireland we are required to report to you if in

our opinion information in the Annual Report is

materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial

statements or

apparently materially incorrect based on or materially inconsistent

with our knowledge of the Group acquired in the course of performing

our audit or

is otherwise misleading

In particular we are required to consider whether we have identified any

inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired during the audit and the

Directors Statement that they consider the Annual Report is fair balanced

and understandable and whether the Annual Report appropriately

discloses those matters that we communicated to the Audit Committee

which we consider should have been disclosed

Under the Companies Acts 1963 to 2013 we are required to report to you

if in our opinion the disclosures of Directors remuneration and

transactions specified by law are not made

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

the Directors Statement set out on page 95 in relation to going concern

the part of the Corporate Governance Report relating to the Companys

compliance with the nine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance

Code specified for our review and

certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on Directors

remuneration

Breffni Maguire

for and on behalf of Ernst Young

Dublin

24 February 2014
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Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating costs

Group operating profit

Profit on disposals

Profit before finance costs

Finance costs

Finance income

Other financial expense

10 Share of equity accounted investments loss

Loss/profit before tax

11 Income tax expense

Group loss/profit for the financial year

All of the results relate to continuing operations

2013

18031

13314

4717

4617

100

26

126

262

13

48

44

215

80

295

Restated

2012

18084

13161

4923

4118

805

230

1035

271

15

49

84

646

106

540

Consolidated Income Statement

for the financial year ended 31 December 2013

Notes

2467

25

13

13

Loss/profit attributable to

Equity holders of the Company 296 538

Non-controlling interests

Group loss/profit for the financial year 295 540

Basic loss/earnings per Ordinary Share 40.6c 74.6c

Diluted loss/earnings per Ordinary Share 40.6c 74.5c

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the financial year ended 31 December 2013

2013

Cm

Notes

25

28

11

Restated

2012

Group P055/prof it for the financial year 295 540

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years

Currency translation effects 373 51

Losses/gains relating to cash flow hedges

375 50

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years

Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations 162 146

Tax on items recognised directly within other comprehensive income 43 23

119 123

Total other comprehensive income for the year 256 73

Total comprehensive income for the financial year 551 367

Attributable to

Equity holders of the Company 552 366

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the financial year 551 367

Hartery Manifold Directors
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

14

15

16

16

18

25

27

17

18

16

25

23

29

29

29

29

24

25

27

19

28

26

19

24

25

26

Hartery Manifold Directors

Restated

2012

Restated

as at

January

2012

as at 31 December 2013

Notes

2013

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property plant and equipment 7539 7971 8008

Intangible assets 3911 4267 4148

Investments accounted for using the equity method 1340 1422 2073

Other financial assets 23 34 34

Other receivables 93 83 60

Derivative financial instruments 63 120 163

Deferred income tax assets 107 191 274

Total non-current assets 13076 14088 14760

Current assets

Inventories 2254 2333 2179

Trade and other receivables 2516 2520 2542

Asset held for sale 143

Current income tax recoverable 26 17

Derivative financial instruments 17 52 24

Cash and cash equivalents 2540 1747 1246

Total current assets 7353 6812 5999

Total assets 20429 20900 20759

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to the Company equity holders

Equity share capital 251 249 247

Preference share capital

Share premium account 4219 4133 4047

Treasury Shares and own shares 118 146 183
Other reserves 197 182 168

Foreign currency translation reserve 542 169 119
Retained income 5654 6303 6358

9662 10553 10519

Non-controlling interests 24 36 41

Total equity 9686 10589 10560

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 4579 4161 4300

Derivative financial instruments 34 14

Deferred income tax liabilities 1166 1232 1336

Other payables 289 277 184

Retirement benefit obligations 410 653 636

Provisions for liabilities 231 256 244

Total non-current liabilities 6709 6593 6700

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 2754 2775 2717

Current income tax liabilities 151 180 193

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 961 647 458

Derivative financial instruments 19 10

Provisions for liabilities 149 110 121

Total current liabilities 4034 3718 3499

Total liabilities 10743 10311 10199

Total equity and liabilities 20429 20900 20759

CR11 11



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the financial year ended 31 December 2013

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

Hartery Manifold Directors

Treasury Foreign

Issued Share Shares currency Non-

share premium own Other translation Retained controlling Total

capital account shares reserves reserve income interests equity

Em

At January 2013 as reported 250 4133 146 182 169 6287 36 10573

Change in accounting policy
16 16

At January 2013 restated 250 4133 146 182 169 6303 36 10589

Group loss for the financial year
296 295

Other comprehensive income 373 117 256

Total comprehensive income 373 179 551

Notes

29

29

29

12

31

29

29

12

Issue of share capital net of expenses 86
88

Share-based payment expense

share option schemes

Performance Share Plan PSP 14 14

Treasury/own shares reissued 34 34

Shares acquired by Employee Benefit Trust own shares

Share option exercises
19 19

Dividends including shares issued in lieu of dividends 455 456

Non-controlling interests arising on acquisition of subsidiaries

Acquisition of non-controlling interests
13 13

At31 December2013 252 4219 118 197 542 5654 24 9686

for the financial year ended 31 December 2012

At January 2012 as reported 248 4047 183 168 119 6348 74 10583

Change in accounting policy
10 33 23

At January2012 restated 248 4047 183 168 119 6358 41 10560

Group profit for the financial year
538 540

Other comprehensive income 50 122 173

Total comprehensive income 50 416 367

Issue of share capital net of expenses 86 88

Share-based payment expense

Performance Share Plan PSP 14 14

Treasury/own shares reissued 37 37

Share option exercises
16 16

Dividends including shares issued in lieu of dividends 450 454

Acquisition of non-controlling interests

At31 December 2012 restated 250 4133 146 182 169 6303 36 10589
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

14

31

16

20

29

12

12

21

31

215
297

44

26
100

671

54

650

15

96
77

1471

269

110

1092

646

305

84

230

805

686

44

28

14

152

58

1367

258

124
985

2013

Restated

2012

for the financial year ended 31 December 2013

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss/profit before tax

Finance costs net

10 Share of equity accounted investments result

Profit on disposals

Group operating profit

Depreciation charge

Amortisation of intangible assets

Impairment charge

Share-based payment expense

Other primarily pension payments

20 Net movement on working capital and provisions

Cash generated from operations

Interest paid including finance leases

Corporation tax paid

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from disposals net of cash disposed 122 782

Interest received 13 16

Dividends received from equity accounted investments 33 35

Purchase of property plant and equipment 497 544
Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired 336 418
Other investments and advances 78 56
Deferred and contingent acquisition consideration paid 105 30
Net cash outflow from investing activities 848 215

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from exercise of share options 19 16

Acquisition of non-controlling interests 13
Increase in interest-bearing loans borrowings and finance leases 1491 487

Net cash flow arising from derivative financial instruments 64 13

Treasury/own shares purchased

Repayment of interest-bearing loans borrowings and finance leases 586 394
Dividends paid to equity holders of the Company 367 362
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Net cash inflow/outflow from financing activities 601 246

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 845 524

Reconciliation of opening to closing cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at January 1747 1246

Translation adjustment 52 23
kcrease in cash and cash equivalents 845 524

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2540 1747

Reconciliation of opening to closing net debt

Net debt at January 2909 3335
Debt in acquired companies 44 42
Debt in disposed companies 17

Increase in interest-bearing loans borrowings and finance leases 1491 487
Net cash flow arising from derivative financial instruments 64 13
Repayment of interest-bearing loans borrowings and finance leases 586 394

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 845 524

Mark-to-market adjustment 10

Translation adjustment 77 39

Net debt at 31 December 2973 2909

21

21

21

Hartery Manifold Directors
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Accounting Policies

including key accounting estimates and assumptions

Statement of Compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements nf CRH plc have been prepared

in accordance with International Financial Repnrting Standards IFRS

as adopted by the Eoropean Union which comprise standards and

interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards

Board IASB IFRS as adopted by the European Union differ in certain

respects from IFRS as issued by the IASB On January 2013 the Group

adopted IFRS 10 11 and 12 whereas IFRS as issued by the European

Union has an effective date for these standards of January 2014 The

Group chose to early adopt these standards to ensure consistency with its

Annual Report and its form 20-F which is prepared in compliance with

IFRS as issued by the IASB The Consolidated Financial Statements for

the financial years presented would be no different had IFRS as issued by

the IASB been applied

CRH plc the Parent Company is publicly traded limited company

incorporated and domiciled in the Republic of Ireland

Basis of Preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements which are presented in euro

millions have been prepared under the historical cost convention as

modified by the measurement at fair value of share-based payments

retirement benefit obligations and certain financial assets and liabilities

including derivative financial instruments

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by

all the Groups subsidiaries joint ventures and associates to all periods

presented in these Consolidated Financial Statements

Certain prior year disclosures have been amended to conform to current

year presentation

In accordance with Section 1488 of the Companies Act 1963 and Section

71 of the Companies Amendmentj Act 1986 the Company is availing of

the exemption from presenting its individual profit
and loss account to the

Annual General Meeting and from filing it with the Registrar of Companies

Adoption of IFRS and International Financial Reporting Interpretations

Committee IFRIC interpretations

ji The following stondords ond omendments hove been odopted during

the
fin

onciol yeor

lAS Presentotion of Finonciol Stotements amendments

IFRS Finonciol Instruments Disclosures amendments

IFRS 10 Consolido ted Finonciol Stotements

IFRS 11 Joint Arrongements lAS 28 Investments in Associotes ond

Joint Ventures

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 13 Foir Volue Meosurement

lAS 19 Employee Benefits revised

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phose of Surfoce Mine

Improvements to IFRS 2009-2011 cycle

IFRS 11 Joint Arrongements

Under lAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures the Groups net interests in its

joint arrangements were classified as joint
ventures and the Groups share

of assets liabilities revenue income and expenses were proportionately

consolidated Since the adoption of IFRS 11 the Group now accounts for

its interests in joint ventures using the equity method of accounting The

change to equity accounting had no impact on the Groups result after tax

but impacted each line in the Consolidated Income Statement The Groups

Consolidated Balance Sheet was also impacted on line by line basis but

net assets remained unchanged

lAS 19 Employee Benefits revised

The application of lAS 19 revised resulted in number of amendments

to the Groups accounting for retirement benefit obligations The most

significant change was in how the net interest expense was calculated

Under the revised standard the Group no longer takes credit for

the expected return on assets and the net interest expense
has been

calculated by multiplying the discount rate by the net pension liability

both as determined at the start of the annual reporting period adjusted for

contributions and benefit payments in the year

The Groups Swiss schemes contain number of risk-sharing features

Under lAS 19 revised contributions from employees that are set out in

the formal terms of the plan reduce measurements of the net retirement

benefit obligation if they are required to reduce deficit arising from losses

on plan assets or actuarial losses or reduce current service cost if they

are linked to service In addition the defined benefit pension obligations

relating to the Groups Swiss schemes have now been completed using

generational rather than periodic tables this change has been applied

prospectively from January 2013

As required by lAS AccountingPolicies Chonges in AccountingEstimotes

ond Errors the nature and effect of changes arising as result of the adoption

of IFRS 11 and lAS 19 revised on the 2012 reported Consolidated Income

Statement Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Balance

Sheet are disclosed in note on pages 109 and 110 Under the transitional

provisions of IFRS 11 the Group is not required to disclose the impact that

the adoption of IFRS 11 has had on the current period If lAS 19 revised

had not been applied in the current period the Groups net interest expense

would have been lower by approximately 20 million and remeasurement

adjustments recognised in other comprehensive income would have been

approximately 30 million higher

The application of the remaining standards and interpretations did not

result in material changes to the Groups Consolidated Financial Statements

ji IFBS ond IFBIC interpretotions being odopted in subsequent yeors

IFRS Finonciol Instruments as issued reflects the IASBs work on the

replacement of lAS 39 Finonciol Instruments Becognition ond Meosurement

and applies to the classification and measurement of financial assets and

liabilities as defined in lAS 39 and the application of hedge accounting The

Group will assess the impact of IFRS when the final standard including

all phases is issued

There are no other IFRS or IFRIC interpretations that are effective subsequent

to the CRH 2013 financial year-end that would have material impact on

the Group

Key Accounting Policies which involve Estimates Assumptions and

Judgements

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance

with IFRS requires management to make certain estimates assumptions

and judgements that affect the application of accounting policies and

the reported amounts of assets liabilities income and expenses at the

end of the reporting period Management believes that the estimates

assumptions and judgements upon which it relies are reasonable based on

the information available to it at the time that those estimates assumptions

and judgements are made In some cases the accounting treatment of

particular transaction is specifically dictated by IFRS and does not require

managements judgemeut in its application

Management consider that their use of estimates assumptions and

judgements in the application of the Groups accounting policies are inter

related and therefore discuss them together below The critical accounting

policies which involve significant estimates or assumptions or judgements

the actual outcome of which could have material impact on the Groups

results and financial position outlined below are as follows

Impairment of long-lived assets and goodwill Notes 14 and 15

Impairment of property plant and equipment and goodwill

The carrying values of items of property plant and equipment are reviewed

for indicators of impairment at each reporting date and are subject to

impairment testing when events or changes in circumstances indicate

that the carrying values may not be recoverable Goodwill is subject to

impairment testing on an annual basis and at any time during the year if
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an indicator of impairment is considered to exist decision to dispose of

business unit represents one such indicator and in these circumstances

the recoverable amount is assessed on fair value less costs of disposal

basis In the year in which business combination is effected and where

some or all of the goodwill allocated to particular cash-generating unit

arose in respect of that combination the cash-generating unit is tested for

impairment prior to the end of the relevant annual period

Property plant and equipment assets are reviewed for potential impairment

by applying series of external and internal indicators specific to the assets

under consideration these indicators encompass macroeconomic issues

including the inherent cyclicality of the building materials sector actual

obsolescence or physical damage deterioration in forecast performance in

the internal reporting cycle and restructuring and ratianalisation programmes

Where the carrying value exceeds the estimsted recoverable amount

being the greater of fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use

an impairment loss is recognised by writing clown the assets to their

recoverable amount In assessing value-in-use the estimated future cash

flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate

that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and

the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have

not been adjusted The estimates of future cash flows exclude cash inflows

or outflows attributable to financing activities anti income tax For an asset

that dues not generate largely independent cash inflows the recoverable

amount is determined by reference to the cash-generating unit to which

the asset belongs Impairment losses arising in respect of goodwill are nat

reversed once recognised

Goodwill relating to associates and joint ventures is included in the carrying

amount of the investment and is neither amurtised nor individually tested

far impairment Where indicators of impairment of an investment arise

in accordance with the requirements of lAS 39 Financial Instruments

Recognition and Measurement the carrying amount is tested for impairment

by comparing its recoverable amount with its carrying amount

The impairment testing process requires management to make significant

judgements and estimates regarding the future cash flows expected to be

generated by the use of and if applicable the eventaal disposal of lang-lived

assets and goodwill as well as other factors tn determine the fair value of the

assets Management periodically evaluates and updates the estimates based

an the cnnditioiss which influence these variables detailed discussion

of the impairment methodology applied and key assumptions used by the

Group in the context of long-lived assets and goodwill are provided in notes

14 and 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The assumptions and conditions for determining impairments of lang-lived

assets and gaadwill reflect managements best assumptions and estimates

but these items involve inherent uncertainties described above many of

which are not under managements control As result the accounting for

such items could result in different estimates or amounts if management

used different assumptions or if different conditions occur in future

accounting periods

Retirement benefit obligations Note 28

Costs arising in respect of the Groups defined contribution pension schemes

are charged to the Consolidated Income Statement in the period in which

they are incnrrecl The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to pay

further contributions in the event that the fund does not hold sufficient

assets to meet its benefit commitments

The liabilities and costs associated with the Groups defined benefit

pensian schemes bath funded and unfunded are assessed on the basis of

the projected unit credit method by professionally qualified actuaries and

are arrived at using actuarial assumptions based on market expectations

at the balance sheet date The discount rates employed in determining the

present value of the schemes liabilities are determined by reference to

market yields at the balance sheet date on high-quality corporate bands

of currency and term consistent with the currency and term of the

associated post-employment benefit obligations

The net surplus or deficit arising on the Groups defined benefit pension

schemes together with the liabilities associated with the unfunded schemes

are shown either within non-current assets or nan-current liabilities in the

Consolidated Balance Sheet The deferred tax impact of pension scheme

surpluses and deficits is disclosed separately within deferred tax assets or

liabilities as appropriate Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and

losses and the return an plan assets excluding net interest are recognised

immediately in the Consolidated Balance Sheet with corresponding debit

or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the

period in which they occun Remeasurements are nat reclassified to
profit

or loss in subsequent periods

The defined benefit pension asset or liability in the Consolidated Balance

Sheet comprises the total for each plan of the present value of the defined

benefit obligation less the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations

are to be settled directly Plan assets are assets that are held by lang-term

employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance policies Fair value is based

on market price information and in the case of published securities it is the

published bid price The value of any defined benefit asset is limited to the

present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from

the plan and reductions in the future contributions to the plan

The Groups obligation in respect of post-employment healthcare and life

assurance benefits represents the amount of future benefit that employees

have earned in return for service in the current and prior periods The

obligation is computed on the basis of the projected unit credit method

and is discounted to present value using discount rate equating to the

market yield at the balance sheet date an high-quality corporate bonds of

currency and term consistent with the currency and estimated term of the

past-employment obligations

Assumptions

The assumptions underlying the actuarial valuations from which the

amounts recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements are determined

including discount rates rates of increase in future compensation levels

mortality rates and healthcare cost trend rates are updated annually

based an current economic conditions and far any relevant changes to

the terms and conditions of the pension and post-retirement plans These

assumptions can be affected by for the discount rate changes in the rates

of return an high-quality corporate bonds ii far future compensation

levels future labour market conditions and Hi for healthcare cost trend

rates the rate of medical cast inflation in the relevant regions The weighted

average actuarial assumptions used and sensitivity analysis in relation to

the significant assumptions employed in the determination at pension and

other past-retirement liabilities are contained in nate 28 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

While management believes that the assumptions used are appropriate

differences in actual experience or changes in assumptions may affect the

obligations and expenses recognised in future accounting periods The assets

and liabilities of defined benefit pension schemes may exhibit significant

period-on-period volatility
attributable primarily to changes in bond yields

and longevity In addition to future service contributions significant cash

contributions may be required to remediate past service deficits

Provisions for liabilities Note 26

provision is recognised when the Group has present obligation either

legal or constructive as result of past event it is probable that

transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and

reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation Where the

Group anticipates that provision will be reimbursed the reimbursement

is recognised as separate asset only when it is virtually certain that

the reimbursement will arise The expense relating to any provision is

presented in the Consolidated Income Statement net of any reimbursement

Provisions are measured at the present value at the expenditures expected

to be required to settle the obligation The increase in the provision due

to passage of time is recognised as interest expense Provisions arising

on business combination activity are recognised only to the extent that

they would have qualified for recognition in the financial statements of

the acquiree prior to acquisition Provisions are not recognised for future

operating lasses
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Accounting Policies continued

Rationalisation and redundancy provisions

Provisions for rationalisation arid redundancy are established when

detailed restructuring plan has been drawn up resolved upon by tbe

responsible decision-making level of management and communicated

to the employees who are affected by the plan These provisions are

recognised at the present value of future disbursements and cover only

expenses
that arise directly from restructuring measures and are necessary

for restructuring these provisions exclude costs related to future business

operations Restructuring measures may include the sale or termination of

business units site closures and relocation of business activities changes

in management structure or fundamental reorganisation of departments

or business units

Environmental and remediation provisions

The measurement of environmental and remediation provisions is based

on an evaluation of currently available facts with respect to each individual

site and considers factors such as existing technology currently enacted

laws and regulations and prior experience in remediatioo of sites Inherent

uncertainties exist in such evaluations primarily due to unknown conditions

changing governmental regulations and legal standards regarding liability

the protracted length of the clean-up periods and evolving technologies The

environmental and remediation liabilities provided for in the Consolidated

Financial Statements reflect the information available to management at

the time of determination of the liability and are adjusted periodically as

remediation efforts progress or as additional technical or legal information

becomes available Due to the inherent uncertainties described above many

of which are not under managements control the accounting for such items

could result in different amounts if management used different assumptions

or if different conditions occur in future accounting periods

Legal contingencies

The status of each significant claim and legal proceeding in which the

Group is involved is reviewed by management on periodic basis and the

Groups potential financial exposure is assessed If the potential loss from

any claim or legal proceeding is considered probable and the amount can

be estimated liability is recognised for the estimated loss Because of the

uncertainties inherent in such matters the related provisions are based 00

the best information available at the time the issues taken into account

by management and factored into the assessment of legal contingencies

include as applicable the status of settlement negotiations interpretations

of contractual obligations prior experience with similar contingencies

claims the availability of insurance to protect against the downside

exposure and advice obtained from legal counsel and other third parties As

additional information becomes available on pending claims the potential

liability
is reassessed and revisions are made to the amounts accrued where

appropriate Such revisions in the estimates of the potential liabilities could

have material impact on the results of operations and financial position

of the Group

Taxation current and deferred Notes ii and 27

Current tax represents the expected tax payable or recoverable on the

taxable profit
for the year using tax rates enacted for the period Any interest

or penalties arising are included within current tax Where items are

accounted for outside of
profit or loss the related income tax is recognised

either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity as appropriate

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability
method on temporary

differences arising at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets

and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Consolidated Financial

Statements However deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise

from the initial recognition of goodwill in addition deferred income tax is

not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability

in transaction other than business combination that at the time of the

transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit

or loss For the most

part no provision has been made for temporary differences applicable to

investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures as the Group is in position

to control the timing of reversal of the temporary differences and it is

probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future However temporary difference has been recognised to the extent

that specific assets have been identified for sale or where there is specific

intention to unwind the temporary difference in the foreseeable future Due

to the absence of control in the context of associates significant influence

only deferred tax liabilities are recognised where appropriate in respect

of CR1-Is investments in these entities on the basis that the exercise of

significant influence would not necessarily prevent earnings being remitted

by other shareholders in the undertaking

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted

or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply

when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability
is settled Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not

subject to discounting

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of all deductible temporary

differences carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the

extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised The carrying amounts of deferred

tax assets are subject to review at each balance sheet date and are reduced

to the extent that future taxable
profits

are considered to be inadequate to

allow all or part of any deferred tax asset to be utilised

The Groups income tax charge is based on reported profit
and expected

statutory tax rates which reflect various allowances and reliefs and

tax planning opportunities available to the Group in the multiple tax

jurisdictions in which it operates The determination of the Groups

provision for income tax requires certain judgements and estimates in

relation to matters where the ultimate tax outcome may not be certain

The recognition or non-recognition of deferred tax assets as appropriate

also requires judgement as it involves an assessment of the future

recoverability of those assets In addition the Group is subject to tax audits

which can involve complex issues that could require extended periods

for resolution Although management believes that the estimates included

in the Consolidated Financial Statements and its tax return positions are

reasonable no assurance can be given that the final outcome of these

matters will not be different than that which is reflected in the Groups

historical income tax provisions and accruals Any such differences could

have material impact on the income tax provision and profit for the period

in which such determination is made

Property plant and equipment Note 14

The Groups accounting policy for property plant and equipment is

considered critical because the carrying value of 7539 million at 31

December 2013 represents significant portion 37% of total assets at that

date Property plant and equipment are stated at cost less any accumulated

depreciation and any accumulated impairments except for certain items

that had been revalued to fair value prior to the date of transition to IFRS

January 2004

Repair and maintenance expenditure is included in an assets carrying

amount or recognised as separate asset as appropriate only when it is

probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow

to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably All other

repair and maintenance expenditure is charged to the Consolidated Income

Statement during the financial period in which it is incurred

Borrowing costs incurred in the construction of major assets which take

substantial period of time to complete are capitalised in the financial period

in which they are incurred

In the application of the Groups accounting policy judgemeot is

exercised by management in the determination of residual values and

useful lives Depreciation and depletion is calculated to write off the

book value of each item of property plant and equipment over its useful

economic life on straight-line basis at the following rates

Lond ond buildings The book value of mineral-bearing land less an estimate

of its residual value is depleted over the period of the mineral extraction in

the proportion which production for the year bears to the latest estimates of

mineral reserves Land other than mineral-bearing land is not depreciated

In general buildings are depreciated at 2.5% per annum pa.
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Plant and machinery These are depreciated at rates ranging from 3.3% p.a
to 20% pa depending an the type af asset Plant and machinery includes

transport which is on average depreciated at 20% p.a

Depreciation methods useful lives and residual values are reviewed at

each financial year-end Changes in the expected useful life or the expected

pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the

asset are accounted for by changing the depreciation period or method as

appropriate on prospective basis For the Groups accounting policy on

impairment of property plant and equipment please see impairment of

long-lived assets and goodwill

Other Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of consolidation

The Consolidaled Financial Statements include the financial statements

of the Parent Company and all subsidiaries joint ventures and assnciates

drawn up to 31 December each year The financial year-ends of the Groups

subsidiaries joint ventures and associates are co-terminous

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to or has rights to variable

returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect

those returns through its power ever the entity Subsidiaries are fully

consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group

They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases change in the

ownership interest of subsidiary without change in control is accounted

for as an equity transaction

Nan-controlling interests represent the portion of the equity of subsidiary

not attributable either directly or indirectly to the Parent Company and are

presented separately in the Consolidated Income Statement and within

equity in the Consolidated Balance Sheet distinguished from Parent

Company shareholders equity Acquisitions of non-controlling interests

are accounted far as transactions with equity holders in their capacity as

equity holders and therefore no goodwill is recognised as result of such

transactions On an acquisition by acquisition basis the Group recognises

any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the

nan-controlling interests proportionate share of the acquirees net assets

Investments in associates and joint ventures Notes 10 and 16

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and

operating policy decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control

over those policies

joint venture is type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have

joint central of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint

venture Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of the

arrangement which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities

require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control

The Groups investments in its associates and joint ventures are accounted

for using the equity method from the date significant influence/joint control

is deemed to arise until the date on which significant influence/joint control

ceases to exist

The Consolidated Income Statement reflects the Groups share of profit after

tax of the related associates and joint ventures Investments in associates

and
joint ventures are carried in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at cast

adjusted in respect of post-acquisition changes in the Groups share of

net assets less any impairment in value If necessary impairment losses

on the carrying amount of an investment are reported within the Groups

share of equity accounted investments results in the Consolidated Income

Statement If the Groups share of losses exceeds the carrying amount of

an associate or joint venture the carrying amount is reduced to nil and

recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the

Group has incurred obligations in respect of the associate or joint venture

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions income and expenses and any

unrealised gains or losses arising from such transactions are eliminated in

preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements Unrealised gains arising

from transactions with
joint ventures and associates are eliminated to the

extent of the Groups interest in the entity Unrealised losses are eliminated

in the same manner as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is

no evidence of impairment in the Groups interest in the entity

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the value of goods and services supplied and is net of

trade discounts and value added tax/sales tax Other than in the case of

construction contracts revenue is recognised to the extent that revenue and

related costs incurred or to be incurred are subject to reliable measurement

that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group and that

the significant risks and rewards of ownership have passed to the buyer

usually on delivery of the goods

Construction contracts

The Group engages primarily in the performance of fixed price contracts

as opposed to cost plus contracts and recognises revenue in accordance

with the percentage-of-completion method with the completion percentage

being computed generally by reference to the proportion that contract costs

incurred at the balance sheet date bear to the total estimated costs of the

contract

Contract costs are recognised as incurred When the outcome of construction

contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will

be profitable contract revenue is recognised over the period of the contract

When the outcome of construction contract cannot be estimated reliably

contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred

where it is probable that these costs will be recoverable When it is probable

that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue the expected loss

is recognised immediately as an expense Revenue and/or costs in respect

of variations or contracts claims and incentive payments to the extent that

they arise are recognised when it is probable that the amount which can be

measured reliably will be recovered from/paid to the customec

If circumstances arise that may change the original estimates of revenues

costs or extent of progress towards completion estimates are revised These

revisions may result in increases or decreases in revenue or costs and are

reflected in income in the period in which the circumstances that give rise

to the revision became known by management

Segment reporting Note

Operating segments are reported in manner consistent with the internal

organisational mad management structure and the internal reporting

information provided to the Chief Operating Decision-Maker who is

responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the

operating segments

Share-based payments Note

The Group operates Share Option Schemes Performance Share Plan and

Restricted Share Plan Its policy in relation to the granting of share options

and the granting of awards under the Performance Share Plan together with

the nature of the underlying market and non-market performance and other

vesting conditions are addressed in the Directors Remuneration Report on

page 62 The Groups employee share options and shares awarded under the

Performance Share Plan and Restricted Share Plan are equity-settled share-

based payments as defined in IFRS Share-Based Payment

Share options

For share option awards the Group measures the services received and the

corresponding increase in equity at fair value at the grant date using the

trinomial model lattice option-pricing model in accordance with IFRS

2j Fair value is determined on the basis that the services to be rendered

by employees as consideration for the granting of share options will be

received over the vesting period which is assessed as at the grant date

The share options granted by the Company are at market value at date of

grant and are not subject to market-based vesting conditions within the

meaning of IFRS
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Accounting Policies continued

The cost is recognised together with corresponding increase in equity over

the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled

The cumulative expense recognised at each reporting date until the vesting

date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Groups

best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest

The Consolidated Income Statement expense/credit for period represents

the movement in cumulative expense recognised at the beginning and end

of that period The cumulative charge to the Consolidated Income Statement

is reversed only where the performance condition is not met or where an

employee in receipt of share options leaves service prior to completion of the

expected vesting period and those options forfeit in consequence

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest except

for share-based payments where vesting is conditional upon non-vesting

condition which is treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not it is

satisfied provided that all other performance and/or service conditions

are satisfied

Where an award is cancelled it is treated as if it is vested on the date of

cancellation and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised

immediately This includes any award wbere non-vesting conditions

within the control of either the Company or the employee are not met All

cancellations of awards are treated equally

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs

are credited to share capital nominal value and share premium when the

options are exercised

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share

dilution in the determination of diluted earnings per share

To the extent that the Croup receives tax deduction relating to the services

paid in shares deferred tax in respect of share options is provided on the

basis of the difference between the market price of the underlying equity as

at the date of the financial statements and the exercise price of the option

where the amount of any tax deduction or estimated future tax deduction

exceeds the amount of the related cumulative remuneration expense
the

current or deferred tax associated with the excess is recognised directly in

equity

The Group has no exposure in respect of cash-settled share-based payment

transactions and share-based payment transactions with cash alternatives

Awards under the Performance Share P/an

The fair value of shares awarded under the Performance Share Plan is

determined using Monte Carlo simulation technique and is expensed

in the Consolidated Income Statement over the vesting period The

Performance Share Plan contains inter alia total shareholder return-based

and hence market-based vesting condition accordingly the fair value

assigned to the related equity instruments at the grant date is adusted so

as to reflect the anticipated likelihood as at the grant date of achieving the

market-based vesting condition Awards are treated as vesting irrespective

of whether or not the market condition is satisfied provided that all other

performance and/or service conditions are satisfied

Awards under the Restricted Share P/an

The fair value of shares granted under the Restricted Share Plan is calculated

as the market price of the shares at the date of grant reduced by the present

value of dividends expected to be paid over the vesting period

Business combinations Note 31

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business

combinations The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of

the consideration transferred excluding amounts relating to the settlement

of pre-existing relationships the amount of any non-controlling interest

in the acquiree and in business combination achieved in stages the

acquisition-date fair value of the acquirers previously-held equity interest

in the acquiree Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with

business combination are expensed as incurred

To the extent that settlement of all or any part of business combination is

deferred the fair value of the deferred component is determined through

discounting the amounts payable to their present value at the date of

exchange The discount component is unwound as an interest charge in

the Consolidated Income Statement over the life of the obligation Where

business combination agreement provides for an adustment to the

cost of the combination contingent on future events the amount of the

adustment is included in the cost at the acquisition date at fair value

The fair value of contingent consideration at acquisition date is arrived at

through discounting the expected payment based on scenario modelling

to present value In general in order for contingent consideration to become

payable pre-defined profit
and/or profit/net asset ratios must be exceeded

Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration will be

recognised in
profit

or loss unless the contingent consideration is classified

as equity in which case it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted

for within equity

The assets and liabilities arising on business combination activity are

measured at their acquisition-date fair values Contingent liabilities

assumed in business combination activity are recognised as of the

acquisition date where such contingent liabilities are present obligations

arising from past events and their fair value can be measured reliably In

the case of business combination achieved in stages the acquisition-date

fair value of the acquirers previously-held equity interest in the acquiree

is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date through profit
or loss

When the initial accounting for business combination is determined

provisionally any adusstments to the provisional values allocated to the

identifiable assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities if relevant are

made within the measurement period period of no more than one year

from the acquisition date

Goodwill Note 15

Goodwill arising on business combination is initially measured at cost

being the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the net identifiable

assets and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition and relates to the

future economic benefits arising from assets which are not capable of

being individually identified and separately recognised Following initial

recognition goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment

losses If the cost of the acquisition is lower than the fair value of the net

assets of the subsidiary acquired the identification and measurement of the

related assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities are revisited and the

cost is reassessed with any remaining balance recognised immediately in

the Consolidated Income Statement

The carrying amount of goodwill in respect of associates and oint ventures

is included in investments accounted for using the equity method i.e

within financial assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Where subsidiary is disposed of or terminated through closure the carrying

value of any goodwill of that subsidiary is included in the determination of

the net profit or loss on disposal/termination

Intangible assets other than goodwill arising on business combinations

Note 15

An intangible asset is capitalised separately from goodwill as part of

business combination at cost fair value at date of acquisition to the extent

that it is probable that the expected future economic benefits attributable to

the asset will flow to the Group and that its cost can be measured reliably

Subsequent to initial recognition intangible assets are carried at cost less

any accumulated arnortisation and any accumulated impairment losses

The carrying values of definite-lived intangible assets the Group does not

currently have any indefinite-lived intangible assets other than goodwill

are reviewed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date and are

subect to impairment testing when events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable

The amortisation of intangible assets is calculated to write off the book

value of definite-lived intangible assets over their useful lives on straight

line basis on the assumption of zero residual value In general definite

lived intangible assets are amortised over periods ranging from one to ten

years depending on the nature of the intangible asset
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Amortisation periods useful lives expected patterns of consumption

and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end Changes in

the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consomption of future

economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the

amortisation period or method as appropriate on prospective basis

Other financial assets Note 16

All investments are initially recognised at the fair value of consideration

given plus any directly attributable transaction costs Where eqoity

investments are actively traded in organised finasicial markets fair value is

determined by reference to Stock Exchange quoted market bid prices at the

close of business on the balance sheet date Unqooted eqoity investments

are recorded at lustorical cost given that it is impracticable to determine fair

value in accordance with lAS 39 and are included within financial assets in

the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Leases Notes and 30

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership are classified as operating leases Operating lease rentals are

charged to the Consolidated Income Statement on straight-line basis over

the lease term

Inventories and construction contracts Note 17

Inventories are stated at the lower nf cost and net realisable value Cost

is based on the first-in first-out principle and weighted average where

appropriate and includes all expenditure incurred in acquiring the

inventories and bringing them to their present location and condition Raw

materials are valued on the basis of purchase cost on first-in first-nut

basis In the case of finished goods and work-in-progress cost includes

direct materials direct labour and attributable overheads based on normal

operating capacity and excludes borrowing costs

Net realisable value is the estimated proceeds of sale less all further

costs to completion and less all costs to be incurred in marketing

selling and distribution Estimates of net realisable value are based on

the most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are made

taking into consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to

events occurring after the end of the period the likelihood of short-term

changes in buyer preferences product obsolescence or perishability all

of which are generally low given the nature of the Groups products and

the purpose for which the inventory is held Materials and other supplies

held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below

cost if the finished goods in which they will be incorporated are expected

to be sold at or above cost

Amounts recoverable on construction contracts which are included in

receivables are stated at the net invoiced value of the work done less

amounts received as progress payments on account Cumulative costs

incurred net of amounts transferred to cost of sales after deducting

foreseeable losses provisions for contingencies and payments on account

not matched with revenue are included as construction contract balances

in inventories Cost includes all expenditure directly related to specific

projects and an allocation of fixed and variable overheads incurred in the

Groups contract activities based on normal operating capacity

Trade and other receivables Note 18

Trade receivables are carried at original invoice amount less an allowance

for potentially uncollectible debts Provision is made when there is objective

evidence that the Group will not be in position to collect the associated

debts Bad debts are written-off in the Consolidated Income Statement on

identification

Cash and cash equivalents Note 23

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances held for the purpose of

meeting short-term cash commitments and investments which are readily

convertible to known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant

risk of change in value Bank overdrafts are included within current

interest-bearing loans and borrowings in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Where the overdrafts are repayable on demand and form an integral part of

cash management they are netted against cash and cash equivalents for the

purposes of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings Note 24

All loans and borrowings are
initially

recorded at the fair value of the

consideration received net of directly attributable transaction costs

Subsequent to initial recognition current and non-current interest-bearing

loans and borrowings are in general measured at amortised cost employing

the effective interest methodology Fixed rate term loans which have

been hedged to floating rates using interest rate swaps are measured at

amortised cost adjusted for changes in value attributable to the hedged risks

arising from changes in underlying market interest rates The computation

of amortised cost includes any issue costs and any discount or premium

materialising on settlement

Gains and losses are recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement

through amortisation on the basis of the period of the loans and borrowings

Borrowing costs arising on financial instruments are recognised as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred unless capitalised as part

of the cost of property plant and equipment

Derivative financial instruments and hedging practices Note 25

In order to manage interest rate foreign currency and commodity risks and

to realise the desired currency profile of borrowings the Group employs

derivative financial instruments principally interest rate swaps currency

swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts Oerivative financial

instruments are recognised initially at fair value on the date on which

derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair

value The carrying value of derivatives is fair value based on discounted

future cash flows and adjusted for counterparty risk Future floating rate

cash flows are estimated based on future interest rates from observable

yield curves at the end of the reporting period Fixed and floating rate cash

flows are discounted at future interest rates and translated at period end

foreign exchange rates

At the inception of derivative transaction the Group documents the

relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument together

with its risk management objective and the strategy underlying the proposed

transaction The Group also documents its assessment both at the inception

of the hedging relationship and subsequently on an ongoing basis of the

effectiveness of the hedging instrument in offsetting movements in the fair

values or cash flows of the hedged items Where derivatives do not fulfil

the criteria for hedge accounting changes in fair values are reported in the

Consolidated Income Statement

Fair value and cash flow hedges

The Group uses fair value hedges and cash flow hedges in its treasury

activities For the purposes of hedge accounting hedges are classified either

as fair value hedges which entail hedging the exposure to movements in

the fair value of recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm

commitment that could affect profit or loss or cash flow hedges which

hedge exposure to fluctuations in future cash flows derived from particular

risk associated with recognised asset or liability or highly probable

forecast transaction that could affect profit or loss

Where the conditions for hedge accounting are satisfied and the hedging

instrument concerned is classified as fair value hedge any gain or loss

stemming from the remeasurement of the hedging instrument to fair value

is reported in the Consolidated Income Statement In addition any gain

or loss on the hedged item which is attributable to the hedged risk is

adjusted against the carrying amount of the hedged item and reflected in the

Consolidated Income Statement Where the adjustment is to the carrying

amount of hedged interest-bearing financial instrument the adustment

is amortised to the Consolidated Income Statement with the objective of

achieving full amortisation by maturity

Where derivative financial instrument is designated as hedge of the

variability in cash flows of recognised asset or liability or highly

probable forecast transaction that could affect profit or loss the effective

part of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognised

CR1-I 107



Accounting Policies continued

as other comprehensive income net of the income tax effect with the

ineffective portion being reported in the Consolidated Income Statement

The associated gains or losses that had previously been recognised as

other comprehensive income are transferred to the Consolidated Income

Statement contemporaneously with the materialisation of the hedged

transaction Any gain or loss arising in respect of changes in the time value

of the derivative financial instrument is excluded from the measurement

of hedge effectiveness and is recognised immediately in the Consolidated

Income Statement

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires

or is sold terminated or exercised or no longer qualifies for hedge

accounting At that point in time any
cumulative gain or loss on the

hedging instrument recognised as other comprehensive income remains

there until the forecast transaction occurs If hedged transaction is no

longer anticipated to occur the net cumulative gain or loss previously

recognised as other comprehensive income is transferred to the

Consolidated Income Statement in the period

Net investment hedges

Where foreign currency borrowings provide hedge against net

investment in foreign operation and the hedge is deemed to be

effective foreign exchange differences are taken directly to foreign

currency translation reserve The ineffective portion of any gain or loss

on the hedging instrument is recognised immediately in the Consolidated

Income Statement Cumulative gains and losses remain in equity until

disposal of the net investment in the foreign operation at which point the

related differences are transferred to the Consolidated Income Statement

as part of the overall gain or loss on sale

Fair value hierarchy Note 25

For financial reporting purposes fair value measurements are categorised

into Level or based on the degree to which inputs to the fair value

measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair

value measurement in its entirety which are described as follows

Level quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities

Level valuation techniques for which the lowest level of inputs which

have significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable either

directly or indirectly

Level valuation techniques for which the lowest level of inputs that

have significant effect on the recorded fair value are not based on

observable market data

Share capital and dividends Notes 12 and 29

Treasury Shares and own shares

Ordinary Shares acquired by the Parent Company or purchased by the

Employee Benefit Trust on behalf of the Parent Company under the terms

of the Performance Share Plan and the Restricted Share Plan are deducted

from equity and presented on the face of the Consolidated Balance Sheet

No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase sale issue

or cancellation of the Parent Companys Ordinary Shares

Dividends

Dividends on Ordinary Shares are recognised as liability in the

Consolidated Financial Statements in the period in which they are

declared by the Parent Company

Emission rights

Emission rights are accounted for such that liability
is recognised only

in circumstances where emission rights have been exceeded from the

perspective of the Croup as whole and the differential between actual and

permitted emissions will have to be remedied through the purchase of the

required additional rights at fair value assets and liabilities arising in respect

of under and over-utilisation of emission credits respectively are accordingly

netted against one another in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial

Statements To the extent that excess emission rights are disposed of during

financial period the profit or loss materialising thereon is recognised

immediately within cost of sales in the Consolidated Income Statement

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Groups entities

are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in

which the entity operates the functional currency The Consolidated

Financial Statements are presented in euro which is the presentation

currency
of the Group and the functional currency of the Parent Company

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date

of the transaction Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet

date All currency translation differences are taken to the Consolidated

Income Statement with the exception of all monetary items that provide

an effective hedge for net investment in foreign operation These are

recognised in other comprehensive income until the disposal of the net

investment at which time they are recognised in the Consolidated Income

Statement

Results and cash flows of subsidiaries joint
ventures and associates with non-

euro functional currencies have been translated into euro at average exchange

rates for the year and the related balance sheets have been translated at

the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date Adjustments arising

on translation of the results of non-euro subsidiaries joint ventures and

associates at average rates and on restatement of the opening net assets at

closing rates are recognised in separate translation reserve within equity

net of differences on related currency borrowings All other translation

differences are taken to the Consolidated Income Statement

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition of foreign

operation are regarded as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation

are expressed in the functional currency of the foreign operation are

recorded in euro at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction and are

subsequently retranslated at the applicable closing rates

The principal exchange rates used for the translation of results cash flows

and balance sheets into euro were as follows

euro

us Dollar 1.3281 1.2848 1.3791 1.3194

Pound sterling 0.8493 0.81 09 0.8337 0.81 61

Polish Zloty 4.1975 4.1847 4.1543 4.0740

ukrainian Hryvnia 10.8339 10.3933 11.3583 10.6259

Swiss Franc 1.2311 1.2053 1.2276 1.2072

canadian Dollar 1.3684 1.2842 1.4671 1.3137

Argentine Peso 7.2892 5.8492 8.9910 6.4890

Turkish Lira 2.5335 2.31 35 2.9605 2.3551

Indian Rupee 77.9300 68.5973 85.3660 72.5600

chinese Renminbi 8.1646 8.1052 8.3491 8.2207

Average

2013 2012

Year-end

2013 2012
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Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

As noted in the Accounting Policies on page 102 the Group adopted IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and lAS 19 Employee Benefits revised on January 2013 As

required by lAS Accounting Policies Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors the financial impact of the adoption of these standards is outlined below

Year ended 31 December 2012

Adoption of

As reported IFRS 11 lAS 19R Restated

Impact on Consolidated Income Statement

Revenue 18659 575 18084

Costof sales 13562 401 13161

Gross profit 5097 174 4923

Operating costs 4252 134 4118

Group operating profit 845 40 805

Profit on disposals 230 230

Profit before finance costs 1075 40 1035

Finance costs 277 271

Finance income 19 15

Other financial expense 31 18 49

Share of equity accounted investments loss/prof it 112 28 84

Profit before tax 674 10 18 646

Income tax expense 120 10 106

Group profit for the financial year 554 14 540

Basic earnings per Ordinary Share 76.5c .9c 74.6c

Diluted earnings per Ordinary Share 76.4c .9c 74.5c

Impact on Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Group profit for the financial year 554 14 540

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss ir subsequent years

Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations 171 25 146
Tax on items recognised directly within other comprehensive income 28 23

Impact on Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash inflow from operating activities 1025 40 985

Net cash outflow from investing activities 269 54 215

Net cash outflow from financing activities 257 11 246

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 499 25 524
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Adoption of New Accounting Standards continued

Impact on Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2012 As at January 2012

Adoption of Adoption of

As reported IFRS 11 lAS 19R Restated As reported IFRS 11 lAS 19R Restated

8936 928 8008

4488 340 4148

1089 984 2073

36 34

62 60

181 18 163

290 13 274

15082 319 14760

21387 625 20759

4161 4161

6348 10 6358

10509 10 10519

74 33 41

10583 33 10 10560

4463 163 4300

20 20

1492 156 1336

204 20 184

664 15 13 636

252 244

7095 382 13 6700

2858 141 2717

201 193

519 61 458

10 10

121 121

3709 210 3499

10804 592 13 10199

21387 625 20759

2286

2663

24

29

1295

6305

107

121

29

49

306

2179

2542

24

1246

5999

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property plant and equipment 8448 477 7971

Intangible assets 4446 179 4267

Investments accounted for using the equity

method 835 587 1422

Other financial assets 36 34

Other receivables 86 83

Derivative financial instruments 120 120

Deferred income tax assets 197 191

Total non-current assets 14168 76 14088

Current assets

Inventories 2397 64 2333

Trade and other receivables 2592 72 2520

Asset held for sale 143 143

Current income tax recoverable 17 17

Derivative financial instruments 52 52

Liquid investments 31 31

Cash and cash equivalents 1768 21 1747

Total current assets 7000 188 6812

Total assets 21168 264 20900

EQUITY

Other components of equity 4250 4250

Retained income 6287 16 6303

10537 16 10553

Non-controlling interests 36 36

Total equity 10573 16 10589

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 4239 78 4161

Derivative financial instruments 14 14

Deferred income tax liabilities 1301 69 1232

Other payables
296 19 277

Retirement benefit obligations 674 20 653

Provisions for liabilities 257 256

Total non-current liabilities 6781 168 20 6593

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 2841 66 2775

Current income tax liabilities 181 180

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 676 29 647

Derivative financial instruments

Provisions for liabilities
110 110

Total current liabilities 3814 96 3718

Total liabilities 10595 264 20 10311

Total equity and liabilities 21168 264 20900
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Segment Information

CRH is diversified international building materials group which manufactures and distributes range of building materials products from the fundamentals of

heavy materials and elements to construct the frame through value-added products that complete the building envelope to distribution channels which service

construction fit-out and renewal Based on these key strategic drivers across the value chain the Group was organised in 2013 into six business segments

comprising Europe Materials including activities in China and India Europe Products including activities in Australia and Southeast Asia Europe Distribution

Americas Materials Americas Products and Americas Distribution No operating segments have been aggregated to form these segments

Materials businesses are predominantly engaged in the production and sale of range of primary materials including cement aggregates readymixed concrete

asphalt/bitumen and agricultural/chemical lime

Products businesses are predominantly engaged in the production and sale of architectural and structural concrete products clay products fabricated and

tempered glass products construction accessories and the provision of wide range of inter-related products and services to the construction sector

Distribution businesses encompass builders merchanting activities and Do-It-Yourself DIY stores engaged in the marketing and sale of supplies to the

construction sector and to the general public

The principal factors employed in the identification of the six segments reflected in this note include the Groups organisational structure in 2013 the nature of

the reporting lines to the Chief Operating Decision-Maker as defined in IFRS Operating Segments the structure of internal reporting documentation such as

management accounts and budgets and the degree of homogeneity of products services and geographical areas within each of the segments from which

revenue is derived

The Chief Operating Decision-Maker monitors the operating results of segments separately in order to allocate resources between segments and to assess

performance Segment performance is predominantly evaluated based on operating profit During the year the Chief Operating Decision-Maker received

information relating to the results of our joint venture operations on both proportionate consolidation basis and equity accounting basis see note 10 for results

of our joint venture operations As performance is also evaluated using operating profit before depreciation and amortisation EBITDA as defined supplemental

information based on EBITDA as defined is also provided below Given that net finance costs and income tax are managed on centralised basis these items

are not allocated between operating segments for the purposes of the information presented to the Chief Operating Decision-Maker and are accordingly

omifted from the detailed segmental analysis below There are no asymmetrical allocations to reporting segments which would require disclosure

Operating segments disclosures Consolidated Income Statement data

Continuing operations year ended 31 December

Materials Products Distribution Total Group

2012 2013 2012

Revenue

Europe 2266 2383 2376 2477 3936 3956 8578 8816
Americas 4721 4886 3068 2806 1664 1576 9453 9268

6987 7269 5444 5283 5600 5532 18031 18084

Group operating profit before depreciation and amortisation EBITDA as defined

Europe 278 352 119 152 186 217 583 721

Americas 557 555 246 204 89 83 892 842

835 907 365 356 275 300 1475 1563

Depreciation amortisation and impairment

Europe 239 135 525 133 80 72 844 340

Americas 331 276 178 118 22 24 531 418

570 411 703 251 102 96 1375 758

Group operating profit EBIT

Europe 39 217 406 19 106 145 261 381

Americas 226 279 68 86 67 59 361 424

265 496 338 105 173 204 100 805

Profit on disposals ii 26 230

Finance costs less income 249 256
Other financial expense 48 49
Share of equity accounted investments loss iii 44 84
Loss/profit before tax 215 646

See note for details of the impairment charge

ii Profit/loss on disposals note

Europe 148 54 10 205

Americas 19 24 16 25

26 172 55 26 230

iii Share of equity accounted investments loss/profit note 10

Europe 60 98 14 51 85
Americas

53 97 14 44 84

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013

EBITDA is defined as earnings before interest taxes depreciation amortisation asset impairment charges profit on disposals and the Groups share of equity accounted

investments result after tax
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Segment Information continued

Entity-wide disclosures

Section Information about products and services

The Groups revenue from external customers in respect of its principal products and services is analysed in the disclosures above Segment revenue includes

3268 million 2012 3456 million in respect of revenue applicable to construction contracts The bulk of our construction activities are performed by our

Americas Materials reportable segment are for the most part short-term in nature and are generally completed within the same financial reporting period

Revenue derived through the supply of services and intersegment revenue is not material to the Group The transfer pricing policy implemented by the Group

between operating segments and across its constituent entities is described in greater detail in note 32 In addition due to the nature of building materials which

exhibit low value-to-weight ratio the Groups revenue streams include low level of cross-border transactions

Section In formation about geographical areas and customers

CRH has presence in 35 countries worldwide The revenues from external customers and non-current assets as defined in IFRS attributable to the country

of domicile and all foreign countries of operation are as follows regions which exceed 10% of total external Group revenue have been highlighted separately

on the basis of materiality

Operating segments disclosures Consolidated Balance Sheet data

Total assets

Europe

Americas

Continuing operations year ended 31 December

Materials Products Distribution Total Group

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Cm Em Cm Cm Cm

3399 3411 1974 2473 2217 2247 7590 8131

5510 5826 2360 2403 853 814 8723 9043

8909 9237 4334 4876 3070 3061 16313 17174

Reconciliation to total assets as reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Investments accounted for using the equity method 1340 1422

Other financial assets
23 34

Derivative financial instruments current and non-current
80 172

Asset held for sale
143

Income tax assets current and deferred
133 208

Cash and cash equivalents
2540 1747

Total assets as reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheet 20429 20900

Total liabilities

Europe
870 1064 738 716 542 594 2150 2374

Americas 772 890 656 580 255 227 1683 1697

1642 1954 1394 1296 797 821 3833 4071

Reconciliation to total liabilities as reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings current and non-current
5540 4808

Derivative financial instruments current and non-current
53 20

Income tax liabilities current and deferred
1317 1412

Total liabilities as reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
10743 10311

Operating segments disclosures other items

Additions to non-current assets

Europe Property plant and equipment note 14 78 101 67 84 49 70 194 255

Financial assets note 16 68 30 16 71 47

Americas Property plant and equipment note 14 199 212 83 69 21 303 289

Financial assets note 16

352 352 152 169 71 79 575 600

Year ended 31 December

Revenue by destination

2013 2012

Cm Em

As at 31 December

Non-current assets

2013 2012

Cm

Country of domicile Republic of Ireland 278 267 475 497

Benelux mainly the Netherlands
2324 2327 1280 1464

Americas mainly the United States
9468 9285 6488 6822

Other
5961 6205 4547 4877

Group totals
18031 18084 12790 13660

There are no material dependencies or concentrations on individual customers which would warrant disclosure under IERS The individual entities within the

Group have large number of customers spread across various activities end-uses and geographies
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Cost Analysis

2013 2012

Cost of sales analysis

Raw materials and goods for resale 7240 7282

Employment costs note 1974 1946

Energy conversion costs 644 670

Repairs and maintenance 421 411

Depreciation amortisation and impairment 792 559

Change in inventory note 20 37 93
Other production expenses primarily sub-contractor costs and equipment rental 2206 2386

Total 13314 13161

Operating costs analysis

Selling and distribution costs 2893 2892

Administrative expenses 1724 1226

Total 4617 4118

Depreciation amortisation and impairment analysis Cost of sales Operating costs Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Depreciation and depletion note 14 521 538 150 148 671 686

Impairment of property plant and equipment note 14 271 21 275 25

Impairment of intangible assets note 15 375 375

Amortisation of intangible assets note 15 54 44 54 44

Total 792 559 583 199 1375 758

Segmental analysis of 2013 impairment charges

Materials Products Distribution Total

Europe Americas Europe Americas Europe Americas 2013

Annual impairment process note 15 58 10 72

Portfolio review ii 43 60 414 61 578

Included in operating profit 101 60 414 71 650

Portfolio review included in share of equity accounted investments ii 101 105

Total 202 60 414 71 755

Asset impairment charges of 174 million arose in 2012 28 million of which were recorded within operating profit Europe Products 24 million and

Americas Products million

ii Impairments arising from portfolio review

In November 2013 Group-wide portfolio review was initiated to identify and focus on those businesses within our portfolio which offer the most attractive

future returns and to prioritise capital allocation to ensure profitable growth across our network of businesses This review has resulted in the identification

of 45 34 Europe 11 Americas business units which will not meet our future returns objectives and are in line for divestment None of these businesses has

been classified as held-for-sale or as discontinued operations at 31 December 2013 as they did not meet the relevant criteria under IFRS The decision to

divest of these business units has resulted in the need to assess each of them separately for impairment

For each of the business units identified valuation was prepared based on the estimated fair value less costs of disposal The valuations were then

compared to the carrying value of each business and where that valuation fell below the carrying value an impairment charge was taken

The largest impairments have arisen in two businesses within the Europe Products segment amounting to 99 million 58 million goodwill and 41 million

property plant and equipment and 75 million all goodwill The recoverable amount of these businesses is calculated based on their fair value less costs

of disposal income-based valuation approach using real pre-tax discount rates of 8.9% and 9.2% respectively Both businesses serve the residential new
build sector in mature markets

In addition financial asset impairments of 105 million have been recorded see note 10 primarily in respect of re-assessment of the carrying value of two

equity accounted investments in our Europe Materrals segment The recoverable amount of these financial assets is based on their fair value less costs of

disposal income-based valuation approach using real pre-tax discount rates of 9.2% and 9.8% respectively
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Cost Analysis continued

Sensitivity analysis

Fair value less costs of disposal for businesses identified for divestment in the portfolio review was calculated using either an income-based valuation

approach or market-based valuation approach In respect of those businesses that used the latter valuation approach 10% decrease in valuation would

result in an additional impairment of 28 million

In respect of the remaining businesses which employed an income-based valuation approach the following table provides valuation sensitivity analysis

Additional impairment that would arise as result of

0.5% reduction in EBITDA 0.5% increase

as defined margin in pre-tax discount rate

Income-based valuation approach
74 36

Operating Profit Disclosures
2013 2012

Operating lease rentals

hire of plant and machinery
108 99

land and buildings
220 187

other operating leases
47 69

Total
375 355

Auditors remuneration

In accordance with statutory requirements in Ireland fees for professional services provided by the Groups independent auditors in respect of each of the

following categories were

Audit of the Other assurance Tax advisory

Gmupaccountsi services ii services Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

EY Ireland statutory auditor

EY network firms 12 12 15 15

Total 14 14 17 17

Audit of the Group accounts includes Sarbanes-Oxley attestation parent and subsidiary statutory audit fees but excludes million 2012 million

paid to auditors other than EY

ii Other assurance services includes attestation and due diligence services that are closely related to the performance of the audit

EBITDA is defined as earnings before interest taxes depreciation amortisation asset impairment charges profit on disposals and the Groups share of equity accounted

investments result after tax
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Profit on Disposals

2013 2012u 2013 2012

CmEm

Assets/liabilities disposed of at net carrying amount

non-current assets notes 141516 43 432 66 90 109 522

cash and cash equivalents

working capital and provisions note 20 21 21

asset held for sale note 16 139 139

interest-bearing loans and borrowings 17 17
deferred tax note 27

retirement benefit obligations note 28

Net assets disposed 171 451 66 90 237 541

Re-classification of currency translation effects on disposal 14 14

Total 174 465 66 90 240 555

Proceeds from disposals net of disposal costs 26 652 96 133 122 785

Asset exchange note 31 144 144

Loss/profit on disposals 187 30 43 26 230

Net cash inflow arising on disposal

Cash proceeds 26 652 96 133 122 785

Less cash and cash equivalents disposed

Total 26 649 96 133 122 782

ii This relates principally to the disposal of our 49% investment in our Portuguese joint venture Secil which was part of the Europe Materials segment

Employment

The average number of employees is as follows

Total

Year ended 31 December 2013 Materials Products Distribution Group

Europe 9440 15613 11388 36441

Americas 18216 17276 3709 39201

Total 27656 32889 15097 75642

Year ended 31 December 2012

Europe 9473 16129 11174 36776

Americas 18106 15546 3532 37184

Total 27579 31675 14706 73960

Employment costs charged in the Consolidated Income Statement are analysed as follows

2013 2012

Em

Wages and salaries 2915 2876

Social welfare costs 360 359

Other employment-related costs 464 432

Share-based payment expense note 15 14

Total retirement benefits expense note 28 201 181

Total 3955 3862

Total charge analysed between

Cost of sales 1974 1946

Operating costs 1959 1891

Finance costs net applicable to retirement benefit obligations note 22 25

Total 3955 3862

Business

disposals

Disposal of other

non-current assets Total

2013

Em
2012

On 25 February 2013 the Group transferred its 26% stake in Corporacion Uniland to Cementos Portland Valderrivas in exchange for 99% stake in

Cementos Lemona an integrated cement readymixed concrete and aggregates business
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Directors Emoluments and Interests

Directors emoluments which are included in administrative expenses in note and interests are given in the Directors Remuneration Report pages 59 to 90

of this Annual Report

Share-based Payment Expense

2013 2012

Share option expense

Performance Share Plan and Restricted Share Plan expense
14 14

Total
15 14

Share-based payment expense is reflected in operating costs in the Consolidated Income Statement

Share option schemes

In May 2010 shareholders approved the adoption of new share option and savings-related share option schemes which replaced schemes approved by

shareholders in May 2000 The general terms and conditions applicable to the new share option and savings-related share option schemes were set out in

circular issued to shareholders on 31 March 2010 copy of which is available on www.crh.com

Due to the immateriality of the savings-related schemes expense and the level of savings-related share options outstanding detailed financial disclosures have

not been provided in relation to these schemes

Details of options granted under the share option schemes excluding savings-related share option schemes

Weighted average Number of Weighted average

exercise price options exercise price

Number of

options

20122013

Outstanding at beginning of year
18.84 23295955 19.13 23591756

Granted 16.19 3853400 15.19 3889100

Exercised 13.21 1245029 1.98 1010780

Lapsed
18.53 4105439 18.68 3174121

Outstanding at end of year
18.75 21798887 18.84 23295955

Exercisable at end of year
17.94 2114772 16.24 3364448

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of these options was 17.28 2012 14.95

2013 2012

Weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding at 31 December years 5.54

Euro-denominated options outstanding at the end of the year number

Range of exercise prices

21683559 23182257

15.07-29.86 11.86-29.86

Sterling-denominated options outstanding at the end of the year number

Range of exercise prices Stg

The CRH share price at 31 December 2013 was 18.30 2012 15.30 The following analysis shows the number of outstanding share options with

exercise prices lower/higher than the year-end share price

Number of options with exercise prices lower than year-end price

Exercisable

Not exercisable ___________

Number of options with exercise prices higher than year-end price

Exercisable
1608191 1687083

Not exercisable 5895716 14549211

7503907 16236294

Total options outstanding
21798887 23295955

Granted in April 2013 2012 April the level of vesting of these options will be determined by reference to certain performance targets see page 69 If

the performance criteria have been met these options or portion thereof as appropriate may be exercised after the expiration of three years from their

date of grant All options granted have life of ten years

5.69

115328 113698

10.04-20.23 8.17-20.23

506581

13788399

14294980

1677365

5382296

7059661
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Share-based Payment Expense continued

Fair values

The weighted average fair value assigned to the 3-year euro-denominated options granted in 2013 under the 2010 share option scheme was 3.61 2012
3.43 The fair values of these options were determined using the following assumptions

2013 2012

Weighted average exercise price 16.19 15.19

Risk-free interest rate 0.36% 0.80%

Expected dividend payments over the expected life 3.25 3.25

Expected volatility 33.7% 33.8%

Expected life in years

The expected volatility was determined using historical sample of 61 month-end CRH share prices Share options are granted at market value at the date of

grant The expected lives of the options are based on historical data and are therefore not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may materialise

Other than the assumptions listed above no other features of option grants were factored into the determination of fair value No relevant modifications were

effected to either the 2010 share option scheme or the previously approved 2000 share option scheme during the course of 2013

Performance Share Plan

The Group operates Performance Share Plan which was approved by shareholders in May 2006

The expense of 13 million 2012 14 million reported in the Consolidated Income Statement has been arrived at through applying Monte Carlo simulation

technique to model the combination of market-based and non-market-based performance conditions in the Plan

Due to the immateriality of the Restricted Share Plan expense and the level of awards outstanding in this plan at 31 December 2013 detailed financial

disclosures have not been provided in relation to this share-based payment arrangement

Details of awards granted under the Performance Share Plan

Number of Shares
Period to

Share price at earliest Cumulative

date release Initial lapses Net Fair

of award date award to date outstanding value

Granted in 2010 18.51 years 1459750 1459750 10.01

Granted in 2011 16.52 years 1684250 172000 1512250 9.72

Granted in 2012 15.63 years 2079000 116500 1962500 7.77

Granted in 2013 16.69 years 1195500 71750 1123750 8.54

The fair value of the shares awarded was determined using Monte Carlo simulation technique taking account of peer group total shareholder return volatilities

and correlations together with the following assumptions

2013 2012

Risk-free interest rate 0.10 0.33

Expected volatility 31.3 35.4

The expected volatility was determined using historical sample of 37 month-end CRH share prices
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Finance Costs and Finance Income

2013 2012

Finance costs

Interest payable on borrowings

Net income on interest rate and currency swaps

Mark-to-market of derivatives and related fixed rate debt

interest rate swaps

currency swaps and forward contracts

fixed rate debt

Net loss on interest rate swaps not designated as hedges

Net finance cost on gross debt including related derivatives

323 327

55 47

68 22

79 34

262 271

Finance income

Interest receivable on loans to joint
ventures and associates

Interest receivable on cash and cash equivalents and other

Finance income

Finance costs less income
249 256

Other financial expense

Unwinding of discount element of provisions for liabilities note 26
15 15

Unwinding of discount applicable to deferred and contingent acquisition consideration note 19 11

Pension-related finance cost net note 28
22 25

Total

48 49

10 Share of Equity Accounted Investments Loss/Prof it

The Groups share of joint ventures and associates results after tax is equity accounted and is presented as single-line item in the Consolidated Income

Statement it is analysed as follows between the principal
Consolidated Income Statement captions

Joint Ventures Associates Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 ii 2013 2012

Em Em

Group share of

Revenue
469 575 961 978 1430 1553

EBITDA as defined
60 77 109 118 169 195

Depreciation and amortisation 27 37 39 50 66 87

Impairment
54 51 146 105 146

Operating loss/profit
21 40 19 78 38

Finance costs net
22 26 24 28

Loss/profit before tax 23 38 104 26 66

Income tax expense
10 13 18 18

Loss/profit after tax 28 28 16 112 44 84

An analysis of the result after tax by operating segment is presented in note The aggregated balance sheet data analysed between current and non-current

assets and liabilities in respect of the Groups investment in joint ventures and associates is presented in note 16

See note for details of the impairment charge

ii During 2012 the Group recognised an impairment charge of 146 million in respect of our 26% investment in our associate Corporacion Uniland part

of the Europe Materials segment During 2013 the Group transferred its 26% stake in Corporacion Uniland to Cementos Portland Valderrivas in

exchange for 99% stake in Cementos Lemona see note for further details

EBITDA is defined as earnings before interest taxes depreciation amortisation asset impairment charges and profit on disposals

10

13

13

15

The Group uses interest rate swaps to convert fixed rate debt to floating
rate Fixed rate debt which has been converted to floating rate through the use of

interest rate swaps is stated in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at adjusted value to reflect movements in underlying fixed rates The movement on this

adjustment together with the offsetting movement in the fair value of the related interest rate swaps is included in finance costs in each reporting period
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11 income Tax Expense

Current tax

Republic of Ireland

Overseas 77 103

Total current tax expense 76 99

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Retirement benefit obligations 16 20

Share-based payment expense

Derivative financial instruments

Other items 15
Total deferred tax expense

Income tax expense reported in the Consolidated Income Statement 80 106

Recognised within equity

Within the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Deferred tax retirement benefit obligations 43 23

Income tax recognised directly within equity 43 23

Reconciliation of applicable tax rate to effective tax rate

Loss/profit before tax 215 646

Tax charge expressed as percentage of loss/pro fit before tax effective tax rate

current tax expense only 35.3% 153%
total income tax expense current and deferred 3l.2% 16.4%

The following table reconciles the applicable Republic of Ireland statutory tax rate to the

effective tax rate current and deferred of the Group
of loss/profit

before tax

Irish corporation tax rate 12.5 12.5

Higher tax rates on overseas earnings 17.8 3.1

Other items primarily comprising items not chargeable to tax/expenses not deductible for tax

arising from 2013 impairment 70.2

other items 2.7 0.8

Total effective tax rate 37.2 16.4

Other disclosures

Effective tax rate

The 2013 income statement includes an impairment charge of 755 million with an associated tax credit of 25 million The 2013 effective tax rate excluding

the aforementioned impairment charge and related tax credit is 19.4%

Changes in tax rates

The total tax charge in future periods will be affected by any changes to the tax rates in force in the countries in which the Group operates

Excess of capital allowances over depreciation

The current tax charge will also be impacted by changes in the excess of tax depreciation capital allowances over accounting depreciation Based on current

capital investment plans the Group expects to continue to be in position to claim capital allowances in excess of depreciation in future years

Investments in subsidiaries

Given that participation exemptions and tax credits would be available in the context of the Groups investments in subsidiaries in the majority of the jurisdictions

in which the Group operates the aggregate amount of temporary differences in respect of which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised would be

immaterial

Proposed dividends

There are no income tax consequences for the Company in respect of dividends proposed prior to issuance of the Consolidated Financial Statements and for

which liability has not been recognised

Recognised within the Consolidated Income Statement 2013 2012
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12 Dividends

The dividends paid and proposed in respect of each class of share capital are as follows

2013 2012

Dividends to shareholders

Preference

5% Cumulative Preference Shares 3175 2012 3175

7% Cumulative Preference Shares 77521 2012 77521

Equity

Final paid 44.OOc per Ordinary Share 2012 44.OOc
320 317

Interim paid 18.50c per Ordinary Share 2012 18.50c
135 133

Total
455 450

Dividends proposed memorandum disclosure

Equity

Final 2013 proposed 44.OOc per Ordinary Share 2012 44.OOc
323 320

Reconciliation to Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Dividends to shareholders
455 450

Less issue of scrip shares in lieu of cash dividends note 29 88 88

Dividends paid to equity holders of the Company 367 362

Dividends paid by subsidiaries to non-controlling interests

Total dividends paid
368 366

13 Earnings per Ordinary Share

The computation of basic and diluted earnings per Ordinary Share is set out below

2013 2012

Numerator computations

Group loss/profit for the financial year
295 540

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests

Loss/profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 296 538

Preference dividends

Loss/profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company numerator for basic/diluted earnings per Ordinary Share 296 538

Depreciation charge
671 686

Amortisation of intangible assets
54 44

Impairment of property plant and equipment and intangible assets 650 28

Impairment of financial assets
105 146

Numerator for cash earnings per Ordinary Share 1184 1442

Denominator computations

Denominator for basic earnings per Ordinary Share

Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares millions outstanding for the year ii 729.2 721.9

Effect of dilutive potential Ordinary Shares employee share options millions ii and iii
0.3

Denominator for diluted earnings per Ordinary Share
729.2 722.2

Basic loss/earnings per Ordinary Share 40.6c 74.6c

Diluted loss/earnings per Ordinary Share 40.6c 74.5c

Cash earnings per Ordinary Share
162.4c 199.8c

This measure is presented here for information as management believes it is useful indicator of the Groups ability
to generate cash from operations

This is not recognised measure under generally accepted accounting principles

ii The weighted average number of Ordinary Shares included in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per Ordinary Share has been adjusted to

exclude shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust and Ordinary Shares repurchased and held by the Company CRH plc as Treasury Shares given that

these shares do not rank for dividend The number of Ordinary Shares so held at the balance sheet date is detailed in note 29

iii Contingently issuable Ordinary Shares totalling 24282615 at 31 December 2013 and 24856007 at 31 December 2012 are excluded from the computation

of diluted earnings per Ordinary Share where the conditions governing exercisability have not been satisfied as at the end of the reporting period
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14 Property Plant and Equipment

At 31 December 2013

Cost/deemed cost

Accumulated depreciation and impairment charges

Net carrying amount

Assets in

Land and Plant and course of

buildings machinery construction Total

5912

1816
4.096

8847

5633

3214

229

229

14988

7449

7539

At January 2013 net carrying amount 4313 3371 287 7971
Translation adjustment 129 114 251
Reclassifications

144 151
Additions at cost 46 350 101 497
Arising on acquisition note 31 132 210 342
Disposals at net carrying amount 30 44 74
Depreciation charge for year 132 539 671
Impairment charge for year ii 111 164 275
At 31 December 2013 net carrying amount 4096 3214 229 7539

The equivalent disclosure for the prior year is as follows

At31 December2012

Cost/deemed cost
5838 8694 287 14819

Accumulated depreciation and impairment charges 1525 5323 6848
Net carrying amount 4313 3371 287 7971

At January 2012 net carrying amount 4269 3181 558 8008
Translation adjustment 28 21 47
Reclassifications

30 352 382
Additions at cost

58 378 108 544
Arising on acquisition note 31 156 96 253
Disposals at net carrying amount 38 38 76
Depreciation charge for year 126 560 686
Impairment charge for year ii 17 25
At 31 December2012 net carrying amount 4313 3371 287 7971

Ati January2012

Cost/deemed cost
5750 8225 558 14533

Accumulated depreciation and impairment charges 1481 5044 6525
Net carrying amount

4269 3181 558 8008

The carrying value of mineral-bearing land included in the land and buildings category above amounted to 1824 million at the balance sheet date 20121835 million

ii See note for details of the impairment charge

Future purchase commitments for property plant and equipment

2013 2012

176

82

Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements
155

Authorised by the Directors but not contracted for
91
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15 Intangible Assets
Other intangible assets

Marketing- Customer- Contract-

Goodwill related related based Total

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

At 31 December 2013

Cost/deemed cost
4158 48 420 31 4657

Accumulated amortisation and impairment charges
424 36 269 17 746

Net carrying amount
3734 12 151 14 3911

At January 2013 net carrying amount
4067 17 177 4267

Translation adjustment
117 121

Arising on acquisition note 31
169 20 18 208

Disposals

12 14

Amortisatiofl charge for year

42 54

Impairment charge for year
373 375

At 31 December 2013 net carrying amount
3734 12 151 14 3911

The equivalent disclosure for the prior year is as follows

At 31 December 2012

Cost/deemed cost
4122 51 413 17 4603

Accumulated amortisation and impairment charges
55 34 236 11 336

Net carrying amount
4067 17 177 4267

At January 2012 net carrying amount
3967 14 160 4148

Translation adjustment
32 33

Arising on acquisition note 31
162 56 227

Reclassifications
13 13

Disposals

15 15

Amortisation charge for year

38 44

pairment charge for year

At 31 December 2012 net carrying amount
4067 17 177 4267

At January 2012

Cost/deemed cost
4020 44 360 18 4442

Accumulated amortisation and impairment charges
53 30 200 11 294

NetcarryingamOuflt
3967 14 160 4148

The customer-related intangible assets relate predominantly to non-contractual customer relationships

Goodwill

The net book value of goodwill capitalised under previous GAAP Irish GAAP as at the transition date to IFRS January 2004 has been treated as deemed

cost Goodwill arising on acquisition since that date is capitalised at cost

Cash-generating units

Goodwill acquired through business combination activity has been allocated to cash-generating units CGU5 that are expected to benefit from synergies in that

combination The cash-generating units represent the lowest level within the Group at which the associated goodwill is monitored for internal management

purposes and are not larger than the operating segments determined in accordance with IFRS Operating Segments total of 19 2012 21 cash-generatIng

units have been identified and these are analysed between the six business segments in the Group below The decrease in the number of CGU5 in 2013 relates

to organisational changes in our Americas Products and Europe Materials segments All businesses within the various cash-generating units exhibit similar and/

or consistent profit margin and asset intensity characteristics Assets liabilities deferred tax and goodwill have been assigned to the CGUs on reasonable

and consistent basis

Significant under-performance in any of CRHs major cash-generating units may give rise to material write-down of goodwill which would have substantial

impact on the Groups income and equity

Cash-generating units Goodwill Cm

2013 2012 2013 2012

Europe Materials

579 579

Europe Products

431 679

Europe Distribution

641 629

Americas Materials

1151 1231

Americas Products

618 629

Americas Distribution

314 320

Total cash-generating units
19 21 3734 4067

Included in the goodwill number of 431 million in respect of Europe Products at 31 December 2013 is an amount of 62 million in respect of businesses identified for

divestment as part of the portfolio review which have been tested separately see note
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15 Intangible Assets continued

Impairment testing methodology and results

Goodwill is subject to impairment testing on an annual basis The recoverable amount of each of the 19 CGUs is determined based on value-in-use

computation The cash flow forecasts are primarily based on five-year strategic plan document formally approved by senior management and the Board of

Directors and specifically exclude the impact of future development activity These cash flows are projected forward for an additional five years to determine

the basis for an annuity-based terminal value calculated on the same basis as the Groups acquisition modelling methodology As in prior years the terminal

value is based on 20-year annuity The projected cash flows assume zero growth in real cash flows beyond the initial evaluation period The value-in-use

represents the present value of the future cash flows including the terminal value discounted at rate appropriate to each CGU The real pre-tax discount rates

used range from 7.8% to 11.7% 2012 7.6% to 12.6% these rates are in line with the Groups estimated weighted average cost of capital arrived at using the

Capital Asset Pricing Model

The 2013 annual goodwill impairment testing process has resulted in an impairment of 58 million being recorded in respect of our Benelux CGU in Europe
Materials The CGU which has formed part of our sensitivity disclosures for the last number of years has experienced difficult trading environment in 2013

resulting in slower recovery now being forecast for the CGU than previously anticipated These updated assumptions underlying the value-in-use model

projections result in present value using real pre-tax discount rate of 9.4% of 241 million and related goodwill impairment being recorded of 58 million

sensitivity analysis in respect of this CGU is presented below

Additional impairment that would arise as result of

0.5% reduction in EBITDA 0.5% increase in pre-tax

as defined margin discount rate

Benelux CGU 14 11

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The cash flows have been arnved at taking account of the Groups strong financial position its established history of earnings and cash flow generation and
the nature of the building materials industry where product obsolescence is very low However expected future cash flows are inherently uncertain and are

therefore liable to material change overtime The key assumptions employed in arriving at the estimates of future cash flows factored into impairment testing

are subjective and include projected EBITDA as defined margins net cash flows discount rates used and the duration of the discounted cash flow model

Significant goodwill amounts

The goodwill allocated to the Europe Products Europe Distribution and the Oldcastle Building Products Americas Products segment CGUs accounts for

between 10% and 20% of the total carrying amount of 3734 million The goodwill allocated to each of the remaining CGUs is less than 10% of the total

carrying value in all other cases The additional disclosures required for the three CGUs with significant goodwill are as follows

Oldcastle

Europe Products Europe Distribution Building Products

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit at balance sheet date 369m 679m 641 629m 61 5m 625m

Discount rate applied to the cash flow projections real pre-tax 9.9% 9.1% 9.4% 9.7% 11.7% 11.3%

Average EBITDA as defined margin over the initial 5-year period 11.3% 9.4% 6.4% 6.9% 10.6% 10.1%

Value-in-use present value of future cash flows 1168m 1847m 2201m 2242m 2380m 2217m

Excess of value-in-use over carrying amount 284m 40m 431 684m 579m 389m

Excludes 62 million of goodwill in respect of businesses identified for divestment as part of the portfolio review

The key assumptions and methodology used in respect of these three CGUs are consistent with those described above The values applied to each of the key

estimates and assumptions are specific to the individual CGUs and were derived from combination of internal and external factors based on historical

experience and took into account the cash flows
specifically associated with these businesses The cash flows and 20-year annuity-based terminal value were

projected in line with the methodology disclosed above

Europe Products Europe Distribution and Oldcastle Building Products are not included in the CGUs referred to in the Sensitivity analysis section below Given

the magnitude of the excess of value-in-use over carrying amount and our belief that the key assumptions are reasonable management believe that it is not

reasonably possible that there would be change in the key assumptions such that the carrying amount would exceed the value-in-use Consequently no
further disclosures relating to sensitivity of the value-in-use computations for the Europe Products Europe Distribution or Oldcastle Building Products CGus
are considered to be warranted

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis has been performed and results in additional disclosures in respect of of the other 19 CGus The key assumptions methodology used
and values applied to each of the key assumptions for this cash-generating unit are in line with those outlined above This CGU had goodwill of 224 million at

the date of testing The table below identifies the amounts by which each of the following assumptions may either decline or increase to arrive at zero excess
of the present value of future cash flows over the book value of net assets in an Americas CGU

Reduction in EBITDA as defined margin 1.0 percentage points

Reduction in profit before tax
10.1%

Reduction in net cash flow
9.6%

Increase in pre-tax discount rate 0.9 percentage points

The average EBITDA as defined margin for the CGU over the initial 5-year period was 10.8% The value-in-use being the present value of the future net cash

flows was 595 million and the carrying amount was 535 million resulting in an excess of value-in-use over carrying amount of 60 million

EBITDA is defined as earnings before interest taxes depreciation amortisation asset impairment charges profit on disposals and the Group share of equity accounted

investments result after tax
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16 Financial Assets

Other financial assets primarily comprise trade investments carried at historical cost

Asset held

Total for sale

Summarised financial information for the Groups investment in joint
ventures and associates which are accounted for using the equity method is as follows

Joint Ventures

2013 2012

Associates

2013 2012

Total

2013 2012

listing of the principal equity accounted investments is contained on page 160

The Group holds 21.13% stake 2012 21.13% in Samse S.A publicly-listed
distributor in France which is accounted for as an associate investment above

The fair value of this investment was 58 million 2012 39 million Level input in the fair value hierarchy as at the balance sheet date Fair value has been

calculated based on the number of shares held multiplied by the closing share price at 31 December 2013

For details of the impairments recorded as result of the portfolio review process see note

Investments accounted for

using the equity method

i.e joint ventures and associates

Share of net

assets Loans Other

Ati January2013
1291 131 1422 143 34

Translation adjustment
72 77

Investments and advances
64 10 74

Disposals and repayments
139 14

Arising on acquisition note 31

Retained loss 74 74

At31 December2013 1211 129 1340 23

The equivalent disclosure for the prior year is as follows

Ati January2012
1923 150 2073 34

Translation adjustment
24 26

Investments and advances
52 56

Disposals and repayments
410 21 431

Reclassifications
13 13

Transfer to asset held for sale 143 143 143

Retained loss 120 120

At 31 December 2012 1291 131 1422 143 34

Non-current assets
600 663 862 837 1462 1500

Current assets
176 188 557 641 733 829

Non-current liabilities 174 168 230 194 404 362

Current liabilities
106 96 474 580 580 676

Net assets
496 587 715 704 1211 1291
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17 Inventories

2013 2012

Raw materials
606 628

Work-in-progress 86 87

Finished goods 1562 1618
Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value 2254 2333

Work-in-progress includes million 2012 million in respect of the cumulative costs incurred net of amounts transferred to cost of sales under

percentage-of-completion accounting for construction contracts in progress at the balance sheet date

An analysis of the Groups cost of sales expense is provided in note to the financial statements

Write-downs of inventories recognised as an expense within cost of sales amounted to 19 million 2012 12 million

18 Trade and Other Receivables

2013 2012

Current

Trade receivables
1725 1706

Amounts receivable in respect of construction contracts 422 469

Total trade receivables gross 2147 2175
Provision for impairment 118 123
Total trade receivables net 2029 2052
Amounts receivable from equity accounted investments

Prepayments and other receivables 483 465

Total
2516 2520

Non-current

Other receivables 93 83

The carrying amounts of current and non-current trade and other receivables approximate their fair value largely due to the short-term maturities and nature of

these instruments

Includes unbilled revenue and retentions held by customers in respect of construction contracts at the balance sheet date amounting to 121 million and
63 million respectively 2012 137 million and 65 million respectively

Provision for impairment

The movements in the provision for impairment of receivables during the financial year were as follows

At January

Translation adjustment

Provided during year

Written-off during year

Recovered during year

At 31 December

Information in relation to the Groups credit risk management is provided in note 22 to the financial statements

Aged analysis

The aged analysis of gross trade receivables and amounts receivable in respect of construction contracts at the balance sheet date was as follows

Neither past due nor impaired

Past due but not impaired

less than 60 days

60 days or greater but less than 120 days

120 days or greater

Past due and impaired partial or full provision

Total

290 218

126 113

53 54

153

2175

123 136

36 40

33 50

118 123

1554 1637

Trade receivables and amounts receivable in respect of construction contracts are in general receivable within 90 days of the balance sheet date

124

2147
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19 Trade and Other Payables

2013 2012

2754

Non-current

Other payables

105 85

Deferred and contingent acquisition consideration ii
184 192

Total

289 277

Construction contract-related payables include billings in excess of revenue together with advances received from customers in respect of work to be

performed under construction contracts and foreseeable losses thereon

Other than deferred and contingent consideration the carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate their fair value largely due to the short-term

maturities and nature of these instruments

ii Deferred and contingent acquisition consideration

The fair value of total contingent consideration is 120 million 2012 141 million Level input in the fair value hierarchy and deferred consideration is

88 million 2012 156 million On an undiscounted basis the corresponding basis for which the Group may be liable for contingent consideration range

from nil million to maximum of 149 million The movement in deferred and contingent consideration during the financial year was as follows

At January

Translation adjustment

Arising on acquisitions and investments during the year

Changes in estimate

Paid during the year

Discount unwinding

At31 December

Current

Trade payables

Construction contract-related payables

Deferred and contingent acquisition consideration ii

Accruals and other payables

Amounts payable to equity accounted investments

Total

1495 1469

103 97

24 105

1093 1067

37

2775

39

20 Movement in Working Capital and Provisions for Liabilities

297 151

17 170

105 30

11

297208

Trade Trade Provisions

and other and other for

Inventories receivables payables liabilities Total

At January 2013 2333 2603 3052 366 1518

Translation adjustment
74 80 91 54

Arising on acquisition note 31
41 53 80 14

Disposals

Deferred and contingent acquisition consideration

arising on acquisitions during year note 31
17 17

-paid during year

105 105

Interest accruals and discount unwinding
14 15 29

Decrease/increase in working capital and provisions for liabilities 37 37 83 77

At31 December2013 2254 2.609 3043 380 1440

The equivalent disclosure for the prior year is as follows

At January2012
2179 2602 2901 365 1515

Translation adjustment
15 10

Arising on acquisition note 31 98 103 57 143

Disposals
22 23 23 21

Deferred and contingent acquisition consideration

arising on acquisitions during year note 31 151 151

paid during year

30 30

Interest accruals and discount unwinding
31 15 46

lncrease/decrease in working capital and provisions for liabilities 93 74 27 12 58

At31 December2012
2333 2603 3052 366 1518
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21 Analysis of Net Debt

Components of net debt

Net debt is non-GAAP measure which we provide to investors as we believe they find it useful Net debt comprises cash and cash equivalents derivative

financial instrument assets and liabilities and interest-bearing loans and borrowings and enables investors to see the economic effects of these in total see note

22 for details of the capital and risk management policies employed by the Group Net debt is commonly used in computations such as net debt as of

total equity and net debt as of market capitalisation

As at 31 December 2013 As at 31 December 2012

Fair value Book value Fair value Book value

Cash and cash equivalents note 23 2540 2540 1747 747

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings note 24 5799 5540 5142 4808
Derivative financial instruments net note 25 152

Group net debt

27 27 152

3232 2973 3243 2909

All interest-bearing loans and borrowings are Level fair value measurements

The following table shows the effective interest rates on period-end fixed gross and net debt

As at 31 December 2013 As at 31 December 2012

Weighted average Weighted average
Interest fixed period Interest fixed period

rate Years rate Years

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings nominal fixed rate 5362 4516
Derivative financial instruments fixed rate 1518 1314
Net fixed rate debt including derivatives 3844 5.5% 5.1 3202 6.3% 4.4

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings nominal floating rate ii 54 82
Adjustment of debt from nominal to book value 124 210
Derivative financial instruments currency floating rate 1491 1162
Gross debt including derivative financial instruments 5513 4.6% 4656 5.3%

Cash and cash equivalents floating rate 2540 747

Net debt including derivative financial instruments 2973 2909

Of the Groups nominal fixed rate debt at 31 December2013 1882 million 2012 2087 million was hedged to floating rate at inception using interest rate swaps
The balance of nominal fixed rate debt of 3480 million 2012 2429 million pertains to financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in accordance with lAS 39

ii Floating rate debt comprises bank borrowings and finance leases bearing interest at rates set in advance for periods ranging from overnight to less than one year

largely by reference to inter-bank interest rates

Currency profile

The currency profile of the Groups net debt and net worth capital and reserves attributable to the Companys equity holders as at 31 December 2013 and
2012 is as follows

US Pound Swiss

euro Dollar Sterling Franc Other
iii Total

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Net debt by major currency including derivative financial instruments 1304 1476 57 11 147 2973

Non-debt assets and liabilities analysed as follows

Non-current assets 3378 6293 433 796 2113 13013
Current assets 1568 2138 234 330 526 4796
Non-current liabiJities 522 1221 107 169 77 2096
Current liabilities 1126 1221 208 198 301 3054
Non-controlling interests 12 24
Capital and reserves attributable to the Companys equity holders 1986 4510 295 758 2113 9662

The equivalent disclosure for the prior year is as folows

Net debt by major currency including derivative financial instruments 856 1828 49 173 2909

Non-debt assets and liabilities analysed as follows

Non-current assets 3583 6682 522 870 2311 13968
Current assets

1721 2181 235 358 518 5013
Non-current liabilities 571 1356 150 243 98 2418
Current liabilities 1118 1279 197 211 260 3065
Non-controlling interests 20 11 36
Capital and reserves attributable to the Companys equity holders 2739 4397 361 760 2296 10553

iii The principal currencies included in this category are the Polish Zloty the Indian Rupee the Ukrainian Hryvnia the Chinese Renminbi the Turkish Lira

the Canadian Dollar the Israeli Shekel and the Argentine Peso
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22 Capital and Financial Risk Management

Capital management

Overall summary

The primary objectives of CRHs capital management strategy are to ensure that the Group maintains strong credit rating to support its business and to

create shareholder value by managing the debt and equity balance and the cost of capital No changes were made in the objectives policies or processes

for managing capital during 2013

The Board periodically reviews the capital structure of the Group including the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital The Group

manages and if necessary adjusts its capital structure taking account of underlying economic conditions any material adjustments to the Groups capital

structure in terms of the relative proportions of debt and equity are approved by the Board In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure the Group

may issue new shares dispose of assets amend investment plans alter dividend policy or return capital to shareholders The Group is committed to

optimising the use of its balance sheet within the confines of the overall objective to maintain an investment grade credit rating Dividend cover for the year

ended 31 December 2013 before impairment charges and the related tax credit amounted to 0.95 times 2012 1.2 times

The capital structure of the Group which comprises net debt and capital and reserves attributable to the Companys equity holders may be summarised

as follows

2013 2012

Capital and reserves attributable to the Companys equity holders
9662 10553

Net debt
2973 2909

Capital and net debt
12635 13462

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group uses financial instruments throughout its businesses interest-bearing loans and borrowings cash and cash equivalents and finance leases are used

to finance the Groups operations trade receivables and trade payables arise directly
from operations and derivatives principally

interest rate and currency

swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts are used to manage interest rate risks and currency exposures and to achieve the desired profile of borrowings

The Group does not trade in financial instruments nor does it enter into any leveraged derivative transactions

The Groups corporate treasury function provides services to the business units co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets and

monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group The Head of Group Financial Operations reports to the Finance Director and

the activities of the corporate treasury function are subject to regular internal audit Systems are in place to monitor and control the Groups liquidity
risks The

Groups net debt position forms part of the monthly documentation presented to the Board of Directors

The main risks attaching to the Groups financial instruments are interest rate risk foreign currency risk credit risk and liquidity
risk Commodity price risk arising

from financial instruments is of minimal relevance given that exposure is confined to small number of contracts entered into for the purpose of hedging future

movements in energy costs The Board reviews and agrees policies for the prudent management of each of these risks as documented below

Interest rate risk

The Groups exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates stems predominantly from its long-term debt obligations Interest cost is managed using mix

of fixed and floating rate debt With the objective of managing this mix in cost-efficient manner the Group enters into interest rate swaps under which the

Group contracts to exchange at predetermined intervals the difference between fixed and variable interest amounts calculated by reference to pre-agreed

notional principal Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the fair value of issued fixed rate debt and the cash flow

exposures of issued floating rate debt

The majority of these swaps are designated under lAS 39 to hedge underlying debt obligations and qualify for hedge accounting undesignated financial

instruments are termed not designated as hedges in the analysis of derivative financial instruments presented in note 25 The following table demonstrates

the impact on Ioss/prof it before tax and total equity of range of possible changes in the interest rates applicable to net floating rate borrowings with all other

variables held constant These impacts are calculated based on the closing balance sheet for the relevant period and assume all floating interest rates and

interest curves change by the same amount For Ioss/profit before tax the impact shown is the impact on closing balance sheet floating rate net debt for full

year while for total equity the impact shown is the impact on the value of financial instruments

Percentage change in cost of borrowings
1- 1% 1- 0.5%

Impact on Ioss/profit before tax
2013 i-I- lOm 1- 5m
2012 /-5m /-3m

Impact on total equity

2013 -1 8m -1 4m
2012 I-lm /-0.5m
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22 Capital and Financial Risk Management continued

Foreign currency risk

Due to the nature of building materials which in general exhibit low value-to-weight ratio CRHs activities are conducted primarily in the local currency of

the country of operation resulting in low levels of foreign currency transaction risk variances arising in this regard are reflected in operating costs or cost of

sales in the Consolidated Income Statement in the period in which they arise

Given the Groups presence in 35 countries worldwide the principal foreign exchange risk arises from fluctuations in the euro value of the Groups net

investment in wide basket of currencies other than the euro such changes are reported separately within the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income currency profile of the Groups net debt and net worth is presented in note 21 The Groups established policy is to spread its net worth across

the currencies of its various operations with the objective of limiting its exposure to individual currencies and thus promoting consistency with the

geographical balance of its operations In order to achieve this objective the Group manages its borrowings where practicable and cost effective to hedge

portion of its foreign currency assets Hedging is done using currency borrowings in the same currency as the assets being hedged or through the use of

other hedging methods such as currency swaps

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of lossprofit before tax and equity to selected movements in the relevant US$ exchange rate with all

other variables held constant the US Dollar has been selected as the appropriate currency for this analysis given the materiality of the Groups activities in

the United States The impact on loss/profit before tax is based on changing the /US$ exchange rate used in calculating Ioss/profit before tax for the

period The impact on total equity and financial instruments is calculated by changing the US$ exchange rate used in measuring the closing balance sheet

Percentage change in relevant US$ exchange rate 1- 5% 1- 2.5%

Impact on lossprofit before tax 2013 .1 14m -1 7m
2012 -1 14m -1 7m

Impact on total equity 2013 -1 215m -1 hOrn

2012 -1 210m -1 108m

Includes the impact on financial instruments which is as follows 2013 1- 70m 1- 36m
2012 -1-- 87m 1- 45m

Financial instruments include deposits money market funds bank loans medium term notes and other fixed term debt interest rate swaps commodity

swaps and foreign exchange contracts They exclude trade receivables and trade payables

Credit/counterparty risk

In addition to cash at bank and in hand the Group holds significant cash balances which are invested on short-term basis and are classified as cash

equivalents see note 23 These deposits and other financial instruments principally certain derivatives and loans and receivables included within financial

assets give rise to credit risk on amounts due from counterparty financial institutions stemming from their insolvency or downgrade in their credit ratings

Credit risk is managed by limiting the aggregate amount and duration of exposure to any one counterparty primarily depending on its credit rating and by regular

review of these ratings Acceptable credit ratings are high investment-grade ratings generally counterparties have ratings of A2A or higher from Moodys
Standard Poors ratings agencies The maximum exposure arising

in the event of default on the part of the counterparty including insolvency is the carrying

value of the relevant financial instrument

In its worldwide insurance programme the Group carries appropriate levels of insurance for
typical business risks including product liability with various

leading insurance companies However in the event of the failure of one or more of its insurance counterparties the Group could be impacted by losses where

recovery from such counterparties is not possible

Credit risk arising in the context of the Groups operations is not significant with the total bad debt provision at the balance sheet date amounting to 5.5% of

gross trade receivables 2012 5.7% Customer credit risk is managed at appropriate Group locations according to established policies procedures and

controls Customer credit quality is assessed in line with strict credit rating criteria and credit limits established where appropriate Outstanding customer

balances are regularly monitored and review for indicators of impairment evidence of financial difficulty of the customer payment default breach of contract

etc is carried out at each reporting date Significant balances are reviewed individually while smaller balances are grouped and assessed collectively

Receivables balances are in general unsecured and non-interest-bearing The trade receivables balances disclosed in note 18 comprise large number of

customers spread across the Groups activities and geographies with balances classified as neither past due nor impaired representing 72% of the total trade

receivables balance at the balance sheet date 2012 75% amounts receivable from related parties notes 18 and 32 are immaterial Factoring and credit

guarantee arrangements are employed in certain of the Groups operations where deemed to be of benefit by operational management

Liquidity risk

The principal liquidity risks faced by the Group stem from the maturation of debt obligations and derivative transactions downgrade of CRHs credit ratings

may give rise to increases in funding costs in respect of future debt and may impair the Groups ability to raise funds on acceptable terms The Groups

corporate treasury function ensures that sufficient resources are available to meet such liabilities as they fall due through combination of cash and cash

equivalents cash flows and undrawn committed bank facilities Flexibility in funding sources is achieved through variety of means including maintaining

cash and cash equivalents only with diversity of highly-rated counterparties ii limiting the maturity of such balances iii borrowing the bulk of the Groups
debt requirements under committed bank lines or other term financing and iv having surplus committed lines of credit

The undrawn committed facilities available to the Group as at the balance sheet date are quantified in note 24 these facilities span wide number of highly

rated financial institutions thus minimising any potential exposure arising from concentrations in borrowing sources The repayment schedule analysed by

maturity date applicable to the Groups outstanding interest-bearing loans and borrowings as at the balance sheet date is also presented in note 24
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22 Capital and Financial Risk Management continued

23 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents balances are spread across wide number of highly-rated financial institutions The credit risk attaching to these items is documented

in note 22

Cash and cash equivalents are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows at fair value and are analysed as

follows
2013 2012

Em

Cash at bank and in hand
582 604

Investments short-term deposits
1958 1143

Total
2540 1747

The tables below show the projected contractual undiscounted total cash outflows principal and interest arising
from the Groups trade and other payables

gross debt and derivative financial instruments The tables also include the gross cash inflows projected to arise from derivative financial instruments These

projections are based on the interest and foreign exchange rates applying at the end of the relevant financial year

After

years Total

Em Em

Between Between Between Between

Within and and and and

year years years years years

Em Em Em Em Em

At 31 December 2013

Financial liabilities cash outflows

Trade and other payables 2754 140 20 22 22 128 3086

Finance leases

15

Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings 955 353 1203 472 2445 5428

Interest payments on finance leases

Interest payments on other interest-bearing loans and borrowings 263 214 178 134 116 318 1223

Cross-currency swaps gross cash outflows 2196 327 2523

Gross projected cash outflows 6172 1037 1402 162 611 2893 12277

Derivative financial instruments cash inflows

Interest rate swaps net cash inflows 40 30 20 12 13 22 137

Cross-currency swaps gross cash inflows 2183 308 2491

Gross projected cash inflows 2223 338 20 12 13 22 2628

The equivalent disclosure for the prior year is as follows

At 31 December 2012

Financial liabilities cash outflows

Trade and other payables
2775 145 41 13 21 118 3113

Finance leases
17

Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings
634 905 350 1257 1457 4604

Interest payments on finance leases

Interest payments on other interest-bearing loans and borrowings 284 224 176 138 93 264 1179

Cross-currency swaps gross cash outflows 2201 29 343 2581

Gross projected cash outflows 5898 1307 911 1418 121 1843 11498

Derivative financial instruments cash inflows

Interest rate swaps net cash inflows 57 34 25 20 154

Cross-currency swaps gross cash inflows 2216 27 332 2583

Gross projected cash inflows 2273 61 357 28 11 2737

Commodity price risk

The fair value of derivatives used to hedge future energy costs was million unfavourable as at the balance sheet date 2012 million unfavourable

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily deposit bank rates Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and

three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates
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24 Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings

Loans and borrowings outstanding

2013 2012

Bank overdrafts 40 54

Bank loans 28 48

Finance leases 15 17

Bonds and private placements 5439 4670
Other

18 19

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 5540 4808

Including loans of million 2012 million secured on specific items of property plant and equipment these figures do not include finance leases

Maturity profile of loans and borrowings and undrawn committed facilities

As at 31 December 2013

Undrawn
Loans and committed

borrowings facilities

Within one year 961

Between one and two years 349 40

Between two and three years 1240 1625

Between three and four years 85

Between four and five years 506 200

After five years 2480
Total 5540 1950

As at 31 December 2012

Undrawn

Loans and committed

borrowings facilities

647 150

928

347 40

1314 1626

1567

4808 1817

The Group manages its borrowing ability by entering into committed borrowing agreements Revolving committed bank facilities are generally available to the Group
for periods of up to five years from the date of inception The figures shown above are the undrawn committed facilities available to be drawn by the Group at

31 December2013

Guarantees

The Company has given letters of guarantee to secure obligations of subsidiary undertakings as follows 5.5 billion in respect of loans bank advances
derivative obligations and future lease obligations 2012 4.8 billion 270 million in respect of letters of credit 2012 289 million and nil million in

respect of other obligations 2012 million

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 Companies Amendment Act 1986 the Company has guaranteed the liabilities of its wholly-owned subsidiary

undertakings and the Oldcastle Finance Company and Oldcastle North America Funding Company general partnerships in the Republic of Ireland for

the financial year ended 31 December 2013 and as result such subsidiary undertakings and the general partnerships have been exempted from the

filing provisions of Section Companies Amendment Act 1986 and Regulation 20 of the European Communities Accounts Regulations 1993

respectively

Lender covenants

The Groups major bank facilities and debt issued pursuant to Note Purchase Agreements in private placements require the Group to maintain certain

financial covenants Non-compliance with financial covenants would give the relevant lenders the right to terminate facilities and demand early

repayment of any sums drawn thereunder thus
altering the maturity profile of the Groups debt and the Groups liquidity Calculations for financial

covenants are completed for twelve-month periods half-yearly on 30 June and 31 December The Group was in full compliance with its financial

covenants throughout each of the periods presented The Group is not aware of any stated events of default as defined in the Agreements

The financial covenants are

Minimum interest cover defined as PBITDNnet interest all as defined in the relevant agreement cover at no lower than 4.5 times As at

31 December 2013 the ratio was 6.3 times 2012 6.5 times

Minimum net worth defined as total equity plus deferred tax liabilities and capital grants less repayable capital grants being in aggregate no
lower than 5.1 billion 2012 5.1

billion such minimum being adjusted for foreign exchange translation impacts As at 31 December 2013 net

worth as defined in the relevant agreement was 10.9 billion 2012 11.8 billion
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25 Derivative Financial Instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments are analysed by year of maturity and by accounting designation as follows

Fair Net Not

value Cash flow investment designated

hedges hedges hedges as hedges Total

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

At 31 December 2013

Derivative assets

Within one year current assets
17

Between one and two years

Between two and three years
30 30

Between three and four years

Between four and five years
28 28

After five years

Non-current assets 58 63

Total derivative assets 67
80

Derivative liabilities

Within one year current liabilities
17 19

Between one and two years
21 21

Between two and three years

Between three and four years

Between four and five years

After five years
11 11

Non-current liabilities 11 23 34

Total derivative liabilities
11 25 17 53

Net asset arising on derivative financial instruments 56 25 27

The equivalent disclosure for the prior year is as follows

At31 December2012

Derivative assets

Within one year current assets 48 52

Between one and two years
24

24

Between two and three years

Between three and four years
45

45

Between four and five years

After five years
51 51

Non-current assets 120
120

Total derivative assets 168
172

Derivative liabilities

Within one year current liabilities

Between one and two years

Between two and three years
13 13

Between three and four years

Between four and five years

After five years

Non-current liabilities
14 14

Total derivative liabilities
15 20

Net asset arising on derivative financial instruments 168 15 152
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25 Derivative Financial Instruments continued

At 31 December 2013 and 2012 the Group had no master netting or similar arrangements collateral posting requirements and enforceable

right of set-off agreements with any of its derivative counterparts

Fair value hedges consist of interest rate swaps and currency swaps These instruments hedge risks arising from changes in
asset/liability

fair values due to interest rate and foreign exchange rate movements

Cash flow hedges consist of forward foreign exchange and commodity contracts and interest rate and currency swaps These instruments

hedge risks arising to future cash flows from movements in foreign exchange rates commodity prices and interest rates Cash flow hedges
are expected to affect profit and loss over the period to maturity

Net investment hedges comprise cross-currency swaps and hedge changes in the value of net investments due to currency movements

The profitlloss arising on fair value cash flow net investment hedges and related hedged items reflected in the Consolidated Income

Statement is shown below

2013 2012

Cash flow hedges ineffectiveness

Fair value of hedge instruments 68 16
Fair value of the hedged items 71 21

components of other comprehensive income cash flow hedges

Losses/gains arising during the year

commodity forward contracts

Reclassification adjustments for losses/gains included in

the Consolidated Income Statement

Total

Fair value hierarchy 2013 2012

Level Level

Assets measured at fair value

Fair value hedges cross currency and interest rate swaps 67 168

Net investment hedges cross currency swaps

Not designated as hedges held-for-trading interest rate swaps

Total 80 172

Liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value hedges cross currency and interest rate swaps 11
Cash flow hedges cross currency interest rate swaps and commodity forwards 25 15
Net investment hedges cross currency swaps 17
Total 53 20

At 31 December 2013 and 2012 there were no derivatives valued using Level or Level fair value techniques Valuation methods for

Levels and are described in the fair value hierarchy section of the accounting policies on page 108
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26 Provisions for Liabilities

Arising on

At Translation acquisition

January adjustment note 31

Provided Utilised Disposed

during during during

year year year

Em Em Em Em

Discount At31

unwinding December

Em Em

Other iv
67 14 11 69

Total
366 14 117 103 20 15 380

Analysed as

Non-current liabilities
256

231

Current liabilities
110

149

Total 366
380

The equivalent disclosure for the prior year is as follows

31 December 2012

Insurance 199 51 45 22 10 191

Environment and remediation ii 85
82

Rationalisation and redundancy iii
13 48 35 26

Other iv
68 15 11 267

Total
365 116 92 36 15 366

Analysed as

Non-current liabilities 244

Current liabilities
121

Total

This provision relates to actual and potential obligations arising under the self-insurance components of the Groups insurance arrangements which

comprise employers liability workers compensation in the United States public and products liability general liability in the United States automobile

liability property damage business interruption and various other insurances substantial proportion of the total provision pertains to claims which are

classified as incurred but not reported Due to the extended timeframe associated with many of the insurances significant proportion of the total

provision is subject to periodic actuarial valuation The projected cash flows underlying the discounting process are established through the application

of actuarial triangulations which are extrapolated from historical claims experience The triangulations applied in the discounting process indicate that

the Groups insurance provisions have an average life of six years 2012 six years

ii This provision comprises obligations governing site remediation and improvement costs to be incurred in compliance with either local or national

environmental regulations together with constructive obligations stemming from established best practice Whilst significant element of the total

provision will reverse in the medium-term two to ten years the majority of the legal and constructive obligations applicable to long-lived assets

principally mineral-bearing land will unwind over 30-year timeframe In discounting the related obligations expected future cash outhows have been

determined with due regard to extraction status and anticipated remaining life

iii
These provisions relate to irrevocable commitments under various rationalisation and redundancy programmes none of which is individually material to the

Group In 2013 55 million 2012 48 million was provided in respect of rationalisation and redundancy activities as consequence of undertaking various

cost reduction initiatives across all operations These initiatives included removing excess capacity from manufacturing and distribution networks and

scaling operations to match market supply and demand implementation of these initiatives resulted in reduction in staffing levels in all business segments

over recent years The Group expects that these provisions will be utilised within one to two years of the balance sheet date 2012 one to two years

iv This includes provisions relating to guarantees and warranties of 14 million 2012 13 million throughout the Group at 31 December 2013 The Group

expects that these provisions will be utilised within two years of the balance sheet date 2012 two to three years

Discount rate sensitivity analysis

All non-current provisions are discounted at rate of 5% 2012 5% consistent with the average effective interest rate for the Groups borrowings There is

no impact 2012 million on profit before tax of 1% change in the discount rate applicable to provisions with all other variables held constant

365

Net present cost

31 December2013

Insurance

Environment and remediation ii

Rationalisation and redundancy iii

191

Reversed

unused

Em

42 50

82

26 55 38 43

181

87

256

110

366
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27 Deferred Income Tax

The deductible and taxable temporary differences in respect of which deferred tax has been recognised are as follows

2013 2012

Reported in balance sheet after offset

Deferred tax liabilities 1166 1232

Deferred tax assets 107 191
Net deferred income tax

liability 1059 1041

Deferred income tax assets deductible temporary differences

Deficits on Group retirement benefit obligations note 28 74 135

Revaluation of derivative financial instruments to fair value 15 21

Tax loss carryforwards 98 129

Share-based payment expense

Provisions for liabilities and working capital-related items 144 181

Other deductible temporary differences 38 47

Total 371 514

Deferred income tax assets have been recognised in respect of all deductible temporary differences with the exception of some tax loss carryforwards The

amount of tax losses where recovery is not probable and is therefore not recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet is 712 million 2012 357 million The

vast majority will expire post 2018 2012 2017

Deferred income tax liabilities taxable temporary differences

Taxable temporary differences principally attributable to accelerated tax depreciation and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition

Revaluation of derivative financial instruments to fair value

Rolled-over capital gains

Total

1400

13

17

1522

15

18

15551430

Fair value adjustments arising on acquisition principally relate to property plant and equipment

Movement in net deferred income tax liability

Ati January 1041 1062

Translation adjustment 37 15
Net expense for the year note 11

Arising on acquisition note 31

Disposal note

Movement in deferred tax asset on Group retirement benefit obligations 43 23
At31 December 1059 1041
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28 Retirement Benefit Obligations

The Group operates either defined benefit or defined contribution pension schemes in all of its principal operating areas

The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes in the Republic of Ireland Britain and Northern Ireland the Netherlands Belgium Germany Switzerland

and the United States for the purposes of the disclosures which follow the schemes in the Republic of Ireland the Netherlands Belgium and Germany have

been aggregated into Eurozone category on the basis of common currency and financial assumptions The majority of the defined benefit pension schemes

operated by the Group are funded as disclosed in the analysis of the defined benefit obligation presented below with unfunded schemes restricted to one

scheme in each of the Netherlands and the United States and three schemes in Germany

All funded defined benefit schemes are administered by separate funds that are legally separate from the Group under the jurisdiction
of Trustees Each of the

Groups schemes operate under broadly similar regulatory frameworks The Trustees of the various pension funds in existence across the Group are required

by law and by their articles of association to act in the best interests of the scheme participants and are responsible for the definition of investment strategy and

for scheme administration The level of benefits available to members depends on length of service and either their average salary over their period of

employment or their salary in the final years leading up to retirement The Groups pension schemes in Switzerland are contribution-based schemes with

guarantees to provide further contributions in the event that certain targets are not met largely in relation to investment return and the annuity conversion factor

on retirement

Provision has been made in the financial statements for post-retirement healthcare obligations in respect of certain current and former employees principally
in

the United States and for long-term service commitments in respect of certain employees in the Eurozone and Switzerland These obligations are unfunded in

nature and the required disclosures form part of this note

Defined benefit pension schemes principal risks

Through its defined benefit pension schemes and post-retirement healthcare plans the Group is exposed to number of risks the most significant of which

are detailed below

Asset volatility Under IFRS the assets of the Groups defined benefit pension schemes are reported at fair value using bid prices where relevant The majority

of the schemes assets comprise of equities bonds and property all of which may fluctuate significantly
in value from period to period Given that liabilities are

discounted to present value based on bond yields and that bond prices are inversely related to yields an increase in the liability discount rate which would

reduce liabilities would reduce bond values though not necessarily by an equal magnitude

Given the maturity of certain of the Groups funded defined benefit pension schemes de-risking frameworks have been introduced to mitigate deficit volatility

and enable better matching of investment returns with the cash outflows related to benefit obligations These frameworks entail the usage of asset-liability

matching techniques whereby triggers are set for the conversion of equity holdings into bonds of similar average duration to the relevant liabilities

Discount rates The discount rates employed in determining the present value of the schemes liabilities are determined by reference to market yields at the

balance sheet date on high-quality corporate bonds of currency and term consistent with the currency and term of the associated post-employment benefit

obligations Changes in discount rates impact the quantum of liabilities as discussed above

Inflation risk Some of the Groups pension obligations have an inflation linkage higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities although in most cases caps on the

level of inflationary increases are in place to protect the scheme against extreme inflation

Longevity risk In the majority of cases the Groups defined benefit pension schemes provide benefits for life with spousal and dependent child reversionary

provisions increases in life expectancy will therefore give rise to higher liabilities

Financial assumptions scheme liabilities

The major long-term assumptions used by the Groups actuaries in the computation of scheme liabilities as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 are

as follows
Britain and

Eurozone Northern Ireland Switzerland United States

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Rate of increase in

salaries 4.00 4.00 4.30 4.00 2.25 2.25 3.50 3.50

pensions in payment
2.00 2.00 3.30-3.50 3.00-3.40 0.25 0.25

Inflation
2.00 2.00 3.30 3.00 1.25 1.25 2.00 2.00

Discount rate 3.70 3.80 4.60 4.50 2.35 1.85 4.70 3.75

Medical cost trend rate n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 7.40 6.25

The mortality assumptions employed in determining the present value of scheme liabilities under lAS 19 are in accordance with the underlying funding valuations

and represent actuarial best practice in the relevant jurisdictions taking account of mortality experience and industry circumstances With regard to the most

material of the Groups schemes the future life expectations factored into the relevant valuations based on retirement at 65 years of age for current and future

retirees are as follows

Republic of Britain and

Ireland Northern Ireland Switzerland

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Current retirees

male 22.7 22.6 23.2 23.2 21.3 19.7

female
24.9 24.4 25.7 25.8 23.8 22.0

Future retirees

male
25.7 25.7 25.5 24.8 23.5 19.7

female
26.7 26.7 28.2 27.4 25.9 22.0

The above data allow for future improvements in life expectancy
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28 Retirement Benefit Obligations continued

Impact on Consolidated Income Statement

The total retirement benefit expense in the Consolidated Income Statement is as follows

2013 2012

Total defined contribution expense

Total defined benefit expense

Total expense in Consolidated Income Statement

149 142

52 39

201 181

At 31 December 2013 34 million 2012 38 million was included in other payables in respect of defined contribution pension liabilities

Britain and

Eurozone Northern Ireland Switzerland United States Total Group
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012mm

No reimbursement rights have been recognised as assets in accordance with IAS19 Employee Benefits

Reconciliation of scheme assets bid value

At January

Movement in year

Administration expenses

Past service costs

Interest income on scheme assets

Return on scheme assets excluding interest income

Employer contributions paid

Contributions paid by plan participants

Benefit and settlement payments

Disposals

Translation adjustment

At 31 December

710 551 597 525 661 628 174 159 2142 1863

27 29 26 26 12 16 71 78

30 57 44 35 25 32 10 108 134

70 114 28 20 17 18 14 124 166

10 11 13 14

49 41 21 19 31 33 11 11 112 104
15 15

11 12 10 29 12

790 710 662 597 683 661 179 174 2314 2142

Analysis of defined benefit expense

Administration expenses

Past service costs

Subtotal

Charged in arriving at Group profit before finance costs

Current service cost 11 13 14 27 25

33

26 11

51 44

15 24 32
16 13 26 30 14

Included in finance income and finance costs respectively

Interest income on scheme assets 27 29 26 26 12 16 71 78
Interest cost on scheme liabilities 39 44 30 31 14 17 10 11 93 103
Net interest expense 12 15

22 25
Net charge to Consolidated Income Statement 18 11 15 21 15 27 52 39

Past service costs include curtailment and settlement gains During 2013 the Group implemented changes to the terms of number of its defined benefit
pension schemes in Switzerland giving rise to curtailment gain of 15 million
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28 Retirement Benefit Obligations continued

Reconciliation of actuarial value of liabilities

Britain and

Eurozone Northern Ireland Switzerland United States Total Group

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Em Em Em Em Em

At January
1054 896 705 652 765 702 271 249 2795 2499

Movement in year

Current service cost 11 13 14 27 25 51 44

Past service costs
36 15 24 36

Interest cost on scheme liabilities
39 44 30 31 14 17 10 11 93 103

Remeasurements

experience variations
23 11 17

42 13

actuarial lossIgain fiom changes in financial assumptions 16 175 13 23 64 60 30 30 65 288

actuarial loss from changes in demographic assumptions
51 53

Contributions paid by plan participants
10 11 13 14

Benefit and settlement payments
49 41 21 19 31 33 11 11 112 104

Disposals

19 19

Translation adjustment
14 15 13 11 38 14

At 31 December 1045 1054 723 705 727 765 229 271 2724 2795

Recoverable deficit in schemes 255 344 61 108 44 104 50 97 410 653

833583
During the year settlement payments of 11 million 2012 nil million were made in respect of some of the Groups schemes in the Eurozone million

and Switzerland million

Split of scheme liabilities funded and unfunded

Funded defined benefit pension schemes 999 1009 723 705 722 760 219 260 2663 2734

Post-retirement healthcare obligations unfunded

tuar vuehab Wts 054 723 70 727

Sensitivity analysis

The impact of movement as indicated below in the principal actuarial assumptions would be as follows

Britain and

Northern United Total

Eurozone Ireland Switzerland States Group

2013 2013 2013 2013 2013

Em Em Em Em Em

Scheme liabilities at 31 December 2013
1045 723 727 229 2724

Revised liabilities

Discount rate Decrease by 0.25%
1088 759 757 236 2840

Inflation rate Increase by 0.25%
1086 750 727 229 2792

Life expectancy Increase by year
1072 745 741 234 2792

The above sensitivity analysis is derived through changing the individual assumption while holding all other assumptions constant
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28 Retirement Benefit Obligations continued

Equity instruments

Developed markets

Emerging markets

Debt instruments

Non Government debt instruments

Government debt instruments

Property

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment funds

Assets held by insurance company

262 343 340 294 229 190

12 10 53 39

29 26 139 137 210 176

390 220 69 72 58 48

29 27 43 41 68 67

47 72

12

92 91 923 918

65 49

26 21 404 360

51 50 568 390

140 135

54 84

27 13

Unquoted investments

Property

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment funds

Assets held by insurance company

68 66

31 89

Actuarial valuations funding requirements and future cash flows

In accordance with statutory requirements in Ireland and Britain minimum funding requirements additional annual contributions and lump-sum payments are
required to certain of the schemes in place in those Jurisdictions The funding requirements in relation to the Groups defined benefit schemes are assessed inaccordance with the advice of independent and qualified actuaries and valuations are prepared in this regard either annually where local requirements mandatethat this be done or at triennial intervals at maximum in all other cases In Ireland and Britain either the attained age or projected unit credit methods are used
in the valuations In the Netherlands and Switzerland the actuarial valuations reflect the current unit method while the valuations are performed in accordancewith the projected unit credit methodology in Germany In the United States valuations are performed using variety of actuarial cost methodologies current
unit projected unit and aggregate cost The dates of the actuarial valuations range from December 2010 to December 2013

In general actuarial valuations are not available for public inspection however the results of valuations are advised to the members of the various schemes

The maturity profile of the Group contracted payments on discounted basis to certain schemes in the Eurozone lreIan and Britain and Northern Iraland is as follows

Britain and

Eurozone Northern Ireland Total Group

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

____ ____ Cm Cm Cm

18 18 18 25 36

17 17 24 24

16 16 23 22

16 16 22 22

15 15 21 21

15 47 41 47 56

82 97 80 84 162 181

Employer contributions payable in the 2014 financial year including minimum funding payments expressed using year-end exchange rates for 2013 areestimated at 115 million

Average duration and scheme composition

Average duration of defined benefit obligation years

Allocation of defined benefit obligation by participant

Active plan participants

Deferred plan participants

Retirees

Britain and

Eurozone Northern Ireland Switzerland United States

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

15.9 16.9 18.1 20.8 16.0 16.0 13.3 13.2

39% 40% 27% 28% 86% 87% 36% 38%

20% 20% 34% 34% 30% 30%

41% 40% 39% 38% 14% 13% 34% 32%

Split of scheme assets

Britain and

Eurozone Northern Ireland Switzerland United States Total Group
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

_______ Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm
Investments quoted in active markets

12 19 15 26
Total

790 710 662 597 683 661 179 174 2314 2142

70 68

37 94

Within one year

Between one and two years

Between two and three years

Between three and four years

Between four and five years

After five years
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29 Share Capital and Reserves

2013 2012

Ordinary Income Ordinary Income

Shares of Shares of Shares of Shares of

Equity Share Capital

0.32 each 0.02 each ii 0.32 each 0.02 each ii

Authorised

Ati January 2013 and 31 December 2013
320 20 320 20

Number of Shares at January 2013 and 31 December 2013 000s 1000000 1000000 1000000 1000000

Allotted called-up and fully paid

Ati Januarym
235 14 233 14

At31 Decemberm

lieu of cash dividends ui

The movement in the number of shares expressed in 000s during the financial year was as follows

At January
733821 733821 727897 727897

At31 December

in lieu of cash dividends iii

The Ordinary Shares represent 93.68% of the total issued share capital

ii The Income Shares which represent 5.85% of the total issued share capital were created on 29 August 1988 for the express purpose of giving

shareholders the choice of receiving dividends on either their Ordinary Shares or on their Income Shares by notice of election to the Company The

Income Shares carried different tax credit to the Ordinary Shares The creation of the Income Shares was achieved by the allotment of fully paid Income

Shares to each shareholder equal to his/her holding of Ordinary Shares but the shareholder is not entitled to an Income Share certificate as certificate

for Ordinary Shares is deemed to include an equal number of Income Shares and shareholder may only sell transfer or transmit Income Shares with

an equivalent number of Ordinary Shares Income Shares carry no voting rights Due to changes in Irish tax legislation since the creation of the Income

Shares dividends on the Companys shares no longer carry tax credit As elections made by shareholders to receive dividends on their holding of

Income Shares were no longer relevant the Articles of Association were amended on May 2002 to cancel such elections

Share schemes

The aggregate number of shares which may be committed for issue in respect of any share option scheme savings-related share option scheme share

participation scheme performance share plan or any subsequent option scheme or share plan may not exceed 10% of the issued Ordinary share capital from

time to time

Share option schemes

Details of share options granted under the Companys share option schemes and the terms attaching thereto are provided in note to the financial

statements and on page 68 of the Directors Remuneration Report
Number of Shares

2013 2012

Options exercised during the year satisfied by the reissue of Treasury Shares
1310187 1163827

Share participation schemes

As at 31 December 2013 7386047 2012 7272632 Ordinary Shares had been appropriated to participation schemes In the financial year ended 31

December 2013 the appropriation of 113415 shares was satisfied by the reissue of Treasury Shares 2012 154045 The Ordinary Shares appropriated

pursuant to these schemes were issued at market value on the dates of appropriation
The shares issued pursuant to these schemes are excluded from the

scope of IFRS Share-based Payment and are hence not factored into the expense computation and the associated disclosures in note

Restricted Share Plan

During the year the Employee Benefit Trust purchased 391250 shares on behalf of CRH plc in respect of awards under the 2013 Restricted Share Plan

The nominal value of own shares on which dividends have been waived by the Trustees of the 2013 Restricted Share Plan amounted to 0.1 million at

31 December 2013

iii Issue of scrip shares in lieu of cash dividends
Number of Shares Price per Share

2013 2012 2013 2012

May2013 Final 2012 dividend 2012 Final 2011 dividend 2011165 2653368 17.01 15.40

October 2013 Interim 2013 dividend 2012 Interim 2012 dividend 33989923270169 15.79 14.27
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29 Share Capital and Reserves continued

5% Cumulative 7% Cumulative

Preference Shares of Preference Shares of

1.27 each iv 1.27 each

Number of Number of

Shares 000s Shares 000s

At January2013 and 31 December2013 150

Allotted called-up and fully paid

Ati January20l3and3l December2013
50

There was no movement in the number of cumulative preference shares in either the current or the prior year

iv The holders of the 5% cumulative Preference Shares are entitled to fixed cumulative preference dividend at rate of 5% per annum and priority in

winding-up to repayment of capital but have no further right to participate in profits or assets and are not entitled to be present or vote at general
meetings unless their dividend is in arrears Dividends on the 5% cumulative Preference Shares are payable half-yearly on 15

April and 15 October in

each year The 5% cumulative Preference Shares represent 0.03% of the total issued share capital

The holders of the 7% cumulative Preference Shares are entitled to fixed cumulative preference dividend at rate of 7% per annum and subject
to the rights of the holders of the 5% cumulative Preference Shares priority in winding-up to repayment of capital but have no further right to

participate in profits or assets and are not entitled to be present or vote at general meetings unless their dividend is in arrears or unless the business of
the meeting includes certain matters which are specified in the Articles of Association Dividends on the 7% Cumulative Preference Shares are
payable half-yearly on April and October in each year The 7% Cumulative Preference Shares represent 0.44% of the total issued share capital

Treasury Shares/own shares
2013

________________________________________________________________________

At January 146 183
Treasury Shares/own shares reissued

34 37
Shares acquired by Employee Benefit Trust own shares

At 31 December
118 146

As at the balance sheet date the total number of Treasury Shares held was 5951104 2012 7374706 the nominal value of these shares was million 2012
million During the year ended 31 December 2013 1423602 shares were reissued 2012 1317872 to satisfy exercises and appropriations under the

Groups share option and share participation schemes These reissued Treasury Shares were previously purchased at an average price of 24.08 2012
24.11 No Treasury Shares were purchased during 2013 or 2012

Reconciliation of shares issued to net proceeds

Shares issued at nominal amount

scrip shares issued in lieu of cash dividends

Premium on shares issued

Preference Share Capital

Authorised

872

872

2012

86 86
Total value of shares issued

88 88
Issue of scrip shares in lieu of cash dividends note 12 88 88
Net proceeds from issue of shares

Share Premium

At January
4133 4047

Premium arising on shares issued
86 86

At 31 December
4219 4133

30 Commitments under Operating and Finance Leases

Operating leases

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases at 31 December are as follows

2013 2012

Within one year
301 270

After one year but not more than five years 596 653
More than five years

357 398

1254 1321

Finance leases

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases are not material for the Group

CR11 141



31 Business Combinations

The principal acquisitions completed during the year ended 31 December 2013 by reportable segment together with the completion dates are detailed

below these transactions entailed the acquisition of an effective 100% stake except where indicated to the contrary

Europe Materials Spain Cementos Lemona 99% 25 February United Kingdom Southern Cement 25 February assets of Cemex in Northern Ireland

13 May and the cement import facilities of Dudman 31 May Ukraine Mykolaiv Cement 99% 25 September

Europe Products Belgium assets of Echo NV 24 April

Europe Distribution Belgium Halschoor January the Netherlands Van Buren January France Wolseley locations October

Americas Materials Colorado selected assets of Lafarge in the Western Slopes July Michigan Rockwood quarry 10 May and assets of Waterland

Trucking Service 10 May Mississippi assets of Rogers Group July New York selected assets of Dutchess Quarry and Supply 18 March Oregon selected

assets of Cemex 15 February and Turner Gravel 18 November Pennsylvania Miller reserves 26 March West Virginia Sugarland reserves May

Americas Products Canada Expocrete 18 March North and South Carolina concrete product assets of Cemex April Pennsylvania assets of Modern

Precast Concrete 25 January Wisconsin Harmony Outdoor Living 21 March

Americas Distribution Florida assets of Fogleman Builders Supply October Maryland assets of Eldersburg Supply April also Washington DC

Texas certain assets of JEH Company 18 September

The identifiable net assets acquired including adjustments to provisional fair values were as follows
2013 2012

Assets

Non-current assets

Property plant and equipment
342 253

Intangible assets

39 65

Equity accounted investments

Deferred income tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

41 98

Trade and other receivables

53 103

Cash and cash equivalents

11 19

Total current assets
105 220

Liabilities

Trade and other payables

80 57

Provisions for liabilities stated at net present cost
14

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings and finance leases
44 42

Current income tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities

819
Total liabilities

146 122

Total identifiable net assets at fair value

342 426

Goodwill arising on acquisition ii

169 162

Excess of fair value of identifiable net assets over consideration paid ii 1-
Consideration satisfied by

Cash payments

347 437

Asset exchange note

144

Deferred consideration stated at net present cost
75

Total consideratn

Measured at the non-controlling interests proportionate share of the acquirees identifiable net assets

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

Cash consideration

347 437

Less cash and cash equivalents acquired

1119
Total

336 418
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31 Business Combinations continued

None of the acquisitions completed during the financial year were considered sufficiently material to warrant separate disclosure of the attributable fair values

The initial assignment of fair values to identifiable net assets acquired has been performed on provisional basis in respect of certain acquisitions any
amendments to these fair values made during the subsequent reporting window within the measurement period imposed by IFRS will be subject to

subsequent disclosure

The gross contractual value of trade and other receivables as at the respective dates of acquisition amounted to 57 million 2012 106 million The fair

value of these receivables is 53 million all of which is expected to be recoverable 2012 103 million and is inclusive of an aggregate allowance for

impairment of million 2012 million

ii The principal factor contributing to the recognition of goodwill on acquisitions entered into by the Group is the realisation of cost savings and other

synergies with existing entities in the Group which do not qualify for separate recognition as intangible assets Due to the asset-intensive nature of

operations in the Materials business segments no significant intangible assets are recognised on business combinations in these segments 49 million of

the goodwill recognised in respect of acquisitions completed in 2013 is expected to be deductible for tax purposes 2012 106 million An excess of fair

value of identifiable net assets over consideration of million arose during the year and is included in operating costs in note

iii The fair value of contingent consideration recognised is 13 million including adjustments to prior year acquisitions of 11 million On an undiscounted

basis the corresponding future payments on current year acquisitions for which the Group may be liable range from nil million to maximum of million

Acquisition-related costs amounting to million 2012 million have been included in operating costs in the Consolidated Income Statement note

No contingent liabilities were recognised on the acquisitions completed during the financial year or the prior financial years

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities acquired determined in accordance with IFRS before completion of the acquisition together with the

adjustments made to those carrying values to arrive at the fair values disclosed above were as follows

Accounting Adjustments

policy to provisional

alignments fair values

Cm Cm Cm

Non-current assets 257 106 20 383

Current assets 130 12 11 105

Liabilities 107 34 146
Identifiable net assets acquired 280 60 342

Non-controlling interests

Goodwill arising on acquisition see ii above 224 61 167

Total consideration 502 508

The adjustments to provisional fair values above relate principally to our acquisition of Trap Rock Industries in December 2012

The following table analyses the 25 acquisitions 2012 32 acquisitions by reportable segment and provides details of the goodwill and consideration figures

arising in each of those segments

Number of

Reportable segments Acquisitions Goodwill Consideration

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

__________ __________ _____ Cm Cm

Europe Materials 80 26 256 58

Europe Products 68 151

Europe Distribution 10 15 40

Americas Materials 14 19 34 76 226

Americas Products 48 14 124 112

Americas Distribution
22

Grouptotals 25 32 165 150 502 587

Adjustments to provisional fair values of prior year acquisitions

Total consideration
508 588

Book Fair value

values adjustments

Cm

Fair

value

Cm
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31 Business Combinations continued

The post-acquisition impact of acquisitions completed during the year on the Groups result for the financial year was as follows

2013 2012

Em

Revenue
306 270

cost of sales
232 201

Gross profit

74 69

Operating costs
63 56

Group operating profit

11 13

Profit on disposals

Prof it before finance costs
11 13

Finance costs net

Prof it before tax

11

Income tax expense

Group profit for the financial year

The revenue and result of the Group for the financial year determined in accordance with IFRS as though the acquisitions effected during the year had been at

the beginning of the year would have been as follows
Pro-forma 2013

Pro-forma

2013 CRH Group excluding consolidated Pro-forma

acquisitions 2013 acquisitions Group 2012

Em Em

Revenue
434 17725 18159 19054

Group loss/profit for the financial year
301 300 571

There have been no acquisitions completed subsequent to the balance sheet date which would be individually material to the Group thereby requiring

disclosure under either IFRS or lAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date Development updates giving details of acquisitions which do not require

separate disclosure on the grounds of materiality are published in January and July each year
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32 Related Party Transactions

The
principal related party relationships requiring disclosure in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group under lAS 24 Related Party Disclosures pertain

to the existence of subsidiaries joint ventures and associates transactions with these entities entered into by the Group and the identification and compensation
of key management personnel

Subsidiaries joint ventures and associates

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements of the Company CRH plc the ultimate parent and its subsidiaries joint ventures and
associates as documented in the accounting policies on pages 102 to 108 The Groups principal subsidiaries joint ventures and associates are disclosed on
pages 154 to 160

Sales to and purchases from joint ventures are immaterial in 2013 and 2012 Loans extended by the Group to joint ventures and associates see note 16
are included in financial assets Sales to and pLirchases from associates during the financial year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to 24 million

2012 21 million and 411 million 2012 446 million respectively Amounts receivable from and payable to equity accounted investments arising from the
aforementioned sales and purchases transactions as at the balance sheet date are included as separate line items in notes 18 and 19 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Terms and conditions of transactions with subsidiaries joint ventures and associates

In general the transfer pricing policy implemented by the Group across its subsidiaries is market-based Sales to and purchases from joint ventures and
associates are conducted in the ordinary course of business and on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arms-length transactions The outstanding
balances included in receivables and payables as at the balance sheet date in respect of transactions with joint ventures and associates are unsecured and
settlement arises in cash No guarantees have been either requested or provided in relation to related party receivables and payables Loans to joint ventures
and associates as disclosed in note 16 are extended on normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of business with interest accruing and in general
paid to the Group at predetermined intervals

Key management personnel

For the purposes of the disclosure requirements of lAS 24 the term key management personnel i.e those persons having authority and responsibility for

planning directing and controlling the activities of the Company comprises the Board of Directors which manages the business and affairs of the Company

Key management remuneration amounted to
2013 2012

Short-term benefits

Post-employment benefits

Share-based payments calculated in accordance with the principles disclosed in note

Total

11 10

Other than these compensation entitlements there were no other transactions involving key management personnel

33 Board Approval

The Board of Directors approved and authorised for issue the financial statements on pages 98 to 145 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013 on
24 February 2014
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Company Balance Sheet

as at 31 December 2013

2013 2012

Notes

Fixed assets

Financial assets
581 538

Current assets

Debtors
6394 6394

Cash at bank and in hand
175 172

Total current assets 6569 6566

Creditors amounts falling due within one year

Trade and other creditors 1453 1126

Bank loans and overdrafts
57

Total current liabilities
1510 1128

Net current assets
5059 5438

Net assets
5640 5976

Capital and reserves

Called-up share capital
251 249

Preference share capital

Share premium account 4223 4137

Treasury Shares and own shares 118 146

Revaluation reserve
42 42

Other reserves
187 172

Profit and loss account
1054 1521

Shareholders funds
5640 5976

Hartery Manifold Directors
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Notes to the Company Balance Sheet

Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the

Companies Acts 1963 to 2013 and Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in the Republic of Ireland

Irish GMP The following paragraphs describe the principal accounting policies under Irish GAAR
which have been applied consistently

Operating income and expense

Operating income and expense arises from the Companys principal activities as holding company for

the Group and are accounted for on an accruals basis

Financial assets

Fixed asset investments including investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost and at valuation at 31

December 1980 for those investments in existence at that date less any accumulated impairments and
are reviewed for impairment if there are indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable

Foreign currencies

The reporting currency of the Company is euro Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the

rates of exchange ruling at the transaction date Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are translated into euro at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date with

corresponding charge or credit to the
profit and loss account

Share issue expenses and share premium account

Costs of share issues are written off against the premium arising on issues of share capital

Share-based payments

The Company has applied the requirements of FRS 20 Share-based Payment

The accounting policy applicable to share-based payments is consistent with that applied under IFRS
and is accordingly addressed in detail on pages 105 and 106 of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cash flow statement

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption afforded by FRS Cash Flow Statements not to

provide statement of cash flows

Treasury Shares and own shares

Treasunj Shares

Own equity instruments i.e Ordinary Shares acquired by the Company are deducted from equity and

presented on the face of the Company Balance Sheet No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on
the purchase sale issue or cancellation of the Companys Ordinary Shares

Own shares

Ordinary Shares purchased by the Employee Benefit Trust on behalf of the Company under the terms of

the Performance Share Plan are recorded as deduction from equity on the face of the Company Balance

Sheet

Dividends

Dividends on Ordinary Shares are recognised as liability in the Companys Financial Statements in the

period in which they are declared by the Company
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Financial Assets

The equivalent disclosure for the prior year is as follows

Ati January 2012 at cost/valuation
371 155 526

Capitai contribution in respect of share-based payments

The Companys investment in shares in its subsidiaries was revalued at 31 December 1980 to reflect the surplus on revaluation of certain property plant

and equipment land and buildings of subsidiaries The original historical cost of the shares equated to approximately million The analysis of the closing

balance between amounts carried at valuation and at cost is as follows

2013 2012

At valuation 31 December 1980
47 47

At cost post 31 December 1980
353 324

Total

400 371

Pursuant to Section 16 of the Companies Amendment Act 1986 full list of subsidiaries joint ventures and associated undertakings will be annexed to the

Companys Annual Return to be filed in the Companies Registration Office in Ireland

Debtors
2013 2012

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
6394 6394

Trade and Other Creditors
2013 2012

Amounts falling
due within one year

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings

1453

Auditors Remuneration Memorandum Disclosure

In accordance with Section 161 of the Companies Act 1963 the fees paid in 2013 to the statutory auditor for work engaged by the parent company

comprised audit fees of 20000 2012 20000 and other assurance services of 60000 2012 108000

Dividends Proposed Memorandum Disclosure

Details in respect of dividends proposed of 323 million 2012 320 million are presented in the dividends note note 12 on page 120 of the notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Companys investment in its subsidiaries is as follows

Shares Other Total

At January 2013 at cost/valuation
371 167 538

Capital contribution in respect of share-based payments
14 14

Additions

29 29

At 31 December 2013 at cost/valuation
400 181 581

1126

Called-up Share Capital

Details in respect of called-up share capital Treasury Shares and own shares are presented in the share capital and reserves note note 29 on pages 140 and

141 of the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Movement in Shareholders Funds

Issued Share Treasury Profit

share premium Shares Revaluation Other and loss Total

capital account own shares reserve reserves account equity

At January2013 250 4137 146 42 172 1521 5976Issue of share capital net of expenses 86
88

Profit after tax before dividends

Treasury/own shares reissued
34 34

Shares acquired by Employee Benefit Trust own shares

Share option exercises

19 19
Share-based payment expense

15 15
Dividends including shares issued in lieu of dividends

455 455At31 December2013
252 4223 118 42 187 1054 5640

The equivalent disclosure for the
prior year is as for ows

At January 2012
248 4051 183 42 158 986 5302Issue of share capital net of expenses 86

88
Profit after tax before dividends

1006 1006
Treasury/own siares reissued

37 37
Share option exercises

16 16
Share-based payment expense

14 14
Dividends including shares issued in lieu of divideids

450 450At31 December2012
250 4137 146 42 172 1521 5976

In accordance with Section 1488 of the Companies Act 1963 and Section 71A of the Companies Amendment Act 1986 the Company is availing of the
exemption from presenting its individual profit and loss account to the Annual General Meeting and from

filing
it with the Registrar of Companies The profit forthe financial year dealt with in the Company Financial Statements amounted to million 2012 1006 million

Share-based Payments

The total expense of 15 million 2012 14 million reflected in note to the Consolidated Financial Statements attributable to employee share options and thePerformance Share Plan has been included as
capital contribution in financial assets note in addition to any payments to/from subsidiaries

10 Section 17 Guarantees

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 Companies Amendment Act 1986 the Company has guaranteed the liabilities of its wholly-owned subsidiaryundertakings and the Oldcastle Finance Company and Oldcastle North America Funding Company general partnerships in the Republic of Ireland for thefinancial year ended 31 December 2013 and as result such subsidiary undertakings and the general partnerships have been exempted from the
filingprovisions of Section Companies Amendment Act 1986 and Regulation 20 of the European Communities Accounts Regulations 1993 respectively

Details in relation to other guarantees provided by the Company are provided in the interest-bearing loans and borrowings note note 24 on page 131 of thenotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 Related Party Transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS not to disclose transactions with wholly-owned subsidiaries

12 Approval by Board

The Board of Directors approved and authorised for issue the Company Financial Statements on pages 146 to 149 in respect of the year ended 31 December2013 on 24 February 2014

RiI 14y



Shareholder Information

Dividend payments

An interim dividend of 18.5c was paid in respect of Ordinary Shares on

25 October 2013

final dividend of 44c if approved at the 2014 Annual General Meeting will

be paid in respect of Ordinary Shares on 12 May 2014 to shareholders on the

Register of Members as at the close of business on March 2014

Dividend Withholding Tax DVVT must be deducted from dividends paid by an

Irish resident company unless shareholder is entitled to an exemption and

has submitted properly completed exemption form to the Companys

Registrars Capita Asset Services the Registrars DWT applies to dividends

paid by way of cash or by way of shares under scrip dividend scheme and

is deducted at the standard rate of Income Tax currently 20% Non-resident

shareholders and certain Irish companies trusts pension schemes

investment undertakings and charities may be entitled to claim exemption

from DWT Copies of the exemption form may be obtained from the Registrars

Shareholders should note that DWT will be deducted from dividends in cases

where properly completed form has not been received by the record date

for dividend Individuals who are resident in Ireland for tax purposes are not

entitled to an exemption

Shareholders who wish to have their dividend paid direct to bank account

by electronic funds transfer should complete the required dividend mandate

form and submit it to the Registrars copy of the required form can

be obtained from the shareholder services section of the CRH website

www.crh.com under Equity Investors Alternatively shareholders can

contact the Registrars to obtain mandate form see contact details below

Tax vouchers will be sent to the shareholders registered address under this

arrangement

Dividends are generally paid in euro However in order to avoid costs to

shareholders dividends are paid in Sterling and US Dollars to shareholders

whose shares are not held in the CREST system see below and whose

address according to the Share Register is in the UK and the United States

respectively unless they require otherwise

Dividends in respect of 7% Cumulative Preference Shares are paid half-

yearly on April and October

Dividends in respect of 5% Cumulative Preference Shares are paid half-yearly

on 15 April and 15 October

Shareholders have the option of taking their dividend in the form of shares

under the Companys Scrip Dividend Scheme

CREST

Transfer of the Companys shares takes place through the CREST system

Shareholders have the choice of holding their shares in electronic form or in

the form of share certificates

Where shares are held in CREST dividends are automatically paid in euro

unless currency election is made CREST members should use the facility

in CREST to make currency elections Such elections must be made in

respect of entire holdings as partial
elections are not permissible

Stock Exchange listings

CRH has premium listing on the London Stock Exchange LSE and

secondary listing
on the Irish Stock Exchange ISE The Groups American

Depositary Shares ADS5 each representing one Ordinary Share are listed

on the New York Stock Exchange NYSE The ADSs are evidenced by

American Depositary Receipts
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Share price data Electronic communications

LSE

Sharepriceat3l December 18.30 15.23 15.30 12.48

Market capitalisation 13.4bn 11.2bn 11.lbn 9.lbn

Share price movement

during year

high 19.30 16.17 16.79 14.09

low 14.68 12.15 12.99 10.52

Shareholdings as at 31 December 2013

Ownership of Ordinary Shares

Numberof %of
Geographic Iocation shares held total

000s

North America 292448 39.56

United Kingdom 166254 22.49

Europe/Other 122263 16.54

Retail 122240 16.54

Ireland 30075 4.06

Treasury 5951 0.81

739231 100

1000 15033 59.79 5112 0.69

1001 10000 8563 34.06 25026 3.39

10001 100000 1144 4.55 31132 4.21

100001 1000000 307 1.22 106607 14.42

Over 1000000 95 0.38 571354 77.29

25142 100 739231 100

Financial calendar

Announcement of final results for 2013 25 February 2014

Ex-dividend date March 2014

Record date for dividend March 2014

Latest date for receipt of scrip forms 24
April 2014

Interim Management Statement May 2014

Annual General Meeting May 2014

Dividend payment date and first day of dealing in

scrip dividend shares 12 May 2014

Announcement of interim results for 2014 19 August 2014

Interim Management Statement 11 November 2014

Website

The Groups website www.crh.com provides the full text of the Annual and

Interim Reports the Annual Report on Form 20-F which is filed annually with

the United States Securities and Exchange Commission interim management

statements and copies of presentations to analysts and investors News

releases are made available in the Media section of the website immediately

after release to the Stock Exchanges

Following the introduction of the 2007 Transparency Regulations and in

order to adopt more environmentally friendly and cost effective approach

the Company provides the Annual Report to shareholders electronically via

the CRH website www.crh.com and only sends printed copy to those

shareholders who
specifically request copy Shareholders who choose to

do so can receive other shareholder communications for example notices of

general meetings and shareholder circulars electronically However

shareholders will continue to receive printed proxy forms dividend

documentation and if the Company deems it appropriate other

documentation by post Shareholders can alter the method by which they

receive communications by contacting the Registrars

Electronic proxy voting

Shareholders may lodge proxy form for the 2014 Annual General Meeting

electronically by accessing the Registrars website as described below

CREST members wishing to appoint proxy via CREST should refer to the

CREST Manual and the notes to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting

Registrars

Enquiries concerning shareholdings should be addressed to the Registrars

Capita Asset Services

P0 Box 7117

Dublin

Ireland

of Shareholders with access to the internet may check their accounts by

total accessing the Registrars website and selecting Shareholder Portal

Ireland This facility allows shareholders to check their shareholdings and

dividend payments register e-mail addresses appoint proxies electronically

and download standard forms required to initiate changes in details held by

the Registrars Shareholders will need to register for User ID before using

some of the services

American Depositary Receipts ADR5

The ADR programme is administered by the Bank of New York Mellon and

enquiries regarding ADRs should be addressed to

The Bank of New York Mellon

P0 Box 358516

Pittsburgh

PA 15252-8516

U.S.A

Telephone Toll Free Number United States residents 1-888-269-2377

International 201 -680-6825

E-mail shrrelations@bnymellon.com

Website www.bnymellon.com/shareowner

Frequently Asked Questions FAQ

The Groups website contains answers to questions frequently asked by

shareholders including questions regarding shareholdings dividends

payments electronic communications and shareholder rights The FAQ can

be accessed in the Investors section of the website under Equity Investors

2013

ISE Stg LSE

2012

-ISE Stg

This represents best estimate of the number of shares controlled by fund managers

resident in the geographic regions indicated Private Shareholders are classified as

retail above

Holdings

Number of of Number of

Shareholders total shares held

000s

Telephone 353 01 553 0050

Fax 353 01 224 0700

Website www.capitaassetservices.com
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Management

Executive Directors/ Senior Group Staff Johanna ODriscoll Mariusz Bogacz
Distribution North

Company Secretary
Head of Financial Evaluation Managing Director

Jack Golden Advisory Services Finland Taco van Vroonhoven

Albert Manifold Organisation Development
Chief Operating Officer

Chief Executive Director
Pat OShea

Barry Leonard

Group Taxation Director
Managing Director Peter Stravers

Ukraine Managing Director
Maeve Carton Henry Morris

Finance Director Managing Director Europe Anthony Fitzgerald Builders Merchants

Materials Group Treasurer

Mark Towe

Declan Maguire
Benelux

Chief Executive Officer Compliance Sustainability Europe
Managing Director

Oldcastle Inc Risk

SE Europe
Christoph Lehrmann

Edwin Bouwman
Managing Director

Neil Colgan John Byrne
Chief Financial Officer Jim Mintern

Builders Merchants

Company Secretary Head of Internal Audit Managing Director Germany

Heavyside Lightside Russia Israel

Ros OShea
Tom Beyers

Head of Compliance Ken McKnight
Frank Heisterkamp

Managing Director

Ethics
Managing Director Managing Director

SHAP Netherlands

Turkey
Roofing

Pat McCleery

Group Sustainability
Heavyside West

Distribution South

Manager
Lightside Products

Francisco Irazusta

Declan Condren Managing Director David Dillon

Khaled Bachir

Group Strategic Financial
Managing Director

Chief Operating Officer

Risk Manager
Owen Rowley

Chief Operating Officer Kees-Jan van Westeinde
Ulrich Paulmann

Strategy Innovation Managing Director
Managing Director

Development HR Edwin van den Berg Shutters Awnings
Builders Merchants Austria

Managing Director

Benelux
Jean-Luc Bernard

Nicolas Weinmann
Oliver Mahori

Group Performance Value

Creation Director

Managing Director
Managing Director

SØamus Lynch
Construction Accessories

Builders Merchants

Switzerland

Noel OMahony
Managing Director

Group Performance
Ireland Spain

Dennis Gouka
Khaled Bachir

Innovation Director
Managing Director

Wayne Sheppard
Heras

Managing Director

Philip Wheatley Managing Director

Builders Merchants France

Group Strategy United Kingdom
Hans Welting

Development Director Managing Director
Asia

Claus Bering
Mobile Fencing

Managing Director

Ken McKnight
Nicola McCracken

HR Operations Director
President

Denmark Michael Wightman

Corporate Communications
Managing Director

Oliver Mahon

Urs Sandmeier Cubis

Investor Relations Country Director

Managing Director India

Eimear OFlynn
Switzerland Germany

Distribution

Corporate Communications Atul Khosla

Francois Demoulin Marc St Nicolaas
Managing Director

Frank Heisterkamp Managing Director Managing Director India

Head of Investor Relations France

Emiel Hopmans Peter Buckley

Finance Tax Treasury Heavyside East Managing Director
Country Director

DIY Benelux China

Alan Connolly
Jim Mintern

General Manager Finance

Managing Director Ee Ming Wong

Rossa McCann
Country Manager

Head of Group Financial
Declan Maguire

China

Operations
Chief Operating Officer

Paul Barry
Mark Lowry

Head of Reporting Managing Director

Financial Control Poland
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The Americas John Cooney Jr Mountain West Tim Ortman South America
President President

Mark Towe New York Region Scott Parson Masonry Hardscapes Juan Carlos Girotti

Chief Executive Officer President
Managing Director

Sean OSullivan Mountain West Division Eoin Lehane CRH Sudamericana
Michael ODriscoll President President Canteras Cerro Negro
Chief Financial Officer Tilcon New Jersey Randy Anderson National Group

President
Bernardo Alamos

Gary Hickman William Stavola Staker Parson North/Rocky Peter Kiley Managing Director

Senior Vice President Tax President Mountain Executive Vice President Vidrios Dell Orto South
Risk Management Trap Rock

Strategic Sales American Glass Group
Michael Kurz

Michael Lynch Central President Precast Federico Ferro

Executive Vice President Staker Parson South
Managing Director

Development John Powers Dave Steevens Cormela
President Rich Umbel President

Bill Miller Central Division President

Vice President General Southwest Region Bob Quinn

Counsel Ty Nofziger Chief Administrative Officer

President Bob Rowberry

Mark Schack Shelly President Eric Farinha

Executive Vice President Jack Parson Chief Financial Officer

Talent Management Gregg Campbell

President Central West BuildingEnvelope

North America Michigan Paving Materials

Kirk Randolph Ted Hathaway

Materials Mid-Atlantic President Chief Executive Officer

Central West Division

Randy Lake Dan Cooperrider Brian Reilly

Chief Executive Officer President Earl Losier Chief Administrative Officer

Mid-Atlantic Division President

Charlie Brown KS/MO OK/AR Regions Jim Avanzini

Chief Financial Officer Mark Snyder Chief Operating Officer

President Raymond Lane Architectural Glass

Pascal Convers MidA President Storefronts

Senior Vice President Texas TN/MS Regions

Development Willie Crane Mary Carol Witry

President Craig Lam berty Chief Operating Officer

John Keating AMG North President Engineered Glazing

President Chief Operating Midwest Region Systems

Office East Kevin Bragg

President Products Distribution

Doug Radabaugh AMG South

Chief Financial Office East Keith Haas Robert Feury Jr

Southeast Chief Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer

John Parson

President Chief Operating Rob Duke Paul Valentine Frank Furia

Office West President Chief Financial Officer Chief Financial Officer

Southeast Division

Jeff Schaffer Doug Crawford Jamie Kutzer

Executive Vice President David Church Vice President Development Chief Administrative Officer

West President Strategy

Mid-South Region John McLaughlin
Chris Madden Joe Myers President

Executive Vice President Northwest President Exterior Products

Fleet Operations Building Solutions

Jim Gauger Ron Pilla

Northeast President Architectural Products President

Northwest Division Interior Products

Dan Stover Rick Mergens

President Craig Mayfield President

Northeast Division President

East Region Mike Schaeffer

Christian Zimmermann Chief Financial Officer

President Ricardo Linares

New England North President

West Region

CRH 153



Principal Subsidiary Undertakings as at 31 December 2013

Incorporated and operating in
held Products and senices

Europe Materials

Belgium VVM NV 100 Cement transport and trading readymixed concrete clinker grinding

Britain Northern Cubis 100 Supplier of access chambers and ducting products

Ireland
Northstone NI Limited 100 Aggregates readymixed concrete mortar coated macadam rooftiles

including Farrans Scott Toomebridge building and civil engineering contracting

Limited

Premier Cement Limited 100 Marketing and distribution of cement

Finland Finnsementti Oy 100 Cement

Rudus Oy 100 Aggregates readymixed concrete and concrete products

Ireland Irish Cement Limited 100 Cement

Clogrennane Lime Limited 100 Burnt and hydrated lime

Roadstone Wood Limited 100 Aggregates readymixed concrete mortar coated macadam concrete blocks

and pipes asphalt agricultural
and chemical limestone and contract surfacing

Netherlands Cementbouw B.V 100 Cement transport and trading readymixed concrete and aggregates

Poland Bosta Beton Sp 0.0 90.30 Readymixed concrete

Drogomex Sp o.o 99.94 Asphalt and contract surfacing

Grupa OiarOw S.A 100 Cement

Grupa Prefabet S.A 100 Concrete products

Masfalt Sp o.o 100 Asphalt and contract surfacing

O.K.S.M S.A 100 Aggregates

Polbruk S.A 100 Readymixed concrete and concrete paving

Trzuskawica S.A 100 Production of lime and lime products

Spain Beton Catalan S.A 100 Readymixed concrete

Cementos Lemona S.A 98.86 Cement

Switzerland JURA-Holding AG 100 Cement aggregates and readymixed concrete

Ukraine LLC Cement 51 Cement and clinker grinding

PJSC Mykolaiv Cement 99.27 Cement

Podilsky Cement PJSC 99.60 Cement
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Incorporated and operating in held Products and services

Europe Products Distribution

Distribution

Quester Baustoffhandel GmbH

Products

Douterloigne NV

Ergon NV

Stradus Aqua NV

Oeterbeton NV

Prefaco NV

Remade S.A

Schelfhout N.y

Piakabeton NV

Stradus Infra NV

Marlux N.y

Distribution

Lambrechts NV

Sax Sanitair NV

Schrauwen Sanitair en Verwarming NV

Van Neerbos Belgie NV

Products

Anchor Bay Construction Products 100

Ancon Limited 100

Anderton Concrete Products Limited 100

CRH Fencing Security Group UK Limited 100

Forticrete Limited 100

Ibstock Brick Limited 100

Supreme Concrete Limited 100

Security Windows Shutters Limited 100

Denmark Products

Betongruppen RBR A/S

CRH Concrete A/S

France Products

BØton MoulØ industriel S.A

Heras Cloture S.A.R.L

Lindustrieiie du BØton S.A

Marlux

Plaka Group France S.A.S

Stradal

Distribution

CRH lie de France Distribution

CRH TP Distribution

CRH Normandie Distribution

100 Builders merchants

Concrete floor elements payers and blocks

Precast concrete and structural elements

Concrete paving sewerage and water treatment

Precast concrete

Precast concrete structural elements

Precast concrete products

Precast concrete wall elements

Construction accessories

Concrete paving and landscaping products

Concrete paving and landscaping products

Builders merchants

Sanitary ware heating and plumbing

Sanitary ware heating and plumbing

DIY stores

Construction accessories

Construction accessories

Precast and pre-stressed concrete products

Security fencing

Concrete masonry products and rooftiles

Clay brick manufacturer

Concrete fencing lintels and floorbeams

Physical security industrial and garage doors roofing systems

100 Concrete paving manufacturer

100 Structural concrete products

99.98 Precast concrete products

100 Builders merchants

100 Builders merchants

100 Builders merchants

Austria

Belgium

Britain Northern

Ireland

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

75

100

100

100 Temporary fencing

100 Structural concrete products

100 Concrete paving manufacturer

00 Construction accessories

100 Utility and infrastructural concrete products
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Principal Subsidiary Undertakings continued

Incorporated and operating in

Europe Products Distribution continued

held Products and services

Products

Alulux GmbH

CRH Clay Solutions GmbH

EHLAG

ERHARDT Markisenbau GmbH

Hatfen GmbH

Hammerl GmbH

Heras-Adronit GmbH

Reuss-Seifert GmbH

Distribution

BauKing AG

Andreas Paulsen GmbH

Products

Ferrobeton Beton-Øs Vasbetonelem gyÆrtO Zrt

Products

Plaka Ireland Limited

Products

Halfen S.R.L Società Unipersonale

Plaka Group S.R.L

Products

Aluminium Verkoop Zuid By

Calduran Kalkzandsteen B.V

CRH Kleiwaren Beheer B.V

CRH Structural Concrete B.V

Dycore B.V

Heras B.V

Kooy Baksteencentrum B.V

Mavotrans By

Struyk Verwo Groep B.V

Distribution

CRH Bouwmaten B.V

CRH Bouwmaterialenhandel B.V

N.VB Ubbens Bouwstoffen By

Royal Roofing Materials B.V

Stoel van Klaveren Bouwstoffen By

Van Neerbos Bouwmaterialen B.V

Van Neerbos Bouwmarkten B.V

Wijks B.V

Roller shutter and awning systems

Clay brick payers and rooftiles

Concrete paving and landscape walling products

Roller shutter and awning systems

Construction accessories

Construction accessories

Security fencing and access control

Construction accessories

100 Builders merchants DIY stores

100 Sanitary ware heating and plumbing

100 Precast concrete structural elements

00 Construction accessories

Construction accessories

Construction accessories

Roller shutter and awning systems

Sand-lime bricks and building elements

Clay brick manufacturer

Precast concrete structural elements

Concrete flooring elements

Security fencing and perimeter protection

Clay brick factors

Construction accessories

Concrete paving products

Cash Carry building materials

Builders merchants

Builders merchants

Roofing materials merchant

Builders merchants

Builders merchants

DIY stores

Builders merchants

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Germany

Hungary

Ireland

Italy

Netherlands

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100
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Incorporated and operating in

Europe Products Distribution continued

Norway Products

Halfen AS

Poland Products

CRH Klinkier Sp 0.0

Ergon Poland Sp 0.0

Romania Products

CRH Structural Concrete SRL

Elpreco S.A

Products

Premac spol s.r.o

Products

Plakabeton S.L.U

Products

Heras Stangsel AB

Products

Element AG Schweiz

FJ Aschwanden AG

Distribution

BR Bauhandel AG trading as BauBedarf and

Richner

GØtaz Romang Holding AG trading as GØtaz

Romang and Miauton

Regusci Reco S.A trading as Regusci and

Reco

held Products and services

Slovakia

Spain

Sweden

Switzerland

00 Construction accessories

100 Clay brick manufacturer

00 Structural concrete products

00 Structural concrete products

100 Architectural concrete products

100 Concrete paving and floor elements

100 Construction accessories

100 Security fencing

00 Prefabricated structural concrete elements

00 Construction accessories

100 Builders merchants sanitary ware and ceramic tiles

100 Builders merchants

100 Builders merchants
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Principal Subsidiary Undertakings continued

Incorporated and operating in

Americas Materials

held Products and services

United States Oldcastle Materials Inc

APAC Holdings Inc and Subsidiaries

Callanan Industries Inc

CPM Development Corporation

Dolomite Products Company Inc

Eugene Sand Construction Inc

Evans Construction Company

Hills Materials Company

Michigan Paving and Materials Company

Mountain Enterprises Inc

0MG Midwest Inc

Oldcastle Southern Group Inc

Oldcastle SW Group Inc

Pennsy Supply Inc

Pike Industries Inc

PJ Keating Company

Staker Parson Companies

The Shelly Company

Tilcon Connecticut Inc

Tilcon New York Inc

Trap Rock Industries LLC

West Virginia Paving Inc

100 Holding company

100 Aggregates asphalt readymixed concrete and related construction activities

100 Aggregates asphalt readymixed concrete and related construction activities

100 Aggregates asphalt readymixed concrete pre-stressed concrete and related

construction activities

00 Aggregates asphalt readymixed concrete and related construction activities

100 Aggregates asphalt readymixed concrete and related construction activities

100 Aggregates asphalt readymixed concrete and related construction activities

100 Aggregates asphalt readymixed concrete and related construction activities

100 Aggregates asphalt and related construction activities

100 Aggregates asphalt and related construction activities

100 Aggregates asphalt readymixed concrete and related construction activities

100 Aggregates asphalt readymixed concrete aggregates distribution and related

construction activities

Aggregates asphalt readymixed concrete and related construction activities

Aggregates asphalt readymixed concrete and related construction activities

Aggregates asphalt readymixed concrete and related construction activities

Aggregates asphalt and related construction activities

Aggregates asphalt readymixed concrete and related construction activities

Aggregates asphalt readymixed concrete and related construction activities

Aggregates asphalt readymixed concrete and related construction activities

Aggregates asphalt and related construction activities

Aggregates asphalt and related construction activities

Aggregates asphalt and related construction activities

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

60

100
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Incorporated and operating in held Products and services

Americas Products Distribution

Superglass S.A

Canada Products

Oldcastle BuildingEnvelope Canada Inc

Oldcastle Building Products Canada Inc

trading as Decor Precast Expocrete Concrete

Products Groupe Permacon Oldcastle

Enclosure Solutions and Transpave

Vidrios Dell Orb S.A

Comercial Duomo Limitada

Americas Products Distribution Inc

CRH America Inc

Oldcastle Inc

Products

Oldcastle Architectural Inc

Oldcastle Building Products Inc

Big River Industries Inc

Bonsai American Inc

Glen-Gery Corporation

Merchants Metals Inc

Meadow Burke LLC

Oldcastle APG Northeast Inc

trading principally as Anchor Concrete

Products and Trenwyth Industries

Oldcastle APG South Inc

trading principally as Adams Products

Georgia Masonry Supply Northfield Block

Company and Oldcastle Coastal

Oldcastle APG West Inc

trading principally as Amcor Masonry Products

Central Pre-Mix Concrete Products Texas

Masonry Products Miller Rhino Materials Sierra

Building Products and Supetlite Block

Oldcastle BuildingEnvelope Inc

Oldcastle Lawn Garden Inc

Oldcastle Precast Inc

Oldcastle Surfaces Inc

Distribution

Oldcastle Distribution Inc

Allied Building Products Corp

AMS Holdings Inc

Mahalo Acquisition Corp

trading as Killebrew

Holding company

Clay rooftiles wall tiles and floor tiles

Clay blocks

100 Fabricated and tempered glass products

100 Custom fabricated and tempered glass products and curtain wall

100 Masonry paving and retaining walls utility boxes and trenches

Fabricated and tempered glass products

Wholesaler and retailer of specialised building products

Holding company

Holding company

Holding company

Holding company

Holding company

Lightweight aggregates

Premixed cement and asphalt products

Clay bricks

Fabrication and distribution of fencing products

Concrete accessories

Specialty masonry hardscape and patio products

Argentina CRH Sudamericana S.A

Canteras Cerro Negro S.A

Cormela S.A

100

99.98

100

Chile

United States

99.90

99.99

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100 Specialty masonry hardscape and patio products

100 Specialty masonry and stone products hardscape and patio products

100 Custom fabricated architectural glass

100 Patio products bagged stone mulch and stone

00 Precast concrete products concrete pipe pre-stressed plank and structural

elements

100 Custom fabrication and installation of countertops

100 Holding company

100 Distribution of roofing siding and related products wallboard metal studs

acoustical tile and grid

100 Distribution of drywall acoustical ceiling systems metal studs and commercial

door solutions

100 Distribution of wallboard metal studs acoustical tile and grid and other

related products
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Principal Equity Accounted Investments as at 31 December 2013

Incorporated and operating in
held Products and services

Europe Materials

China Jilin Yatai Group Building Materials 26 Cement

Investment Company Limited

India My Home Industries Limited 50 Cement

Ireland Kemek Limited 50 Commercial explosives

Israel Mashav Initiating and Development Limited 25 Cement

Turkey Denizli Qimento Sanayii T.A. 50 Cement and readymixed concrete

Europe Distribution

France Doras S.A 56.95 Builders merchants

Samse S.A 21.13 Builders merchants and DIY stores

Netherlands Bouwmaterialenhandel de Schelde By 50 DIY stores

Intergamma B.V 48.57 DIY franchisor

Portugal Modelo Distribuicao de Materials de 50 DIY stores

Construçao S.A

Americas Materials

United States American Cement Company LLC 50 Cement

Boxley Aggregates of West Virginia LLC 50 Aggregates

Southside Materials LLC 50 Aggregates

Cadillac Asphalt LLC 50 Asphalt

Piedmont Asphalt LLC 50 Asphalt

American Asphalt of West Virginia LLC 50 Asphalt and related construction activities

HMA Concrete LLC 50 Readymixed concrete

Buckeye Ready Mix LLC 45 Readymixed concrete

Audited by firms other than Ernst Young

Pursuant to Section 16 of the Companies Act 1986 full list of subsidiaries joint ventures and associated undertakings will be annexed to the Companys

Annual Return to be filed in the Companies Registration Office in Ireland
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Group Financial Summary
Figures prepared in accordance with IFRS Restated Restated Restated Restated Restated Restated Restated Restated Restated

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Revenue
12281 13831 17836 19916 19715 16278 16112 17374 18084 18031

EBITDAasdefjned 1656 1845 2326 2704 2478 1654 1487 1543 1563 1475Group operating profit 1158 1311 1724 1973 1704 861 630 811 805 100
Profit on disposals

19 36 57 68 25 54 53 230 26
Profit before finance costs

Net finance costs funding/cash 131 135 221 282 324 263 211 223 256 249Other financial expense 10 15 27 29 28 49 48

215Income tax expense 220 254 360 441 340 115 74 103 106 80
Group profitlIoss for the financial year 872 1006 1224 1438 1262 598 439 597 540 295
Employment of capital

Non-current and current assets

Property plant and equipment 5340 6275 6954 7503 7904 7570 7939 8008 7971 7539Intangibleassets 1540 2005 2713 3424 3772 3754 3960 4148 4267 3911
Equity accounted investments/other financial assets 708 1126 1169 1448 1969 2204 2265 2107 1599 1363Networkingcapital

1471 1864 2314 2326 2468 1838 1799 2004 2078 2016Other liabilities current and non-current 1012 1226 1070 836 1078 1051 1056 1323 1376 1111
Total

Capital and reserves excluding preference share capital 4944 6194 7062 7953 8086 9636 10327 10508 10552 9661Preference share capital

Non-controlling interests
29 25 31 37 38 41 50 41 36 24Net deferred incometax liability 572 647 742 875 972 1028 1149 1059 1041 1059Net debt

2501 3177 4244 4999 5938 3609 3380 3335 2909 297310044 12080 13865 15035 14315 14907 14944 14539

Purchase of property plant and equipment 520 614 777 956 955 487 418 507 544 497
Acquisitions and investments 1019 1298 2311 2227 1072 458 567 610 548 576
Total

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 494 525 577 696 717 709 711 673 686 671Amortisation of intangible assets
25 35 43 43 44 38 44 54

Impairment of property plant and equipment and

intangible assets
14 41 102 21 28 650

Earnings per share after amortisation of intangible

assets cent 147.5 168.3 202.2 236.9 210.2 88.3 61.3 82.6 74.6 40.6
Earnings per share before amortisation of intangible

assets cent 148.1 170.0 206.5 242.7 217.4 96.3 79.9 88.6 80.6 33.2Dividend per share cent 29.76 35.17 46.89 61.31 62.22 62.50 62.50 62.50 62.50 62.50Cash earnings per share cent 239.8 268.9 332.0 372.3 357.4 222.9 203.2 201.4 199.8 162.4
Dividend cover times 5.0 4.8 4.3 3.9 3.4 1.4 1.0 1.3 1.2 n/a
Notes to IFRS financial summary data

The Group financial summary for 2004 to 2012 has been restated for the Impact of IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements The 2012 results also reflect the change in accounting asrequired by lAS 19 Employee Benefits

Represents the sum of equity accounted investments including assets held for sale included in current assets and other financial assets

Represents the sum of inventories and trade and other receivables included in current assets less trade and other payables included in current liabilities excludingbank advances and cash and liquid investments which are included under net debt see note below
Represents the sum of current income tax liabilities current and non-current provisions for liabilities non-current other payables and retirement benefit

obligations lessthe sum of current income tax recoverable and non-current other receivables

Represents the sum of current and non-current
interest-bearing loans and borrowings and derivative financial instrument liabilities less the sum of liquid investmentscash and cash equivalents and current and non-current derivative financial instrument assets

Per share amounts for restated 2004 to 2008 have been restated for the bonus element of the Rights Issue in March 2009
Cash earnings per share represents profit attributable to equity holders of the Company less preference dividends paid plus depreciation of property plant and equipmentamortisation of

intangible assets and where applicable asset impairments divided by the average number of Ordinary Shares outstanding for the year
Represents earnings per Ordinary Share divided by dvidends per Ordinary Share

Defined as earnings before interest taxes depreciation amortsation asset impairment charges profit on disposals and the Groups share of equity accountedinvestments result after tax
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Accounting policies

Acquisitions
Committee

Adoption of new accounting standards note

American Depositary Receipts

Annual General Meeting

Audit Committee

Auditors Directors Report

Auditors remuneration note

Auditors Report Independent

Balance sheet

Company
146

Consolidated

99

Board agendas
46

Board approval of financial statements note 33 145

Board Committees
46

Board evaluation
44

Board Meetings
46 54

Board of Directors
37 42 94

Board responsibilities

42

Business combinations note 31
106 142

Business model
10

Business Performance Review
19

Capital and financial risk management note 22

Cash and cash equivalents note 23

Cash flow operating

Cash flow statement Consolidated

Cash flow summarised

Chairmans Introduction

Changes in Equity Consolidated Statement of

Chief Executives Introduction

Communications with shareholders

Company Secretary

Compliance and ethics

Comprehensive Income Consolidated Statement of

Consolidated Financial Statements

Corporate governance report

Cost analysis note

CREST

Debt Analysis of net note 21

Deferred income tax

Expense note 11

Assets and liabilities note 27

102 Depreciation

55 Cost analysis note

Property plant and equipment note 14

Segment analysis note

Derivative financial instruments note 25

47 Directors emoluments and interests note

94 Directors interests in share capital

Directors remuneration report

Directors Report

Directors responsibilities Statement of

Directors share options

Distribution

Dividend payments shareholder information

Dividend per Share

Dividends note 12

113

150

Earnings per Ordinary Share note 13

Employees average number note

Employment costs note

End-use

Americas Distribution

Americas Materials

Americas Products

Europe Distribution

Europe Materials

Europe Products

Equity accounted investments Ioss/profit note 10

Exchange rates

Finance Committee

Finance costs and finance income note

Finance Directors Introduction

Financial assets note 16

Financial calendar

Financial statements Consolidated

Financial summary Group 2004-2013

Foreign currency translations

Frequently asked questions

Gender diversity

Going concern

127 Governance

Greenhouse gas emissions

Guarantees note 24 note 10 to Company Balance Sheet

Index
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151

57 94

50 114
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113
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111
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32

91150

56
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120

115

115

23

23

23
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22
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118

108
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118

18

107 124

151

98
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108

151

1443
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40

14 93
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128

107 130
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101
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100
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44
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98
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Health and safety

Income Statement Consolidated

Income tax expense note 11

Independent auditors report

Intangible assets note 15

Inventories note 17

Investor relations activities

Key components of 2013 performance

Key financial figures 2013

KPIs financial

KPIs non-financial

Management

Materials

Measuring performance

Memorandum and Articles of Association

Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee

Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements

Operating costs note

Operating leases note 30

Operating profit disclosures note

Operational snapshot 2013

Operations Reviews and 2013 results

Americas Distribution

Americas Materials

Americas Products

Europe Distribution

Europe Materials

Europe Products

Pensions retirement benefit obligations note 28

Principal equity accounted investments

Principal subsidiary undertakings

Products

Profit on disposals note

Property plant and equipment note 14

Provisions for liabilities note 26

Proxy voting electronic

98

104119

96

122

107 125

57

19

12

14

107 141

42

107 131

152

24

12

58

52

109-145

113

107 141

114

22

Vision and strategy

Volumes annualised production

Americas Distribution

Americas Materials

Americas Products

Europe Distribution

Europe Materials

Europe Products

151

93

145

54 59

24 25

103 136

12

55

92

22

105 111

43

105 116

108140

73

116

151

57

150

151

100

98

94

150

154

56

16

1276

126

107 125

23

23

23

22

22

22

Leases commitments under operating and finance note 30

Listings and corporate governance codes

Loans and borrowings interest-bearing note 24

16 Registrars

Regulatory information

Related party transactions note 32

Remuneration Committee

Reserves million tonnes

Retirement benefit obligations note 28

Return on net assets

Risk management and internal control

Risks and uncertainties

Sector exposure and end-use

Segment information note

Senior Independent Director

Share-based payments note

Share capital and reserves note 29

Share options

Directors

Employees

Share price data

Shareholder communication

Shareholder information

ShareholdingS as at 31 December 2013

Snapshot 2013

Statement of Changes in Equity Consolidated

Statement of Comprehensive Income Consolidated

Statement of Directors responsibilities

Stock Exchange listings

Strategy review

Subsidiary undertakings principal

Substantial holdings

Sustainability and governance

Total Shareholder Return TSR

Trade and other payables note 19

Trade and other receivables note 18

33 35

25 27

29 31

32 34

24 26

28 30

136

160

154

28

115

121

134

151

Website

Working capital and provision for liabilities movement

during year note 20

57 151

103126
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The International Building

Materials Group

CRH plc

Belgard Castle

Clondalkin

Dublin 22

Ireland

Telephone 353 404 1000

Fax 3531 404 1007

Email mailkTcrhcom

Website wwwcrhcorn

Registered Office

42 Fitzwilliam Square

Dublin

Ireland

Telephone 353 634 4340

Fax 353 676 5013

E-mail crh42@crh.com

CRH is registered

trade mark of CRH plc




